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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEWwA Kk 7

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

The Group attained a turnover of HK$391 million from its continuing
operations for the year ended 31 December 2011, represented an increase
of 26.4% as compared to HK$309.3 million in 2010. Gross profit for the
year increased by 1.37 times to HK$60.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2011. The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2011 was a loss of HK$219.3 million against the profit of HK$412.9 million
in 2010, which was mainly attributable to a gain on disposal of the travel
and related business of approximately HK$716.9 million. However, the
aforesaid gain on disposal was a non-recurring item and there was no similar
item recorded for the year ended 31 December 2011. Notwithstanding that
the Group has recorded a loss from its continuing operations of HK$219.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010: HK$286.8 million), this
represented a 23.5% reduction of loss from that of the previous year. This
improvement was resulted mainly from decreases in various cost items during
the reporting year. Loss for the year from continuing operations was arrived
at after charging mainly administrative expenses of HK$183.1 million (2010:
HK$230.8 million); finance costs of HK$23.9 million (2010: HK$56.5 million);
impairment loss recognised in respect of other intangible assets arising from
certain under-performed hotel lease contracts of HK$10.1 million (2010:
HK$27.7 million); impairment loss recognised in respect of property, plant
and equipment of HK$31.2 million (2010: HK$32.5 million) and increase in
fair value of investment properties of HK$13.5 million (2010: decrease of

HK$34.0 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SEGMENT RESULTS
Hotel and Leisure Services

The hotel and leisure business of the Group comprises the three “Rosedale”
branded 4-star rated hotels, the Times Plaza Hotel, Shenyang, the Luoyang
Golden Gulf Hotel and the Square Inn budget hotel chain. Turnover increased
by 26.4% to HK$391 million for the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010:
HK$309.3 million) resulted from the increasing average room rate and
average occupancy rates. The strong Renminbi and the expanding Square
Inn budget hotel chain also played an important role in this improving
performance. Segment loss for the reporting year was HK$163.5 million
(2010: HK$225.2 million). Loss for the year was mainly attributable to the
high depreciation charge on the Group's hotel properties and ancillary fixed

assets.

Securities Trading

Loss from securities trading for the year ended 31 December 2011 was

HK$9.5 million (2010: profit of HK$3.3 million).

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

On 26 September 2011, the Group entered into a share sale agreement with
an independent third party in relation to the disposal of the entire issued
share capital of Gold Richly Limited at a consideration of R\MB45,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$55,102,000). Gold Richly Limited was the
then subsidiary of the Company and its major activity was the holding of,
through a wholly foreign owned entity in the PRC, a resort hotel development
with three blocks of one to two-storey buildings erected on two parcels of
land located at Hailing Island, Yangjiang City, Guangdong Province, the PRC.

The said share sale agreement was completed in October 2011.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEWwI Kk 7

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
(CONTINUED)

On 13 January 2012, the Group entered into a conditional sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party (the “Vendor"”). Pursuant to
the agreement, the Vendor has agreed to sell and the Group has agreed to
purchase 14,000,000 ordinary shares of US$0.02 each in the capital of Apex
Quality Group Limited (“Apex”), representing approximately 5.05% of the
issued share capital of Apex at a total cash consideration of HK$62,000,000.
Following completion, the Company’s equity interest in Apex was increased
to approximately 88.2% and Apex remains as an indirect non wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. The said agreement was completed in January

2012.

On 2 February 2012, the Company entered into a conditional agreement
with C-Travel International Limited (”C-Travel”) and pursuant to which the
Company has conditionally agreed to sell and C-Travel has conditionally
agreed to purchase the remaining 10% equity interest in the issued share
capital of HKWOT (BVI) Limited, at a consideration of US$9.44 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$73.6 million). The consideration shall be
paid by C-Travel as to US$9.18 million (equivalent to approximately HK$71.6
million) by way of cash at completion and as to the balance of US$0.26
million (equivalent to approximately HK$2 million) by way of cash on the first
anniversary of the completion date. The said agreement was completed in

February 2012.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
(CONTINUED)

On 1 February 2012, Eagle Spirit Holdings Limited (“Eagle Spirit”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a conditional share
sale agreement (the “Agreement”) with an independent third party (the
"Purchaser”), amongst other things, for the disposal of the entire equity
interest (the “Sale Share”) in and the shareholder’s loan (the “Sale Loan”) to
More Star Limited (“More Star”) for a total consideration of approximately
HK$1,317,708,000 (subject to adjustment). Of the total consideration,
95% will be settled by way of payment in cash, while the remaining 5%
will be settled by the Purchaser by way of issue of the consideration units
to Eagle Spirit (or its related entity as approved by the Purchaser). The
consideration units represent interest in the stapled group comprising the
Ascendas Hospitality Real Estate Investment Trust and Ascendas Hospitality
Business Trust admitted for trading on the Main Board of Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited under the initial public offering of the
units which is in contemplation. More Star is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Eagle Spirit. The sole asset of More Star is its investment in the entire issued
share capital of Fortress State International Limited (“Fortress State”) and
of which the sole asset is the building currently named as the “Rosedale
Hotel Kowloon” (the “Property”) under construction on Kowloon Inland
Lot No. 11208 located at No. 86 Tai Kok Tsui Road, Tai Kok Tsui, Kowloon,
Hong Kong. It is a term of the Agreement that Rosedale Hotel Kowloon
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Eagle Spirit, shall enter into a master
lease upon the later of (i) issuance of the Certificate of Compliance; and
(i) completion of the Agreement. Under the master lease, Rosedale Hotel
Kowloon Limited shall lease the Property for hotel operation from Fortress
State for a term commencing from the date of signing until six (6) years after
the date of completion. Under the Agreement, Eagle Spirit also granted to
the Purchaser a put option pursuant to which, under certain circumstances
after completion, the Purchaser may require Eagle Spirit to purchase back
all of the issued shares of More Star and all shareholder’s loan due by More
Star to the Purchaser at the consideration equal to (i) the total consideration
of the Sale Share and the Sale Loan; and (ii) any amount injected into More
Star and Fortress State after completion. The disposal of the Sale Share and
the Sale Loan constitutes a very substantial disposal whereas the exercise
of the put option by the Purchaser constitutes a very substantial acquisition
for the Company under the Listing Rules. The said share sale agreement
and the transactions contemplated thereunder are therefore subject to
the shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules. A special
general meeting will be convened by the Company to consider and approve,
if thought fit, the Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder.
At the date of this report, the special general meeting has not yet been

convened.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEERLN D

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES REBEERYBER
At the end of the reporting year, the Group's total borrowings were as ~ RE2RFELE R  FEB 2 EBEELQBNT
follows:
At 31.12.2011 At 31.12.2010
HK$ million HK$ million
R=T——F RIZE-Z2F
+=A=+-8 f-A={-=
ER- )5 BEAT
Loan from a related company —XBELFER 14.6 10.0
Borrowings — amount due within one year BE— —FRIHHIE 483.9 61.5
Borrowings — amount due after one year BE— —FHRIHIE 223.0 -
Convertible notes AHRREE - 330.8
721.5 402.3

The convertible notes issued in June 2006, matured on 7 June 2011, RIZZEEXNFNABTUER=ZT——F A
were of a fixed coupon rate of 2% per annum and other borrowings of ~ +HRBIHZ AJHRBEEHIZETEmMERFE2
approximately HK$8.1 million bear interest at a fixed rate of 10% per annum.  [Ext8 - M E A4 & E #98,100,00058 7T BIli% & &
All other borrowings bear floating interest rates. During the year, the Group ~ F|R&SF10E:T E - B HibEEHIZZHF
repaid bank loan due of approximately HK$46.0 million and obtained three ~ Rit B F R KEBDEESHIBTERY
new bank loans amounting to HK$638.7 million. The loans bear interest at ~ 46,000,0005% 7T WER 1S = I8 ¥ & IR1TE B
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR") plus 1.75%, HIBOR plus 2.4%  £1638,700,000/8 T - :Z S E I B BRITAE
and Renminbi Benchmark Deposit and Loan Rate times 120% per annum to K8 ([ FHRITRIZEFRE ) MN1.75E - FH IR
finance the construction of the hotel in Tai Kok Tsui and for general operation TR 2 #F B2 48 & A R ¥ 17 B U &R K
uses. Bank deposits of approximately HK$14.9 million and properties of ~ €120% 2 EF =&t 2 AESE X AEEE
approximately HK$1,324.6 million were pledged as securities for these bank 2 E &Rk —K&ERG -N=-ZT——F+=A

borrowings as at 31 December 2011. =+—H ' #4914,900,000/8 7t 2 IR1TF R LA
1,324,600,000/8 7L 2 MEE T - EHZF
RITIEE 2 ER-

The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2011, expressed as a percentage of total R-E——F+-_A=+—H BREELX
borrowings to equity attributable to owners of the Company, was 38.9%  (Z{EEEBEEUARREB ABLESR 2B
(2010: 20.1%). DLFIR) /38.9% (ZF—F4:20.1%) °



Management Discussion and Analysis

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31 December 2011, certain assets of the Group at net book value of
HK$ 1,337 million (2010: HK$310.9 million) were pledged to banks for credit

facilities.

At 31 December 2011, the Group’s 10% interest in HKWOT (BVI) Limited
was pledged to C-Travel for the purposes of accounting for the payment,
discharge and performance of all present and future obligations and liabilities
(whether actual or contingent) of the Company to C-Travel arising under or in
respect of (i) any breach of warranties; (i) any breach of protective covenants
or post completion adjustment under the Disposal Agreement; (iii) the deed
of indemnity dated 27 May 2010; (iv) the share charge dated 27 May 2010;
and (v) any claims or other losses arising under or in connection with any
of items (i) to (iv) above (inclusive) including, without limitation, damages
in respect of any such claims as determined by a court or arbitration of
competent jurisdiction or amounts the subject of a settlement or otherwise
agreed in writing between the Company and C-Travel for a year ending on
the date falling three years from 27 May 2010. The carrying amount of the
Group's 10% interest in HKWOT (BVI) Limited as at 31 December 2011 was
approximately HK$56.2 million (2010: HK$56.2 million).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31

December 2011 (2010: Nil).

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The majority of the Group's assets and liabilities and business transactions
were denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. During the year
ended 31 December 2011, the Group had not entered into any hedging
arrangements. However the management will continue to monitor closely
its foreign currency exposure and requirements and to arrange for hedging

facilities when necessary.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEWwA Kk 7

EMPLOYEES

At 31 December 2011, the Group had 1,778 employees of which 1,569
employees were stationing in the PRC. Competitive remuneration packages
are structured to commensurate with the responsibilities, qualifications,
experience and performance of individual employee. The Group also
provided training programs, provident fund scheme and medical insurance

for its employees.

PROSPECTS

The world economy is on the brink of another major downturn. Global
economic growth started to decelerate in mid-2011 and is estimated to have
averaged 2.8 per cent over the last year. This economic slowdown is expected
to continue into 2012 and 2013. The United Nations baseline forecast for the
growth of world gross product (WGP) is 2.6 per cent for 2012 and 3.2 per

cent for 2013, which is below the pre-crisis pace of global growth.

Persistent high unemployment in the United States and low wage growth
are holding back aggregate demand and, together with the prospect of
prolonged depressed housing prices, this has heightened risks of a new wave
of home foreclosures. Growth in the Euro zone has slowed considerably since
the beginning of 2011 and the ever-simmering sovereign debt crisis heavily
weighs on consumer and business confidence across Europe. The failure of
policymakers in developed countries to address unemployment and prevent
sovereign debt distress and financial sector fragility from escalating has
posed the most acute risk for the global economy in the outlook for 2012-
2013. Meanwhile, developing countries and economies in transition are
expected to continue to stoke the engine of the world economy, growing
on average by 5.4 per cent in 2012 and 5.8 per cent in 2013 in the baseline
outlook. Among the major developing countries, growth in China and India

is expected to remain robust.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PROSPECTS (CONTINUED)

The Group, with years of successful experience in the PRC hospitality industry,
has already got its place in this flourishing market. The Group's four-star
rated Rosedale hotel chain comprises four self-owned hotels located in the
PRC and the leased-and-operated Rosedale on the Park located in Hong
Kong currently running in total of over 1,600 guests room. Following the
completion of the disposal of the Rosedale Hotel Kowloon in June 2012, the
financial strength of the Group shall be further enhanced to facilitate the
enlargement of its business hotel portfolio in the PRC. Following the rapid
expansion of the “Square Inn” budget hotel chain during 2010 and 2011,
the Group shall concentrate on procuring and operating quality leased-and-
operated hotels in the PRC. The Group has currently had approximately 50
“Square Inn" branded hotels in operation, located in the Mainland mainly in
decent cities such as Guangzhou and Beijing and popular tourists spots like

Wauyishan.

In the future, the Group shall continue to put resources to strengthen its
branding and position in the market and to explore further quality investment

opportunities to enhance shareholders’ wealth.
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Directors Profile
=57

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheung Hon Kit, aged 58, is the Chairman of the Company. Mr.
Cheung was appointed as a director of the Company in October 2003. He
is also the chairman of the Nomination Committee of the Company and a
director of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Cheung graduated from
the University of London with a Bachelor of Arts degree and has over 34 years
of experience in real estate development, property investment and corporate
finance. He has worked in key executive positions in various leading property
development companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Cheung is the chairman and an
executive director of ITC Properties Group Limited, the shares of which are
listed in Hong Kong. He is also an independent non-executive director of
International Entertainment Corporation and Future Bright Holdings Limited,

both of which are listed companies in Hong Kong.

Ms. Chan Ling, Eva, aged 46, has been the Managing Director of the
Company since June 2009. She is also the chairman of the Corporate
Governance Committee, a member of the Remuneration Committee of the
Company and a director of various subsidiaries of the Company. She joined
the Company in May 2002. Ms. Chan has over 23 years’ experience in
auditing, accounting and finance in both international accounting firms and
listed companies. She is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in Australia, a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and also a practicing member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Ms. Chan is an executive director of China Strategic
Holdings Limited and an independent non-executive director of Trasy Gold
Ex Limited, both of which are listed companies in Hong Kong. She is also the
deputy chairman of China Enterprises Limited, a substantial shareholder of
the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, and the shares of which are traded on the OTC Securities Market
in the United States of America. Ms. Chan is also a director of MRI Holdings
Limited (“MRI") whose shares were previously listed on the Australian
Securities Exchange. The recommendation by the directors of MRI to return
the assets to its shareholders by way of members’ voluntary liquidation was

approved by its shareholders on 29 April 2010.
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Mr. Chan Pak Cheung, Natalis, aged 61, has been an Executive Director
of the Company since April 2002. He is a well-known actor, master of
ceremonies, and horseracing and soccer commentator. Mr. Chan has over 31

years' experience in the entertainment and film industry in Hong Kong.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva, aged 63, has been an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company since December 2002 and is also the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Corporate Governance Committee of
the Company. He was a marketing manager in an international company
engaging in the design of business administration system. Mr. Kwok has
been in the insurance and investment business for over 29 years, principally
in the senior managerial position leading a sizable sales team. He is also an
independent non-executive director of ITC Properties Group Limited and

Hanny Holdings Limited, both of which are listed companies in Hong Kong.

Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert, aged 50, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since March 2007 and is also the
chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Corporate Governance
Committee of the Company. Mr. Poon graduated from the University of Bath,
United Kingdom with a Master of Science degree in Business Administration.
He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a member of the CPA Australia. He is also an independent non-executive

director of Hanny Holdings Limited, a listed company in Hong Kong.

Mr. Sin Chi Fai, aged 52, has been an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company since January 2008 and is also a member of the Audit
Committee of the Company. Mr. Sin is a director and a shareholder of a
Singaporean company engaged in the distribution of data storage media
and computer related products in Asian countries. He obtained a diploma in
Banking from The Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University). Mr. Sin has over 15 years’ experience in banking
field and has over 15 years' sales and marketing experience in information
technology industries. He is also an independent non-executive director
of Hanny Holdings Limited, a listed company in Hong Kong, and China
Enterprises Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, and the shares
of which are traded on the OTC Securities Market in the United States of

America.
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Senior Management Profile
TEEBAERBN

CORPORATE MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lai Tsz Wah, aged 48, has been the Group Financial Controller of
the Company since June 2009 and is a director of various subsidiaries
of the Company. He joined the Company in March 1998 and has years
of experience in auditing, accounting and finance in both international
accounting firms and listed companies. Mr. Lai holds a Master degree of
Business Administration. He is a fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom and a fellow of the Hong Kong

Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Ms. Law Sau Lai, aged 44, has been the Company Secretary of the
Company since August 2009. Ms. Law is an associate of The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators. She has extensive experience in company secretarial

practice.

HOTEL BUSINESS

Mr. Ng Chack Yan, aged 61, joined Rosedale Hotel Management Limited in
November 2002 and was appointed as the Assistant General Manager since
April 2003. Mr. Ng holds a bachelor’s degree in business administration and
a master’s degree in accounting. He has over 24 years of experience in the
hotel industry. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ng held a number of executive
positions in various hotels of the renowned multinational hotel chains in the

PRC, Hong Kong, Singapore and Indonesia.
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Senior Management Profile

HOTEL BUSINESS (CONTINUED)

Mr. Cheng Chun Chau, aged 46, participated in the foundation of Rosedale
on the Park (“Rosedale-HK") in 2000. Mr. Cheng is currently the General
Manager of Rosedale-HK and was also appointed as the General Manager
of Rosedale Hotel Kowloon since May 2011. During the period from August
2008 to May 2011, he was also the General Manager of Rosedale Hotel &
Suites, Guangzhou. Mr. Cheng holds a master’s degree in strategic hospitality
management and is a member of the Institute of Hospitality, UK and
Academic Consultant in Hospitality Management of Unity Learning Institute
Hong Kong. He has over 27 years of experience and knowledge in managing
hotels and projects in both Hong Kong and the PRC. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Cheng held a number of executive positions in various hotels in

Hong Kong and the PRC.

Mr. Lucas Chanter, aged 40, joined Rosedale Hotel Management Limited
in March 2010 and was appointed as the Director of Business Development
since September 2010. Mr. Chanter holds a diploma of hospitality
management. He has over 21 years of experience as a hotelier. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Chanter held a number of executive positions in various hotels

and resorts in Australia, Fiji, the Caribbean and Thailand.

Mr. Zhou Jian Hua, aged 49, has been a director of Square Inn Budget
Hotels since September 2010. He is also a director of a number of subsidiaries
of the Company. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhou was a consultant to
various travel agents in China. Mr. Zhou was the General Manager of &
B A M BB RTT4E (Guangdong Southern Airline International Travel
Company), a wholly-owned subsidiary of China Southern Airlines Company
Limited, during the period from March 1998 to July 2005. Mr. Zhou holds a

bachelor’s degree in history from Jinan University.
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Corporate Governance Report
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INTRODUCTION

The Company is committed to achieving high standard of corporate
governance which is crucial to the development of the Company and can
safeguard the interests of the Company’s shareholders (the “Shareholders”).
During the year, the Company applied the principles of and complied with
the code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the "Code") contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
except for code provisions A.1.1, A.4.1 and E.1.2.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) currently comprises
six directors including three executive directors and three independent non-
executive directors whose biographical details are set out in the “Directors
Profile” section of this annual report. The Board is principally accountable
to the Shareholders and responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as
the “Group”) including overseeing the Group's businesses, formulating
corporate strategies, establishing strategic directions, monitoring operating
and financial performance, setting objectives and business development

plans, and monitoring the performance of the senior management.

The Board has delegated all operational decisions to the executive directors
of the Company led by the Managing Director. The Board has also delegated
certain authorities to the senior management of the Company for the day-to-

day running of the Group's operation.

The Board meets regularly throughout the year to review the financial and
operating performance of the Group. Additional board meetings are held or
resolutions in writing are signed by all directors of the Company in lieu of a

meeting as and when required.
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Under code provision A.1.1, the board should meet regularly and board
meetings should be held at least four times a year at approximately quarterly
intervals. During the year, two regular Board meetings and two irregular
Board meetings were held. In addition, two Board resolutions in writing were

signed by all directors of the Company.

Although the Board meetings held during the year were not convened on
a quarterly basis, the Board considered that sufficient meetings have been
held as business operations were under the management and the supervision
of the executive directors of the Company. In addition, the Board has
established the audit committee and remuneration committee to oversee

particular aspects of the Company's affairs.

The attendance of each director of the Company at the four full Board

meetings held in 2011 is as follows:

Directors Attendance
Executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Hon Kit (Chairman) 2/4
Ms. Chan Ling, Eva (Managing Director) 4/4
Dr. Yap, Allan* 171
Mr. Chan Pak Cheung, Natalis 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva 3/4
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert 4/4
Mr. Sin Chi Fai 4/4

* retired as Executive Director on 25 May 2011
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Corporate Governance Report
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CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

Under code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief executive officer
should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
The roles of the Chairman and the Managing Director, who performs the
function of chief executive officer, are held by Mr. Cheung Hon Kit and Ms.
Chan Ling, Eva separately. The Chairman is responsible for the leadership
of the Board while the Managing Director is responsible for the operation
and performance of the Group. The division of responsibilities between the
Chairman and the Managing Director of the Company is clearly established

and set out in writing.

Under code provision E.1.2, the chairman of the board should attend the
annual general meeting. The Chairman of the Company, Mr. Cheung Hon
Kit, was unable to attend the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 25 May 2011 (the “2011 AGM") as he had other important business
engagement. Nevertheless, Ms. Chan Ling, Eva, the Managing Director,
attended and took the chair of the 2011 AGM in accordance with Bye-
Law 68 of the Bye-Laws of the Company and answered questions from the

Shareholders.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”)
with written terms of reference in line with the code provisions set out in the

Code.

The Audit Committee comprises three members who are all independent
non-executive directors of the Company. The Audit Committee is chaired by

Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert.

The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to review the financial
information of the Company and to oversee the relationship with the
Company'’s auditor. It also assists the Board to oversee the financial reporting

system and internal control procedures.

16

ITERESHEE

RIRSFRMESIA2.1 - ERETHAHR 2 ABE
BED W IHEH-ARSHRET - EFHEEE
RER (FRMNTHAR) PRl BREEEE
EEBRZTHF-EEAEEAESESTE ME
EREBAEREE EERKE -ARAE
EHEFBRKE HABES TEMILE TINE
[HELEER

RIEFANEXE 2 BERFGEFERLEFERRE
FRE -ARARAERFEREERGHM
EEMEEL SCRELER T ——F 1A
ZTREARTZREAFA® (12011 RERA
FREG]) AW EFREERKLLTEHRE
201 IR BRGE S KRG W ARIB AR R B 2 A A A0 AN 2
681G ERE EE - LA RRE AR RREHIR
i o

EREEE

ARBCKIEZZES ([BRZEg]) &
EEBESE T A T RIATELZ SRR

ERZEGR=EKEAR REHR/ARAF
ZEIFRTEE - REILLERERZES
e

BERZEGTIERERENARTUBER
AR ETE AR R EREDR B R - RS IR i3 8)
EEeREMBRMmMEE RAREERRF-



Corporate Governance Report

AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

During 2011, three meetings of the Audit Committee were held with the

management of the Company and the Company’s auditor:

(1) to review and/or discuss financial reporting matters including the

annual results and interim results;

(2)  to approve the terms of engagement of external auditors; and

(3) to review the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group.

The members and attendance of the said meetings of the Audit Committee

are as follows:

Members of Audit Committee Attendance
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert 3/3
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva 3/3
Mr. Sin Chi Fai 3/3

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Under code provision A.4.1, non-executive directors should be appointed for
a specific term, subject to re-election. The current independent non-executive
directors of the Company are not appointed for a specific term. However,
all directors (including executive and independent non-executive directors)
of the Company are subject to retirement by rotation at the annual general
meeting in accordance with Bye-Law 99 of the Bye-Laws of the Company.
As such, the Company considers that this is no less exacting than that in the

Code.

The Company has received the annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive directors of the Company as
required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considered all

independent non-executive directors of the Company to be independent.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee (the “Remuneration

Committee”) with written terms of reference in line with the Code.

The Remuneration Committee comprises two independent non-executive
directors and one executive director of the Company. The Remuneration

Committee is chaired by Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva.

The main responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to consider and
recommend to the Board the Company’s remuneration policy and structure
and to review and determine the remuneration and compensation packages

of the executive directors and senior management of the Company.

During 2011, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting to review
the remuneration policy of the Company such as the proposed level of
salary increase for 2012 and the fringe benefits to the employees of the
Company, the remuneration packages of the executive directors and senior
management of the Company, and to make recommendation to the Board
on the remuneration of the independent non-executive directors of the

Company for the year 2012.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee also approved the payment
of remuneration of HK$130,000 per month to the Managing Director with
effect from 1 May 2011 in addition to the monthly director’s fee by a written

resolution signed by all members of the Remuneration Committee.
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Corporate Governance Report

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The members and attendance of the said meeting of the Remuneration

Committee are as follows:

Members of Remuneration Committee Attendance
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva 11
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert 11
Ms. Chan Ling, Eva 11

The directors of the Company are remunerated with reference to their
respective duties and responsibilities with the Company, the Company’s
performance and prevailing market situation. No individual directors of the
Company determines his or her own remuneration. Details of emoluments
of the directors of the Company for the year are disclosed in note 11 to the

financial statements.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company does not have a nomination committee.

According to the Bye-Laws of the Company, the Board has the power from
time to time and at any time to appoint any person as a director either to
fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. The nomination should
be taken into consideration of the nominee’s qualification, ability and
potential contributions to the Company. The Board has not considered the

appointment of any new members to the Board during the year.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements for each financial period which gives a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows for that
period. In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2011, the directors of the Company have selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently, made judgments and estimates that
are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a

going concern basis.

Auditor’s Responsibilities and Remuneration

During the year, the auditor of the Company received approximately
HK$4,268,000 for audit services and approximately HK$1,724,000 for

interim review and other non-audit services.

The statement of the auditor of the Company regarding their reporting

responsibilities is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on page 33.

Internal Controls

During the year, the Board has, through the Audit Committee, reviewed
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control procedures which include
the policies, procedures, monitoring and communication activities, standard
of behaviour established for safeguarding the interests of the Shareholders
and the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of
the Group's accounting and financial reporting function and their training

programmes and budget.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers” (the “Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as its own code for dealing in securities of the Company by
the directors of the Company. Having made specific enquiry of all directors
of the Company, the Company confirmed that all directors of the Company
have complied with the required standard as set out in the Model Code

during the year ended 31 December 2011.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) have pleasure to present
their annual report and the audited consolidated financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the

"Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its principal subsidiaries are

engaged in the business of hotel and leisure services and trading of securities.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 are set out in

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages 35 and 36.

The board of Directors (the “Board”) has resolved not to recommend the
payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010:
Nil).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A financial summary of the Group for the past five years is set out on page

162.

SHARE CAPITAL

Particulars of the movements in the share capital of the Company are set out

in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.
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CONVERTIBLE NOTES

Particulars of the convertible notes of the Company are set out in note 34 to

the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

In addition to the accumulated profits, under The Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended), contributed surplus is also available for distribution.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a

distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(@) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they

become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium

account.

In the opinion of the Directors, the reserves of the Company which
were available for distribution to the shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”) at 31 December 2011 were approximately

HK$340,969,000 (2010: HK$554,610,000).

BORROWING

Details of borrowings of the Group are set out in the note 33 to the

consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in the property, plant and equipment

of the Group are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES OF THE GROUP

Particulars of the properties of the Group as at 31 December 2011 are set out

on pages 163 and 164 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Cheung Hon Kit (Chairman)

Ms. Chan Ling, Eva (Managing Director)
Mr. Chan Pak Cheung, Natalis

Dr. Yap, Allan (retired on 25 May 2011)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert
Mr. Sin Chi Fai

In accordance with Bye-Law 99 of the Company’s Bye-Laws, Mr. Kwok Ka
Lap, Alva and Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert will retire by rotation and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general

meeting of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year without

payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly

or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2011, the interests and short positions of the Directors
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) (a) as recorded in the register required
to be kept under section 352 of the SFO; or (b) as otherwise notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of

the Listing Rules were as follows:—

Interests in the shares

Long position/ Capacity/

EECESER

RZZE——FT_A=+—HB KRAEER
Apm] s EERAE (E& R E S R AE R
(IBH MGG EXVER) 2 i fn - HERR
MREFETHRAZERLRE MaFEERE
KRB (a)— IR IR & 75 M B 1R B 35216 A
THFZERMATREE K ERN LT

BRI 2 ERBETAESETESRXSH
RSP R (R EST A BAAR B RE BB

BRSMERAR (BT : —

RE Gz fEsm
Approximate
Number of percentage of

Name of Director Short position Nature of interest shares held shareholding
EEEH HR/ KR B ERitE FEROBE REZBHNBEDHT
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva Long position Beneficial owner 7,500 0.000%
bV HE BERERA 7,500 0.000%
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, none of the Directors K EXFIHZEEN R-_ZE——F+=A

had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or its associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) (a) as recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 352 of the SFO; or (b) as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Scheme”) which was
adopted by its Shareholders on 3 May 2002 and amended on 27 May 2005,
is valid and effective for a period of 10 years since the date of adoption until

2 May 2012.

No options were granted, nor were there any options outstanding under the

Scheme during the year.

24

=+ A #MERRREENALRE) R HEEE
B CEE R EHRHEERGIEXVEL) 2B

HEROREFEPRERRIAR MEF
RO R (a)— IRIBE M E 1515352

BAETHRFZELMAARES  ROKEZEE
S R R AR R B B B SR

i

% IR

ZETZFRAZB REEHAQAZ
BRREE ([5HE)) YR _ZETRFRHA
ZHtHEREE] et E B R B R T
NERMREREZE-ZTE——FHAHA=A-

X

RERN W EAR IR Z AT 81 H BB = R 1T
B2 R A HE



SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Company to grant options to
employees, executives or officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
(including executive and non-executive directors of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries) and any suppliers, consultants, agents or advisers who will
contribute or have contributed to the Company or any of its subsidiaries
as incentives and rewards for their contribution to the Company or such

subsidiaries.

Subject to the condition that the total number of shares which may be issued
upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted and to be exercised
under the Scheme and any other schemes of the Company must not exceed
30% of the shares of the Company in issue from time to time, the total
number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the
Scheme, when aggregated with any shares subject to any other schemes, is
not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue on the

date of approval and adoption of the Scheme.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 27 May 2005, an
ordinary resolution was passed to amend the Scheme so that the Scheme sets
out that when determining the “refreshed” 10% limit under the Scheme as
at the date of approval of the limit, options previously granted (i.e. before the
date of approval of the limit) under the Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company (including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in
accordance with the schemes or exercised options) would not be counted for

the purpose of calculating the limit as “refreshed”.

The number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under
the Scheme and other share option scheme(s) of the Company to any
individual in aggregate in any 12 month period is not permitted to exceed
1% of the shares of the Company in issue, without prior approval from the

Shareholders.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Where any grant of options to a substantial shareholder or any Independent
Non-executive Director, or any of their respective associates (as defined in
Rule 1.01 of the Listing Rules), would result in the number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all options already granted and to be
granted to such person in any 12 month period up to and including the date

of the grant:
(i)  representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares in issue, and

(i) having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the shares of

the Company on the date of grant in excess of HK$5 million,

such grant of options shall be subject to prior approval of the Shareholders
who are not connected persons of the Company as defined in the Listing

Rules.

Options granted must be taken up within 30 days of the date of offer. The
consideration payable for the options is HK$1.00. Options may be exercised
at any time from the date of acceptance of the share options to such date
as determined by the Board but in any event not exceeding 10 years. The
exercise price is determined by the Directors and will not be less than the
higher of (i) the average closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant, (i) the closing price of the shares

on the date of grant or (iii) the nominal value of the shares of the Company.

As at the date of this report, the total number of shares available for issue
under the Scheme is 45,599,224 shares and represents approximately 6.93%

of the issued share capital of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or their spouses or children
under the age of 18 had any right to subscribe for securities of the Company,
or had exercised any such right during the year; and at no time during the
year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares

in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING

BUSINESSES

Interests of the Directors, other than independent non-executive Directors,
in competing businesses as at 31 December 2011 required to be disclosed

pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules were as follows:

Name of Director

ESEH

Name of entity which
businesses are considered
to compete or likely to
compete with the
businesses of the Group

HEBRRRRLAEBF 2 EBERFMHR

THARFECERER

Report of the Directors

EEEWE

EERAHFUERB 2EDR

R EMRAFESIOGETREEE OB
BRTESHRINR-F——F+ZA=+—H

RAEBRFUEEE 2 ERINT

Description of businesses of
the entity which are
considered to compete or
likely to compete with

the businesses of the Group
HEBRAREARER 2 EH
AREURTREERTEEZ
EREAT

Nature of interest of
the Director in the entity

ESRZERZREEEE

Mr. Cheung Hon Kit

REGEE

ITC Properties Group Limited (“ITC
Properties”) and its subsidiaries

e A B AR A
(TRt |) RE B AR

China Development Limited

R EERERAR
Artnos Limited

AR AR

Co-Forward Development Ltd.

ERERAERAT
Orient Centre Limited
REBRAFE

Super Time Limited
REARAQE

Asia City Holdings Ltd.
DHEEBRRT
Supreme Best Ltd.
Supreme Best Ltd.
Orient Holdings Limited

RASEARAT

Q7

Property development and
investment and hotel
operation in Hong Kong
and the PRC

REBRS B EERR
NIE R s BIE

Property investment in
Hong Kong
REENEWERE

Property investment in
Hong Kong
REENEWERE

Property investment in
Hong Kong
REENEWERE

Property investment in
Hong Kong
REENEWERE

Property investment in
Hong Kong
REENEWERE

Property investment in
Hong Kong
REENEWERE

Property investment in
Hong Kong
REENEWERE

Property investment in
Hong Kong
REENEWERE

Chairman and Executive
Director of ITC Properties

BHMELIRER
BITESF

Director and shareholder

BEERBRE

Director and shareholder

BEERBRE

Director and shareholder

BEERBRE

Director and shareholder

BEERBRE

Director and shareholder

BEERBRE

Director and shareholder

BEERBRE

Shareholder

PR

Director and shareholder
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)

Name of entity which
businesses are considered
to compete or likely to
compete with the
Name of Director businesses of the Group
HEBBEBRRELFEEZEXBERIUR

ESEHE THEERFUECERER

EEREGEMEE2ER @)

Description of businesses of
the entity which are
considered to compete or
likely to compete with

the businesses of the Group

Nature of interest of
the Director in the entity

HEBRUARLEE XY
EREURARERI ML
HREE® ESRZERCREENE

Link Treasure International Limited
FERBEERAF

Silver City Limited

IREFRAF

Cosmo Luck Limited

Cosmo Luck Limited

Ocean Region Limited

Ocean Region Limited

Treasure Avenue Limited

Earn Wealth Capital Investment Ltd.
=3 R-1: YN

Ready Access Ltd.

Ready Access Ltd.

City Corporation Ltd.

City Corporation Ltd.

As the Board is independent of the boards of the above mentioned entities,

the Group is capable of carrying on its business independently of, and at

arm’s length, from the business of those entities.
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Property investment in Director and beneficial

Hong Kong shareholder
REBENEERE EEREHERR
Property investment in Director and shareholder

Hong Kong
REBNEERE BEERBRR
Property investment in Beneficial shareholder

Hong Kong
REBNEMERE EaEMRE
Property investment in Beneficial shareholder

Hong Kong
REBNEERE EaEMRE
Property investment in Beneficial shareholder

Hong Kong
REBNEERE EaEMRE
Property investment in Beneficial shareholder

Hong Kong
REBNEMERE EaEMRE
Property investment in Beneficial shareholder

Hong Kong
REBNEMERE EaERE
Property investment in Shareholder

Hong Kong
REBREMERE R

BEER-

HRARRESFEBIN LUER 2 ESS
RSB A 58 DB F B BT N T H



SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS' INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2011, the interests or short positions of persons, other
than Directors, in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO

were as follows:—

(i) Interests in the shares

Report of the Directors
EEEWMSE

FERRRHEMAL Z2ES

RZE——F+ZA=+—H KRAFEFU
SNANERAR BB AR P R
SORB - —IIRIEE 5 R E (R G 33615 M #E
TFZBRMAEMT: —

(i) RIS

Approximate
percentage of
the issued share

Long position/ Capacity/Nature Number of capital of
Name of Shareholder Short position of interest shares held the Company
HEAFE
BITREZ
REEB "R KR Bt mtE FERBEE BMOEI L
(@) Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Long position Beneficial owner 1,132,450 0.17%
Charles (Mote 1)
BREIE L (Mit1) HE ExBEEA 1,132,450 0.17%
Long position Interest of controlled 194,336,000 29.55%
corporation
e RERRR R 194,336,000 29.55%
Ms. Ng Yuen Lan, Macy (Note 1) Long position Interest of spouse 195,468,450 29.72%
i@t (K1) HE i 195,468,450 29.72%
ITC Corporation Limited ("ITC") (Note 7)  Long position Interest of controlled 194,336,000 29.55%
corporation
EROCEEERERAF #E L VNG PR Eo 194,336,000 29.55%
(MErd%l) (M)
ITC Investment Holdings Limited Long position Interest of controlled 194,336,000 29.55%
("ITC Investment”) (Note 1) corporation
ITC Investment Holdings Limited HE gt VNI 35 194,336,000 29.55%
(“ITC Investment”) (#31)
Leaptop Investments Limited (Mote 7)  Long position Interest of controlled 194,336,000 29.55%
corporation
Leaptop Investments Limited (#/7£7) #1A& et UNCia 5 194,336,000 29.55%
Asia Will Limited (“AWL") (Note 1) Long position Beneficial owner 194,336,000 29.55%
BSEBRAR(IBE]) (Mit1) HE ExBEEA 194,336,000 29.55%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS (CONTINUED)

()

Interests in the shares (Continued)

FERRRHEMA LT ZRER (&)

() Rz (&)

Approximate
percentage of
the issued share

Notes:

(M

Long position/ Capacity/Nature Number of capital of
Name of Shareholder Short position of interest shares held the Company
HARAFRE
BITREZ
BRREB "R KR B, REREE FERBEE BMAOBEI T
(b) China Enterprises Limited (“CEL") Long position Interest of controlled 43,660,424 7.40%
(Note 2) corporation
China Enterprises Limited ([CEL ) HAE gt VNI 3 48,660,424 7.40%
(Hit2)
Long position Beneficial owner 250,000 0.04%
HE ERBEAA 250,000 0.04%
Cosmos Regent Ltd. (Note 2) Long position Beneficial owner 43,325,554 6.59%
Cosmos Regent Ltd. (###2) e ERBEBA 43,325,554 6.59%
AWL has interest in 194,336,000 shares of the Company and is a wholly- (1) 1§ & # B 194,336,000 Ax A& 2 7l Mk {0 < #

owned subsidiary of Leaptop Investments Limited which in turn is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of ITC Investment. ITC Investment is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of ITC. Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles (“Dr. Chan") directly and
indirectly holds a total of more than one third of the issued share capital of
ITC and is therefore deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company
held by AWL. Dr. Chan also personally holds 1,132,450 shares of the
Company. Ms. Ng Yuen Lan, Macy is the spouse of Dr. Chan and is therefore
deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company held by AWL and Dr.
Chan.

Million Good Limited and Cosmos Regent Ltd. have interests in 5,334,870
shares of the Company and 43,325,554 shares of the Company respectively
and are wholly-owned subsidiaries of CEL. CEL is therefore deemed to be
interested in the shares of the Company held by Million Good Limited and
Cosmos Regent Ltd. CEL also holds 250,000 shares of the Company in the
capacity of beneficial owner.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS (CONTINUED)

(i) Interests in the shares (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, the Company had
not been notified of any other persons (other than the Directors) who
had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares
which would be required to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock

Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

The change in the information of the Directors since the publication of the
interim report of the Company for the six months ended 30 June 2011
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules were

set out below:-

A discretionary bonus of HK$300,000 was paid to Ms. Chan Ling, Eva in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2011 in January 2012.

The updated biographic details of the Directors are set out in the "Directors

Profile” section of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31 December

2011.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
Laws although there are no restrictions against such rights under the laws in

Bermuda.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate amount of purchases and turnover attributable to the Group’s
five largest suppliers and customers were less than 30% of the total value of

the Group's purchases and turnover respectively.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, the Company

has maintained sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group did not make any charitable donations.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting of the Company

to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

CHEUNG HON KIT
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 7 March 2012
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte.

R « BB 61T

B M 2 B AN R

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

EBLEE88THR 35/F One Pacific Place
KNOEH—FE351E 88 Queensway
/ﬁ Hong Kong
{53
TO THE MEMBERS OF ROSEDALE HOTEL HOLDINGS LIMITED FHEBEEZERERAAE
HEBEERERAT (REZEZEAME T HERAE])

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Rosedale Hotel
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 35 to 161, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2011, and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies

and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements

are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B2 ELE 3R

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2011 and of
its loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

7 March 2012
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
FefHEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——41=H=—+—HILFF

2011 2010
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
—e——% —2-%%
B FET FHT
Continuing operations HEREXK
Turnover EHER 6 391,023 309,339
Direct operating costs HIEREERA (330,710) (283,948)
Gross profit EH 60,313 25,391
Interest income B A 8A 164 679
Other income and gains H MU R 8B 1,877 59,929
Distribution and selling expenses DIERIHERT (4,570) (3,366)
Administrative expenses THHAX (183,091) (230,783)
Finance costs BE A 9 (23,895) (56,517)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of R — KW E A RIFKIBZ
amount due from an investee B R EEE (6,383) =
Impairment loss recognised in respect of H &2 & E 2 B R EE B
other intangible assets (10,094) (27,735)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of #1% « #25 K i& 18 2 BRI E
property, plant and equipment g (31,150) (32,474)
(Decrease) increase in fair value of HIEEEREZATEE (CRL)
investments held for trading 0 (9,540) 3,317
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR 2 s 43 9,487 565
(Loss) gain on disposal of associates LERE ATz (E18) ke 9) 5,390
(Loss) gain on disposal of property, plant & ¥)2 - #22 & &2 (E18)
and equipment Wk (24,591) 4,075
Change in fair value of investment SEME L NTFEEE
properties 13,543 (34,000)
Share of result of an associate B —RBE AR EE (7,089) =
Share of result of a jointly controlled R —RERIEGIE RS E
entity - (1,705)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of  AJ fi H &% & 7 B HE R R A E5 18
available-for-sale investments - (3,638)
Fair value loss on derivative financial MESBMIAZ AT EEBEER
instrument (2,858) -
Loss before taxation BRI AT E 1B 10 (217,886) (290,872)
Taxation (expense) credit 18 (ZH)#ER 12 (1,445) 4,061
Loss for the year from continuing FBIKEEB 2 AFEEE
operations (219,331) (286,811)
Discontinued operations IR
Profit for the year from discontinued R EIR BT 2 RF 2 A
operations 13 - 699,724
(Loss) profit for the year REE (BE) =T (219,331) 412,913
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

e HWER

For the year ended 31 December 2011 ##% =& ——4 1 =H=—+—HIL K&

2011 2010
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
—e——% —2-%%
B FET FHET
Other comprehensive (expense) Hitr2mE (BxX) A
income
Exchange difference arising on BREFINRRMEREREGEEZ
translation of financial statements of fEH =5
foreign operations 60,146 60,516
Release of translation reserve upon o BT BB A B B R R B B A
disposal of subsidiaries (1,105) =
59,041 60,516
Total comprehensive (expense) income  AFE 2 () WA LLEE
for the year (160,290) 473,429
Loss for the year attributable to: NEEEEATIATERN:
Owners of the Company PIN/NEEZEN
— Loss for the year from continuing —RHBREER
operations AKEEEE (206,643) (269,041)
— Profit for the year from —RIEREXEB
discontinued operations NE E A - 737,487
(Loss) profit for the year attributable KRNBHEE AEBGARFEE
to owners of the Company (B8 )& (206,643) 468,446
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR
— Loss for the year from continuing —RBEREEBZ
operations REEEE (12,688) (17,770)
— Loss for the year from —RIEEEHEE 2
discontinued operations REEFEE - (37,763)
Loss for the year attributable to IR ERERANEEERE
non-controlling interests (12,688) (55,533)
Total comprehensive (expense) income & (BT ) WA 58
attributable to: THIA TR
Owners of the Company ZA/NCIEZ 2N (153,674) 519,232
Non-controlling interests AR (6,616) (45,803)
(160,290) 473,429
HK$ HK$
BT 7T
(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE B (BR) BT
From continuing and discontinued REFELE RIRIEEEER
operations
— Basic and diluted — B e 15 (0.31) 0.81
From continuing operations KA FELEES
— Basic and diluted —EARREE 15 0.31) (0.47)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

p/T\ jﬁ&ﬂﬁ e #&%:Z

At 31 December 2011 =% 4+ =H=—+—H

31.12.2011 31.12.2010 1.1.2010
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(restated) (restated)
—g——-5& -T ®TH -T TF
+=-A=+—-8B +=A=t+—H Al
B 5 FExT FAT FHBT
(&&71) (#&&7)
Non-current assets EmBE E
Property, plant and equipment L ER TS L 16 2,137,518 1,910,198 2,092,343
Investment properties kzé§%m§% 17 271,400 294,493 257,683
Interests in associates B N E) 2w 18 4 4 3,045
Interests in jointly controlled entities A /\H?‘ HERZ S 19 17,050 - 6,426
Available-for-sale investments AL E A 20 63,877 120,136 116,229
Other intangible assets Eﬁﬂﬂﬂﬁ/ﬁF 21 39,018 61,558 304,388
Loan to a jointly controlled entity “HT HFEHIE S
ZEM - = 11,252
Amounts due from associates JrE Uk B N B FRIE 18 33,996 41,085 =
Amount due from an investee JEU— %?&Txéﬂ A
KIE 24 - 17,216 =
Pledged bank deposits BEEBRITER 27 14,933 = =
Club debentures, at cost less SAES  RKAE
impairment MERRLE 520 520 541
Other assets Hith & E 22 32,861 43,116 127,721
2,611,177 2,488,326 2,919,628
Current assets MENEE
Inventories 75 23 6,088 5,874 6,452
Amounts due from related companies e B8 3 N R UIE - = 629
Amounts due from associates g NE Fr O] 18 - 5 24,489
Amount due from a jointly controlled JE U — R L [R]#2 4
entity 24 TAIE - - 1,086
Amount due from an investee FER— R E R A
FIE 24 12,300 - -
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 20 56,259 - -
Trade and other receivables 2 5 & H Ath FEUL AR R 25 64,220 68,172 345,138
Loan receivable FEE K - = 4,545
Investments held for trading FIEEEZIRE 26 15,682 19,011 5,239
Tax recoverable A Y2 (B 718 - = 3
Pledged bank deposits BEFRITER 27 - = 12,115
Trading cash balances B 5B E - - 182
Bank balances and cash R1TH ﬁ?&fﬁi 27 353,202 387,519 344,486
507,751 480,581 744,364
Assets classified as held for sale DEARBELEZEE 28 32,727 54,362 42,020
540,478 534,943 786,384
Current liabilities EIR=RET
Trade and other payables B 5 R H Ath FE T BR 3R 29 131,886 153,806 694,160
Provision for loss contingencies HANFIR 2 B IRRE 30 - - 4,639
Loan from a related company —REERNTEK 31 14,569 10,000 18,000
Amounts due to associates BTSN R RE - — 9,543
Tax liabilities RIHR R 14,138 14,694 18,728
Amount due to a related company FE —REAE R B FIA 32 100 - 2,562
Obligations under finance leases BB A 2 A HE
— amount due within one year ——FRNE Jﬁﬂmlﬁ - - 291
Borrowings — amount due EE ——FRNEIE®
within one year 33 483,880 61,537 153,665
Convertible notes IR 2 34 - 330,842 =
Amounts due to non-controlling ARG E =)
shareholders of subsidiaries f% 5 R IE 35 9,157 8,726 120,876
Derivative financial instrument MTESRMITA 36 2,858 = =
656,588 579,605 1,022,464
Liabilities directly associated with assets 25 3E BIFHEHE 2 &&=
classified as held for sale BEERABAzEE 28 - 1,734 =
656,588 581,339 1,022,464
Net current liabilities mENB &R (116,110) (46,396) (236,080)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R E B IS AR R R 3R

At 31 December 2011 =% ——4#+=H=+—H

31.12.2011 31.12.2010 1.1.2010
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(restated) (restated)
—B——fF —T—FF —T-TH
+=—A=+-8B +=A=+—H —H—H
Bt 5 FER FHET :F/§7E
(&=5) (' =35)
Total assets less current liabilities BELERRDAEE 2,495,067 2,441,930 2,683,548
Non-current liabilities FneaE
Obligations under finance leases BhE MR A 2 AR
— amount due after one year ——F &I HRIA - - 217
Borrowings — amount due BE——FE&EHHK
after one year 33 222,963 - -
Convertible notes Al AR E iR 34 - = 635,766
Deferred taxation EEFHIE 37 177,858 172,779 172,597
400,821 172,779 808,580
Net assets BEFE 2,094,246 2,269,151 1,874,968
Capital and reserves B R
Share capital i@ 38 6,577 6,577 109,199
Reserves fE 40 1,848,382 1,998,980 1,394,197
Equity attributable to owners of KRRER AEL#ER
the Company 1,854,959 2,005,557 1,503,396
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR A 239,287 263,594 371,572
Total equity A 2,094,246 2,269,151 1,874,968
The consolidated financial statements on pages 35 to 161 were approved ~ SR FE3SEEF161BZ A BREER =

and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 7 March 2012 and are

signed on its behalf by:

CHEUNG HON KIT
CHAIRMAN

CHAN LING, EVA
MANAGING DIRECTOR
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2011 ## =%

Attributable to owners of the Company

HERREREHX

—— A=t —HILFE

KAAREARE
(Accumulated
Convertible Asset losses) Non-
Share Share Special Warrant notes Translation ~ revaluation Other retained controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserves profits Total interests Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Note 40) (Note a) (Note b)
TER (RiHER)
B RAER RHERE  2RERER RRER Eifie REE(ER AR RERET & FEREE &t
Tin Tin Tin Tin Tin Tin T TEn TiEn Tin Tin Tin
(Hiita0) (Hista) (Hiitb)
At 1 January 2010 109,199 1,189,953 658,303 30,201 131,289 140836 1719 (38997) (119,107) 1,503,3% 3151 1,874,968
Other comprehensive income for the year FERRBRANA-AE
exchange difference arising on translation BNAANBEREELEL
of finandial statements of foreign EXZE
operations - - - - - 50,786 - - - 50,786 9,730 60,516
Proft for the year REERR - - - - - - - - 468,446 468,446 (55,533) 412913
Total comprehensive income (expense) FERRENA (Rx) 48
for the year - - - - - 50,786 - - 468,446 519232 (45,803) 473429
Issue of shares Eiriki 4 b} - - - - - - - R - 2
Reduction in share capital BRRA (103,743) - - - - - - - 103743 = B -
Transfer of warrant reserve upon AREEEERAREIGE
expiration of warrant - - - (30,201) - - - - 30201 - - -
Purchase of shares of subsidiares from REERRREENBATDZRR
non-controlling shareholders - - - - - - - (21,686) - (21,686) (61,407) (83,003)
Repurchase of convertible notes BRTARE 1117 58,067 - - (67,532) - - - 67532 59,184 - 59,184
Dividend paid BR%RE - - - - - - - - (54,601) (54,601) B (54,601)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-FHRAR = = = = = = = = = = (768) (768)
At31 December 2010 R=F-2F+-A=1-A 6571 1,248,048 658,303 = 63,757 191,622 1719 (60,683) (103,786) 2,005,557 263,594 2,269,151
Other comprehensive income for the year - FEEEMH2ERA-#E
exchange difference arising on translation EARAMBRREELEL
of financial statements of foreign EXZE
operations - - - - - 54,074 - - - 54,074 6,072 60,146
Release of translation reserve upon disposal of i EMBAREBRE L i fE
subsidiares = = = = = (1,105) = = = (1,105) = (1,105)
Loss for the year KERER - - - - - - - - (206,643) (206,643) (12,688) (219331)
Total comprehensive income (expense) FEFRENA (RR) 88
for the year - - - - - 52,969 > = (206,643) (153,674) (6,616) (160,290)
Transterof convertbl note resene RORERTARZRGR
upon redemption - - - - (63,757) - - - 63,757 - - -
Disposal o subsidiaries HERBAR - - - - - - (1,719) - 1719 - (14,615) (14,615)
Purchase of shares of subsidares flom REZECEE G PNA U
non-controlling shareholders - - - - - - - 3,076 - 3,076 (3,076) -
At31 December 2011 R-B—%+-A=1-8 6571 1,248,048 658,303 = = 244591 = (57,607) (244,953) 1,854,959 239,287 2,094,246
Note a: Asset revaluation reserve represented fair value adjustments of property, Wita: BEEGHFHEHEEASBUEAREZBRA
plant and equipment attributable to the equity interest previously held by TERS FEAG 2 W) 3 - 4 88 T2 B 4 O W R B
the Group at the date of acquisition of subsidiary in respect of acquisition BArrgR (M= —F—A—H#
prior to 1 January 2010. HEITZWENS) 2 AT EEAR-
Note b: When the Group increases its interest in an entity that is already an entity ~ F3Eb : EAREEE MEDESEGIE B2

controlled by the Group, it is accounted for as equity transaction. The
carrying amounts of the Group's interests and non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Other reserves represent the differences between the amount
by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of

the consideration paid that is recognised directly in equity.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HmEHEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2011 ##% =& ——4 1 =H=—+—HILFEF
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40

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—e——% —2-%%
FAR FHT
Cash flows from operating activities KEXBZHEeRE
(Loss) profit for the year AEE (EE) =T (219,331) 412,913
Adjustments for: FEE
Taxation expense HIEMA - 199
Share of result of an associate JEMR— R & N A A 7,089 396
Share of result of a jointly controlled JEME—RERTEHIEEEER
entity - 1,705
Depreciation of property, plant and M MRRBEINE
equipment 99,597 85,785
Interest income FEHA (164) (681)
Effective interest expenses of AMRREER 2 ERF S H
convertible notes 11,791 49,513
Other interest expenses HEMF SR 12,104 11,605
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, HEWHE HERZEZEE
plant and equipment (W) 24,591 (164,235)
Allowance for bad and doubtful RIBIREE
debts - 411
Fair value loss on derivative financial MESBMIAZ AT EEER
instrument 2,858 =
Impairment loss recognised in BfESFZ ERRREBE
respect of club debentures - 21
Impairment loss recognised in AHEERE 2 B ERRE
respect of available-for-sale &8
investments - 3,638
Impairment loss recognised in FEW —REEIEHERERIEZ
respect of amount due from BRI EE R
a jointly controlled entity - 16,469
Impairment loss recognised in R— RSB 2
respect of interest in a jointly EEE n«wﬁifﬁﬁiﬂﬁ
controlled entity - 4,712
Impairment loss recognised in HAth | B E 2 ERIRE
respect of other intangible assets B8 10,094 206,607
Impairment loss recognised in M B REREZEER
respect of property, plant and REEE
equipment 31,150 32,474
Impairment loss recognised in FEW —RIFIRE N RIFIAZ
respect of amount due from BRI EE S
an investee 6,383 -
Decrease (increase) in fair value of BIEEECIREZ AT ERE
investments held for trading A (1E0) 9,540 (3,317)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEHB AR 2 e (9,487) (717,501)
Loss (gain) on disposal of associates HERE AT 2 BE (W) 9 (5,390)
(Increase) decrease in fair value of ®EWEZ A TFEREGEM)
investment property VR (13,543) 34,000
Amortisation of other intangible H b & E 2 # 5
assets 5,115 9,357
Gain on extinguishment of IR R R 2 W as
convertible notes - (55,452)
Reversal of provision of loss B OIS A EIE 2 BFHEEE
contingency - (2,000)
Operating cash flows before movements B &S E B2 LLRERE
in working capital (22,204) (78,771)




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——41=H=—+—HILFF

2011 2010
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
=2 —F —E-TF
Gk FAR FA7
Movements in working capital LEESEE
(Increase) decrease in trade and other & 5 & E b FEUSBRE 55 (4240) k2>
receivables (4,160) 8,819
Increase in investments held for BIEER 2R &L N
trading (6,211) (10,455)
Increase in inventories FEEM (405) (989)
Decrease in other assets Hi&EERD 9,687 68,526
Decrease in trade and other payables E 5 REMEMERIR D (17,589) (206,333)
Decrease in amounts due to FETES & R R SRIBR
associates - (2,959)
Decrease in provision for loss NAEIR 2 IR ER
contingencies - (385)
(18,678) (143,776)
Cash used in operations REHEAAZES (40,882) (222,547)
Taxation paid in the People’s Republic of B ZE AR ZLME Z Fi 18
China 997 (5,391)
Net cash used in operating activities REXIFFIRA 2R e /F5E (39,885) (227,938)
Cash flows from investing activities &é;ﬁbwﬁém%
Additions to property, plant and BEMF ERREFHEUAR
equipment and investment HE Y
properties (444,389) (326,324)
Placement of pledged bank deposits FEERRRITIFER (14,933) =
Proceeds from disposal of property, e - HES MR E TS R
plant and equipment 74,073 306,661
Refund of construction cost iR B ER AN 17,221 =
Disposal of subsidiaries HEKB AR 43 80,904 657,947
Repayment from related companies FERNEER - 27,246
Interest received 2 U F S 164 681
Receipt from (advance to) associates WEE (B F)BEQR 5 (41,234)
Decrease in other receivables L i U AR O - 189,673
Proceeds from disposal of interests in Hj%bv‘ it N A 2 R TS RUR
associates - 70,745
Refund for deposits on hotel REEEEERERS
operation rights - 26,866
Repayment of loans advanced to EEEBANETRARIZER
certain companies - 4,545
Receipt in advance for assets held for ~ FESEWREUF(EH E & &
sale - 2,478
Advance to an investee AN T —RWIEERF] - (17,216)
Payment for renovation costs for ST E U EBFK A
investment property - (12,796)
Advance to a jointly controlled entity BT —REREHE - (4,131)
Acquisition of associates g3 /NG| - (4)
Net cash (used in) from investing KEES (FTA)MEZAEFE
activities (286,955) 885,137
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GAERETMER

For the year ended 31 December 2011 ##% =& ——4 1 =H=—+—HIL K&

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—e——% —2-%%
FER FHIT
Cash flows from financing activities RBEEE s HEeRE
New borrowings raised MEEE 691,343 3,537
Receipt of loan from a related WE —RER R E K
company 14,569 10,000
Advance from a related company —XBERABR 100 -
Redemption of convertible notes & o] A R = 4R (341,880) =
Repayment of borrowings EREE (46,037) =
Interest paid 21 F & (16,261) (20,671)
Repayment of loans from related EEEEATEX
companies (10,000) (114,381)
Proceeds from issue of new shares BITHRFTSIR IR
for cash - 33
Repurchase of convertible notes B AT AR iR - (230,736)
Repayment of amount due to 18 32 FE AT BT B8 1 R SRR AR AR 3R
non-controlling shareholders of I
subsidiaries - (112,355)
Purchase of shares of subsidiaries MR IEE B AR 2
from non-controlling shareholders dh) - (83,093)
Dividends paid B S - (54,601)
Repayment of amounts due to related (&8 f& B & A B FUA
companies - (13,064)
Repayment of obligations under BERERLY 2 FAE
finance leases - (118)
Net cash from (used in) financing BMEEFEFRE (FFAR)2HEE %58
activities 291,834 (615,449)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash R4 MIEEEEEH 2 (OB )#E N
equivalents Pt (35,006) 41,750
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F# 284 KR4 EEEH
of the year 387,519 344,668
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes  §MNE [ & &t 8h 52 2 689 1,101
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FrzEekRESEMEIER A
the year, represented by RITEHR KRB
bank balances and cash 353,202 387,519
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =%

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company
with limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the Company are

disclosed in the corporate information of the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its principal
subsidiaries are engaged in the business of hotel and leisure services
and trading of securities. In prior year, the Group terminated its travel

and other related services and luxury trains services.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong

dollars, which is also the functional currency of the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company have given careful consideration to the future liquidity and
going concern of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) in view of the fact that the Group's current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by approximately HK$116,110,000 as at
31 December 2011 and recorded recurring losses from continuing
operations of approximately HK$219,331,000 for the year then ended.
The directors of the Company are satisfied that the Group will have
sufficient financial resources to meet its financial obligations as they fall
due for the foreseeable future, after taking into consideration that there
were undrawn borrowing facilities of approximately HK$57,881,000 at
the end of the reporting period and that there are assets available to

pledge for obtaining further banking facilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4 A

e B RS R AR MY

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——4+=H=——HIFFE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA").
Amendments to HKFRSs Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2010
HKAS 24 (as revised

in 2009)
Amendments to HKAS 32

Amendments to HK(IFRIC)
—Int 14

Related Party Disclosures

Classification of Rights Issues

Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement

HK(IFRIC) — Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities

with Equity Instruments

Except as described below, the application of the new and revised
HKFRSs in the current year has no material impact on the Group's
financial performance and positions for the current and prior years and

on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures (as revised in
2009)

HKAS 24 (as revised in 2009) has been revised on the following two

aspects:

o HKAS 24 (as revised in 2009) has changed the definition of a
related party; and

o HKAS 24 (as revised in 2009) introduces a partial exemption from

the disclosure requirements for government-related entities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RS AR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——4 1 =H=—+—HILFF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures (as revised in
2009) (Continued)

The Company and its subsidiaries are not government-related entities.
The application of the revised definition of related party set out in
HKAS 24 (as revised in 2009) in the current year has resulted in the
reclassification of related parties that were identified as related parties

in previous years' financial statements.

The directors of the Company has reconsidered the definition of related
parties in accordance with HKAS 24 (as revised in 2009) and certain of
the companies previously considered to be related parties due to having
common directors/shareholders are no longer considered as related
parties, and accordingly, transactions with these companies are not

disclosed separately.

The related party disclosures set out in note 31, 32 and 48 to the
consolidated financial statements have been changed to reflect the
application of the revised standard. Changes have been applied

retrospectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
me R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——4+=H=——HIFFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 3. ER#HIIRKRERT2EEBM

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS BHREEA ([BEBMBRE
(“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED) Z8 1) #
HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures (as revised in BB ERE245 [FAEAL
2009) (Continued) ZHRE| (ZEZNFELKEET)
The effect of change in the definition of a related party described above FREEAT 2 BREHHARER T
on the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2010 is as —EF+ A=+ BIZ¥WBRRZFE
follows: NE
At
31.12.2010 At
(originally 31.12.2010
stated) Adjustments (restated)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-T—ZF R-ZE—%F
+=A=+-H +=A=+-8
(RE&HE) HE (&=E5)
FAT FAT FHET
Amounts due from related JEUR B8 N R IE
companies 2,583 (2,583) -
Trade and other receivables B 5 R H AR IR 65,589 2,583 68,172
Trade and other payables B 5 I E M e BR X 101,930 51,876 153,806
Amounts due to related FEST & N R FIE
companies 51,876 (51,876) -
Loan from a related company —RBEERRER 15,500 (5,500) 10,000
Borrowings BE 56,037 5,500 61,537
Total effects on net assets HEEFE RTE 293,515 = 293,515
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RS AR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——41=H=—+—HILFKF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 3. ERAHIRKEITZERHY
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS BHREEA ([BEBMBRE
(“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED) Z8 1) #
HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures (as revised in EAGTERE2 [FEEAL
2009) (Continued) ZHRE| (ZEZENFELKEET)
The effect of changes in the definition of a related party described FREEAT 2 BEREHHARER T
above on the financial position of the Group as at 1 January 2010 is as —ZF-A—B2UBIRAZ BN :
follows:
At
1.1.2010 At
(originally 1.1.2010
stated) Adjustments (restated)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-ZB—-ZF R-Z2—%F
—A—A —5-R
(RE2%£8H) HE (&=E5)
FAT FHT FHT
Amounts due from related JE U B8 N R IE
companies 36,610 (35,981) 629
Trade and other receivables B 5 R H A EUER IR 309,157 35,981 345,138
Trade and other payables B 5 & E MR BR R 631,703 62,457 694,160
Amounts due to FET R N R FE
related companies 65,019 (62,457) 2,562
Loan from a related company —REERRER 119,881 (101,881) 18,000
Borrowings BE 51,784 101,881 153,665
Total effects on net assets HEEFE RTE 1,214,154 - 1,214,154

The changes in the definition of a related party have had no impact on
the reported profit or loss and (loss) earnings per share for the current

and prior years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

liﬁ

3.

B aR M

For the year ended 31 December 2011 ## =%

——Ft+ZH=F—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised HKFRSs

that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 7

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13
Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 12

HKAS 19

(as revised in 2011)
HKAS 27

(as revised in 2011)
HKAS 28

(as revised in 2011)
Amendments to HKAS 32

HK(IFRIC) — Int 20

Disclosures — Transfers of Financial
Assets’

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities?

Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9 and
Transition Disclosures®

Financial Instruments’

Consolidated Financial Statements?

Joint Arrangements?

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities?

Fair Value Measurement?

Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income®

Deferred Tax — Recovery of Underlying
Assets?

Employee Benefits?

Separate Financial Statements?

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures?

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities®

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase
of a Surface Mine?

’ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

J Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RS R AR MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——41=H=—+—HILFF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9

amended in 2010 includes the requirements for the classification and

measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

o HKFRS 9 requires all recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement to be subsequently measured at amortised cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. All other debt investments and

equity investments are measured at their fair values at the end of

subsequent reporting periods.

In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of
an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income generally
recognised in profit or loss. At 31 December 2011, the Group had
available-for-sale investments of approximately HK$63,877,000

which are subsequently carried at cost less impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B AR MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 ##% =& ——4 1 =H=—+—HILFEF

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

The most significant effect of HKFRS 9 regarding the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities relates to the presentation
of changes in the fair value of a financial liability (designated as at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability. Specifically, under HKFRS 9, for
financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable
to changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of
changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income

would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.

Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk
are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Previously, under
HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as at FVTPL was presented in profit or

loss.

The directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 in the future
may have significant impact on amounts reported in respect of the
Group's financial assets. Regarding the Group's financial assets, it is
not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a

detailed review has been completed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R AR MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——41=H=—+—HILFF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and revised Standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures

In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued, including HKFRS
10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) and HKAS 28

(as revised in 2011).

Key requirements of these five standards are described below.
HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements that deal with consolidated financial statements

and HK(SIC) — Int 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities. HKFRS 10

includes a new definition of control that contains three elements:

(@) power over an investee,

(b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with

the investee, and

(c) the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount

of the investor’s returns.

Extensive guidance has been added in HKFRS 10 to deal with complex

scenarios.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 ## =%

3.

B aR M

——Ft+ZH=F—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and revised Standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures
(Continued)

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and HK(SIC)
— Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-Monetary Contributions by
Venturers. HKFRS 11 deals with how a joint arrangement of which
two or more parties have joint control should be classified. Under
HKFRS 11, joint arrangements are classified as joint operations or joint
ventures, depending on the rights and obligations of the parties to the
arrangements. In contrast, under HKAS 31, there are three types of joint
arrangements: jointly controlled entities, jointly controlled assets and

jointly controlled operations.

In addition, joint ventures under HKFRS 11 are required to be accounted
for using the equity method of accounting, whereas jointly controlled
entities under HKAS 31 can be accounted for using the equity method

of accounting or proportionate accounting.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities that
have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and/
or unconsolidated structured entities. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 12 are more extensive than those in the current

standards.
These five standards are effective for annual periods beginning on or

after 1 January 2013. Earlier application is permitted provided that all

of these five standards are applied early at the same time.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——41=H=—+—HILFF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and revised Standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures
(Continued)

The directors anticipate that these five standards will be adopted in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the annual period
beginning 1 January 2013. The application of these five standards
may have significant impact on amounts reported in the consolidated
financial statements. The application of HKFRS 10 may result in the
Group no longer consolidating some of its investees, and consolidating
investees that were not previously consolidated. However, the directors
have not yet performed a detailed analysis of the impact of the
application of these Standards and hence have not yet quantified the

extent of the impact.

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements. The
Standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair
value, and requires disclosures about fair value measurements. The
scope of HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both financial instrument
items and non-financial instrument items for which other HKFRSs
require or permit fair value measurements and disclosures about fair
value measurements, except in specified circumstances. In general, the
disclosure requirements in HKFRS 13 are more extensive than those
in the current standards. For example, quantitative and qualitative
disclosures based on the three-level fair value hierarchy currently
required for financial instruments only under HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures will be extended by HKFRS 13 to cover all

assets and liabilities within its scope.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R AR MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——4+=H=——HIFFE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement (Continued)

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that HKFRS 13 will be adopted in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the annual period beginning
1 January 2013 and that the application of the new Standard may
affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements
and result in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial

statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax — Recovery
of Underlying Assets

The amendments to HKAS 12 provide an exception to the general
principles in HKAS 12 that the measurement of deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities should reflect the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the entity expects to recover
the carrying amount of an asset. Specifically, under the amendments,
investment properties that are measured using the fair value model
in accordance with HKAS 40 Investment Property are presumed to be
recovered through sale for the purposes of measuring deferred taxes,

unless the presumption is rebutted in certain circumstances.

The amendments to HKAS 12 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2012. The directors anticipate that
the application of the amendments to HKAS 12 in future accounting
periods may result in adjustments to the amounts of deferred tax
liabilities recognised in prior years regarding the Group’s investment
properties of which the carrying amounts are presumed to be recovered
through sale. At 31 December 2011, the Group has investment
property of approximately HK$271,400,000.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR A

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——41=H=—+—HILFF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for investment properties, investments held
for trading and derivative financial instrument that are measured at fair
values as explained in the accounting policies set out below. Historical
cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in

exchange for goods.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its
subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain

benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income from
the effective date of acquisition and up to the effective date of disposal,

as appropriate.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used

by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are

eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from

the Group's equity therein.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R AR MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 ##% =& ——4 1 =H=—+—HILFEF

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-controlling

Interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance

(effective from 1 January 2010 onwards).

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's interests
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in

equity as other reserves and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it

o derecognises the assets (including any goodwill) and liabilities
of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the date when

control is lost;

e derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interests in the former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost (including any components of other comprehensive income

attributable to them); and

o recognises the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest, with any
resulting difference being recognise as a gain or loss in profit or

loss attributable to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RS R AR MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——41=H=—+—HILFF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries (Continued)

When assets of the subsidiary are carried at revalued amounts or fair
values and the related cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to
retained profits (accumulated losses) as specified by applicable HKFRSs).
The fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement or, when applicable, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a jointly

controlled entity.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence
and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint

control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in
these consolidated financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, investments in associates are
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of the associates. When the
Group's share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest
in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate),
the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf

of that associate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 ##% =& ——4 1 =H=—+—HILFEF

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Investments in associates (Continued)

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of an associate
recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill, which is

included within the carrying amount of the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether it
is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the
Group's investment in an associate. When necessary, the entire carrying
amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single asset
by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount, any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment

subsequently increases.

Upon disposal of an associate that results in the Group losing significant
influence over that associate, any retained investment is measured at
fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value
on initial recognition as a financial asset in accordance with HKAS 39.
The difference between the previous carrying amount of the associate
attributable to the retained interest and its fair value is included in
the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In
addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate on the same
basis as would be required if that associate had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or
loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when it loses significant influence

over that associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RS R AR MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——41=H=—+—HILFF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Investments in associates (Continued)

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the associate are recognised in the
Group'’s consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests

in the associate that are not related to the Group.

Joint ventures
Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a separate
entity in which venturers have joint control over the economic activity

of the entity are referred to as jointly controlled entities.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in jointly
controlled entities are initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the jointly controlled entities. When the Group’s share of losses
of a jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds its interest in that
jointly controlled entity (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the jointly
controlled entity), the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made

payments on behalf of that jointly controlled entity.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of a jointly controlled
entity recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill,

which is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable

assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

59

4.

FESITEE )
REEARZRE (@)

HEMEEREBEATIRS BREHY
ANFIRBIIEL Z BAEEEAMELA
AR EAEEY BEEOBERT 5
EAEEY GARBREER -

=% PN

T[] £ i B

HERHI BRI A B HRITRL Y B

/F

B A28 H

BN HKRAEHIZER KR
EE

o

~

HAZFERBZXEREERBENA
BE DA A GRAMBRE - RIEE S
e NARZEGERZREURANESS
MBRR IR A SRR L HIRH
AEBEREAREHERZBRREME
T W e A 8 o e 7S R [ B A1 R4 o

BERZEBEBRASNHSNERZAERZEH
Eciks (BREE FAKRETEERNZ
KFRZEFIERZFRE B h 2 EFE

HitgEsm)  AIARE SR ILHEREERGEZ

— R o MR A R B A A AR
EES HARKRZHRESH BB AK
B RIZARRBEINER -

U R A AN 8 AN 5= B A WU B B PR KA
RHEE CERABHNEERREZR
FHEZERNER HER/TARER
EEZEHE-

AEBEGEZAIHIEERBRZATH
ERH KB AR 2 E S BN BT EE
BEEN A B SR o

L
2011 F 3k

1R R 2

5

R 5 £



S

g
2
8,
Q)
o
o

1103 1oday |enuuy

p231WI SSUIP|OH [210H 2|ep2soy

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =& ——4 1 =H=—+—HILFK&

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Joint ventures (Continued)
Jointly controlled entities (Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether it is
necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the Group's
investment in a jointly controlled entity. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of

the investment subsequently increases.

Upon disposal of a jointly controlled entity that results in the Group
losing joint control over that jointly controlled entity, any retained
investment is measured at fair value at that date and the fair value
is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition as a financial asset
in accordance with HKAS 39. The difference between the previous
carrying amount of the jointly controlled entity attributable to the
retained interest and its fair value is included in the determination of
the gain or loss on disposal of the jointly controlled entity. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that jointly controlled entity on
the same basis as would be required if that jointly controlled entity had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or
loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that jointly
controlled entity would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss
from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when it

loses joint control over that jointly controlled entity.

When a group entity transacts with its jointly controlled entity, profits
and losses resulting from the transactions with the jointly controlled
entity are recognised in the Group’ consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the jointly controlled entity that are not

related to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——4 1 =H=—+—HILFK

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale
if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is
regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the non-
current asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its
present condition. Management must be committed to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within

one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of control
of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are
classified as held for sale when the criteria described above are met,
regardless of whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in

its former subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal group) classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount and fair value

less costs to sell.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and
services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and

sales related taxes.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when goods are delivered and

title have been passed.

Hotel revenue from rooms and other ancillary services are recognised

when the services are rendered.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——4+=H=——HIFFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised where it is probable
that the economic benefit will flow to the Group and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. Interest income from a financial asset
is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial

recognition.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a

straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Revenue from travel and other travel related services is recognised when

the services are rendered.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings held for use
in the production or supply of services or for administrative purposes
other than properties under construction and construction in progress
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment

losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment other than properties under
construction and construction in progress over their estimated useful
lives, and after taking into account of their estimated residual value

using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are

reviewed at the end of the each reporting period, with the effect of any

changes in estimate accounted for a prospective basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——4 1 =H=—+—HILFK

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction in progress includes plant and equipment in the course
of installation and for own use purposes. Construction in progress
is carried at cost less any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes
professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Construction
in progress is classified to the appropriate category of plant and
equipment when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other plant and equipment,

commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Properties under construction are stated at cost less any recognised
impairment losses. Cost includes professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their

intended use.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed as evidenced by end of owner-
occupation, any difference between the carrying amount and the
fair value of that item at the date of transfer is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in asset revaluation reserve
unless there is fair value loss which will be recognised in the profit or
loss immediately. On the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset,
the relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to retained

profits (accumulating losses).

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected
useful lives on the same basis as owned assets. However, when there is
no reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained by the end of
the lease term, assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term

and their useful lives.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——4+=H=——HIFFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the

carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for

capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values. Gains or losses
arising from changes in the fair value of investment property are

included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of the

investment properties under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the item is

derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the three
categories, including financial assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets. The classification depends on
the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at
the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by

regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees, points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories, including financial
assets held for trading and those designated at FVTPL on initial

recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the

near future; or

e tis a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that
the Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern of

short-term profit-taking; or

e itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging

instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes in
fair value arising from remeasurement recognised directly in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets and is included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income. Fair value is determined in the manner disclosed in note 42c.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
amounts due from associates, amount due from an investee, trade and
other receivables, pledged bank deposits, and bank balances and cash)
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment

loss on financial assets below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——4 1 =H=—+—HILFK

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as financial assets at FVTPL, loans and

receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured, they are measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses at the end of the reporting period (see accounting policy on

impairment loss on financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators
of impairment at the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial

assets have been affected.
For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged

decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is considered

to be objective evidence of impairment.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could

include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or

principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or

financial re-organisation; or

e the disappearance of an active market for financial asset because

of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade receivables and
loan receivables, that are assessed not to be impaired individually are,
in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group's past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period, observable changes in national or local economic conditions

that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash

flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——41=H=—+—HILFK

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such

impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables and loan receivable, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When
a trade receivable or loan receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of

amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been

recognised.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a

financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue cost.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees, points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——4 1 =H=—+—HILFK

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liabilities
are either held for trading or it is those designated at FVTPL on initial

recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing in

the near future; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent

actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging

instrument.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes in
fair value arising on measurement recognised directly in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit

or loss excludes any interest paid on the financial liabilities.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Convertible notes

Convertible notes issued by the Company that contain both the liability
and conversion option components are classified separately into
respective items on initial recognition in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument. Conversion option that will be settled
by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for
a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments is classified

as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component is
determined using the prevailing market interest rate of similar non-
convertible debts. The difference between the gross proceeds of the
issue of the convertible notes and the fair value assigned to the liability
component, representing the conversion option for the holder to
convert the notes into equity, is included in equity (convertible notes

reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the convertible
notes is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The equity component, represented by the option to convert the
liability component into ordinary shares of the Company, will remain
in convertible notes reserve until the conversion option is exercised
(in which case the balance stated in convertible notes reserve will be
transferred to share premium). Where the option remains unexercised
at the expiry date, the balance stated in convertible notes reserve will be
released to the retained profits (accumulated losses). No gain or loss is

recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the option.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——41=H=—+—HILFK

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Convertible notes (Continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible notes are
allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to the
allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity
component are charged directly to equity. Transaction costs relating
to the liability component are included in the carrying amount of the
liability portion and amortised over the period of the convertible notes

using the effective interest method.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other payables, loan from
a related company, amount due to a related company, borrowings
and amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest

method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership

of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or

loss.

The Group derecognises financial liability when, and only when, the
Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and

the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a
result of a past event, and it is probable that the Group will be required
to settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using
the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the

time value of money is material).

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is calculated using the weighted average cost method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all

estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and

deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects

neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests
in jointly controlled entities, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected

to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the

asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted

or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——4+=H=——HIFFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the

carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when
it relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the current and deferred tax are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity

respectively.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful lives are
carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful
lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate

being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are
measured at the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or loss in the

period when the asset is derecognised.

76

FTESEE )
BIE (3)

EERBABENEE 2T BRRAKEE
HREHRPERFUEAEEEERAE
FRHEMELE ZRIFER-

B RRE R TR N B s R - HE S BN E
hEEBARNEENERERZBEEH
ZERT - BVEA BB AT B 2R B Rl 0 Bl
Htt 2 ERARBEERNERPRER -

BIEEE

By WEMERFNER 2 BT EERK
AR R 5t 5 R AR REHREE RS
ERFHAR 2 BPEEREFHERFH
AEARE S - fhaH e R IR T &
V& 2 MBAERE T ARG MhFHE

ZHBRIRARBEEEREA R

BUHMER BV EEMEL 2 Waa sk B 18i%
EREECHEMSRRFEEERES
BCERAE INDERABHREEL
HIM R RS FER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——41=H=—+—HILFK

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the accounting
policy in respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if
any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which

a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows

have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable

amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income

immediately.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 ##% =& ——41=H=—+—HILFKF

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the

lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a

straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group
at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the
lessor is included in the consolidated statement of financial position as

a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and
reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses
are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly
attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s policy on borrowing costs (see the
accounting policy below). Contingent rentals are recognised as

expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-

line basis over the lease term.

Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an

expense in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate
benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a

straight-line basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——41=H=—+—HILFK

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Leasing (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including
any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of the

lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement
of financial position and is released over the lease term on a straight-
line basis except for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease and

accounted for as property, plant and equipment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 ##% =& ——41=H=—+—HILFKF

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates
of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign

currency are not re-translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
re-translation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included
in profit or loss for the period except for differences arising on the
re-translation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and
losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive income, in which
cases, the exchange differences are also recognised directly in other

comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars)
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period,
and their income and expenses are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity

under the heading of translation reserve.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——41=H=—+—HILFK

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group's
entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of joint control over a jointly controlled entity that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss. In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit
or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates
or jointly controlled entities that do not result in the Group losing
significant influence or joint control), the proportionate share of the

accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing

costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period

in which they are incurred.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Group's defined contribution retirement benefit
plans, including state-managed retirement benefit schemes and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme, are recognised as an expense when

employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to directors, employees of the Group and other

eligible participants

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the grant date is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period with a corresponding increase

in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of
the revision of the original estimates during the vesting period, if any,
is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects
the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share options

reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised
in share options reserve will be transferred to share premium. When
the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share
options reserve will be transferred to retained profits (accumulated

losses).
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——41=H=—+—HILFK

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 4, the directors of the Company are required to make
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may

differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of other intangible assets

When there is an impairment indicator, the Group takes into
consideration the estimation of future cash flows to be generated
from use of the intangible asset. The amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at a
suitable discount rate. Where the actual future cash flows are less than

expected, a further impairment loss may arise.

At 31 December 2011, an impairment loss of approximately
HK$10,094,000 (2010: HK$27,735,000) was recognised and the
carrying amount of other intangible assets was approximately
HK$39,018,000 (2010: HK$61,558,000). Details of the recoverable

amount calculation are disclosed in note 21.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Estimated impairment of available-for-sale
investments

In determining whether there is objective evidence of impairment in
relation to the Group’s available-for-sale investments in unlisted equity
securities, the Group takes into consideration of the decline in market
values of the properties held by its investees. Judgment is required when
determining whether it is necessary to make any impairment on the
investment cost in these available-for-sale investments by taking into
consideration of the decline in market values of the properties held by
the investees over the respective costs. Where the market price of the
properties declines more than expected, a further impairment loss may

arise.

As at 31 December 2011, the carrying amount of available-
for sale investments is approximately HK$120,136,000 (2010:
HK$120,136,000). The directors performed impairment assessment
of the Group's available-for-sale investments and no impairment loss

(2010: HK$3,638,000) was recognised in profit or loss during the year.

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of the assets exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is determined with reference to the fair value of the property, plant
and equipment less costs to sell or the value-in-use calculations. An
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the recoverable amount. Where the recoverable
amount is less than expected, a material impairment loss may
arise. As at 31 December 2011, the carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment is approximately HK$2,137,518,000 (2010:
HK$1,910,198,000) (net of accumulated depreciation and impairment
of approximately HK$519,986,000 (2010: HK$475,356,000)).
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——41=H=—+—HILFK

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment (Continued)

The directors performed impairment assessment of the Group's
property, plant and equipment and an impairment loss of
HK$31,150,000 (2010: HK$32,474,000) was recognised in profit or

loss during the year.

Depreciation of hotel properties

The Group's carrying amount of hotel properties as at 31
December 2011 was approximately HK$1,276,988,000 (2010:
HK$1,260,193,000). The Group depreciates the hotel properties on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of their remaining unexpired terms of
the leases and 2.5% per annum. The useful lives reflects the directors’
estimate of the periods that the Group intends to derive economic
benefits from the use of the Group’s hotel properties. During the year,
the useful lives of the hotel properties have been reviewed and these
estimates are considered to be appropriate. Included in the above
amount is a hotel property with a carrying amount of approximately
HK$243,778,000 (2010: HK$240,669,000) of which the useful life is
determined to be the shorter of 2.5% annum and the unexpired terms
of the leases. A subsidiary of the Company has been granted the right
to operate and manage the hotel in Guangzhou, the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC") for a period from January 1987 to January 2017,
and subject to certain conditions to be fulfilled by the subsidiary, the
operating period may be extended for a further period of 20 years.
Should the conditions not be fulfilled, the depreciation period of the
hotel properties would be adjusted and up to January 2017 only. When
estimating the useful life of this hotel, it is assumed that the right to
operate and manage the hotel can be extended for a further period of

20 years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——4+=H=——HIFFE

6.

TURNOVER

Turnover represents the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable from outside customers, net of discounts and sales-related
taxes during the year. An analysis of the Group's turnover for the year

from continuing operations is as follows:

EXE
EEBENF AR M EBONERE P 2R
BRFEBERTINRIFEERBETIE K&
ERARFE S BEEEBEEREITMN
T

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
g% —T-T4
FHERT T
Continuing operations BECEER
Hotel and leisure services B TE N AR AR 7S 391,023 309,339

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Executive Directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on types of

business activities that the segment carried out.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments under

HKFRS 8 are as follows:

1. Hotel and leisure services — hospitality services

2. Securities trading — trading of equity securities
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——41=H=—+—HILFK

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 7. 7EER @

Segment revenues and results PERAREE

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results from RNEEFELE N 2 WA KBS
continuing operations by reportable and operating segment. MERKEEDEITAT

For the year ended 31 December 2011

BE-Z2——S+-A=+—-HLFE

Continuing operations FFREEEEN
Hotel and Securities
leisure services trading Consolidated
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B JE R K B BR 7% HEEE RE
FHET FET FHET
TURNOVER R 391,023 - 391,023
RESULTS ES3
Amount excluding impairment £ (T BEEEMELEENR
loss recognised in respect of W R RRE B ER
other intangible assets, and BEER)
property, plant and equipment (122,255) (9,549) (131,804)
Impairment loss recognised in HihmILEEIA R  #ed Kk
respect of other intangible Hf 2 BRI EEE
assets and property, plant and
equipment (41,244) - (41,244)
Segment loss HHEEE (163,499) (9,549) (173,048)
Interest income FEUA 164
Share of result of an associate Bl —REE QAR ¥E (7,089)
Impairment loss recognised in FEW —REIRE R RIFHIE 2
respect of amount due from an 2 HERREE 1B
investee (6,383)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries  H& W B A 7z Yz 9,487
Loss on disposal of an associate & —REft & AR 2 E18 9)
Change in fair value of BEWEZ AFEBEZD
investment properties 13,543
Fair value loss on derivative MESBMIAEZ AT EBEER
financial instrument (2,858)
Finance costs SN (23,895)
Central administrative costs and I RITEUA AN ] Kk 7 Bo (b 3
unallocated corporate expenses  F 32 (27,798)
Loss before taxation (continuing  BRELRIESIE (FEL L ER)
operations) (217,886)
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 7. 7EER @
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Segment revenues and results (Continued) vk L ONSE S E )
For the year ended 31 December 2010 BE_ZT-—TFE+_A=+—HILFE
Continuing operations FREATE R
Hotel and Securities
leisure services trading Consolidated
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B JE R K AR 75 BHEE Ta
FHET FHET FHET
TURNOVER =2 309,339 = 309,339
RESULTS ES
Amount excluding impairment &8 (B E 2 E &= A
loss recognised in respect of My HEREHE2ZE
other intangible assets, and R EEE)
property, plant and equipment (165,026) 3,311 (161,715)
Impairment loss recognised in Hh R & E R e
respect of other intangible Hfh 2 BRI EEE
assets and property, plant and
equipment (60,209) - (60,209)
Segment (loss) profit 238 (B8 a7 (225,235) 3,311 (221,924)
Interest income FEHKA 679
Gain arising from repurchase and &[] Mt Al IR BB ELE 2
extinguishment of convertible Yz (HM45E8B)
notes (note 8B) 55,452
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & B A 7z Yz 565
Gain on disposal of associates S B R Rl 2 W e 5,390
Decrease in fair value of "EMEZ AT EBERD
investment properties (34,000)
Impairment loss recognised in A HERE 2 B ERRE
respect of available-for-sale &8
investments (3,638)
Finance costs Bl & R AN (56,517)
Central administrative costs HRRITERR AN SRR 9 Bo e 2
and unallocated corporate 53
expenses (36,879)
Loss before taxation (continuing  BRE{ATEIE (FELEETE)
operations) (290,872)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——41=H=—+—HILFK

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Segment revenues and results (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as
the Group’s accounting policies described in note 4. Segment loss
represents the loss from each segment without allocation of central
administrative costs, unallocated corporate expenses, gain arising
from repurchase and extinguishment of convertible notes, investment
income, finance costs, gain or loss on disposal of subsidiaries and
associates, impairment loss recognised in respect of available-for-
sale investments and amount due from an investee, change in fair
value of investment properties, share of results of an associate and
decrease in fair value of derivative financial instrument. There was
asymmetrical allocation to operating segments because the Group
allocated borrowings to operating segments without allocating the
related finance costs. This is the measure reported to the chief operating
decision maker for the purpose of resource allocation and performance

assessment.

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by

reportable segment:

7. 2 EER @

vk L ONSE S SE D

REDBZ TR BN T A LR
ZEFBREAR - DBEBRESOBREL
ZEER ERAARDEHRITHEEA R
PREERX BEKFHTBREFRE
g2 W EWA - BERA - HEHE
REIRBE AR Z WaREE AT E
BEMER—FERE AR HIA L CHER
MEBR REVNEZATEEZES B
E—FKBERREBRITESRTAZR
FEERD ARAEEBEEDEEL
BN MAESEEBREKRS  #E
BN RRME 2 DRI EMER -tk Ty m
TELERREZRUE SR E RN

THREERER

AT BAREBIZAIRED R ZEERARE
AT

Mkt

A

2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000
—E2——-F —E-ZF
FHET FHET
Segment assets PEEE

Continuing operations IFESERER
Hotel and leisure services B JE R R AR 7S 2,276,585 2,043,381
Securities trading BEEE 15,682 19,061
Total segment assets DEEERE 2,292,267 2,062,442
Investment properties REME 271,400 294,493
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 63,877 120,136
Interest in an associate R—REE R A2 s 4 4
Interest in a jointly controlled entity R—REREHIEE = 17,050 =
Bank balances and cash IRTTEBR KIS 353,202 387,519
Other unallocated assets Hiv RO B EE 153,855 158,675
Consolidated assets HAaBE 3,151,655 3,023,269
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BB EHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2011 ## =%

——F+ZH=AF—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

DEER ()
PTHEEEREE(®)

2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000
—T——F —T-TF
FHET FHT
Segment liabilities PEAE

Continuing operations IS EER
Hotel and leisure services B IR R R RS 766,504 186,962
Securities trading BHER 53 50
Total segment liabilities B ERE 766,557 187,012
Tax liabilities MIAE & 14,138 14,694
Deferred taxation EFETH IR 177,858 172,779
Convertible notes AHRREE - 330,842
Other unallocated liabilities EmApEAE 98,856 48,791
Consolidated liabilities HERME 1,057,409 754,118

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and allocating

resources between segments:

e all assets are allocated to operating segments other than assets

relating to discontinued operations, investment properties,

interests in associates, interest in a jointly controlled entity,

available-for-sale investments, bank balances and cash and other

unallocated assets; and

o all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than

liabilities relating to discontinued operations, current and deferred

tax liabilities, convertible notes and other unallocated liabilities.
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7. 2 EER @

Other segment information Hip 2 EEHR
2011 —=2——fF
Continuing operations FFREAEEK
Hotel and Securities
leisure services trading Segment total
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B S RARFE BRI EHEE AEAE
FET FERT FET
Amounts included in the measure 3= ’\iﬁ/mﬂ_ﬁzﬁiﬁ%_ﬁz o
of segment profit or loss or BERTAZRIE
segment assets:
Decrease in fair value of BIEEBERERATEBERD
investments held for trading - (9,540) (9,540)
Amortisation of other intangible  E i 8 /7 & B ~ # §
assets 5,115 - 5,115
Addition to non-current assets  JE;RENE E L N 447,015 - 447,015
Depreciation of property, M WREBEZNE
plant and equipment 95,081 - 95,081
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE HERZEZEE
plant and equipment 24,591 - 24,591
2010 —E-TF
Continuing operations FRAEAE & K
Hotel and Securities
leisure services trading Segment total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B TE R K AR 75 BHEE DEEAE
FHET FHET FHTT
Amounts included in the measure 3= “%E/mﬂ_ﬁzﬁéﬁ%_k 3
of segment profit or loss or BERTAZRIE
segment assets:
Increase in fair value of BIEEERE AT EEEMN
investments held for trading - 3,317 3,317
Amortisation of other intangible — E i /7 & B ~ # §
assets 9,357 - 9,357
Addition to non-current assets  JE;RENE E= 1L N 303,057 = 303,057
Depreciation of property, M WREEEZNE
plant and equipment 82,160 - 82,160
Gain on disposal of property, S e REE 2 s
plant and equipment 2,787 - 2,787
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——4+=H=——HIFFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Other segment information (Continued)

Addition to non-current assets include property, plant and equipment

during the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010.

Geographical information

Information about the Group’s revenue from continuing operations
from external customers is presented based on the location of services

provided in respect of hotel and leisure services:

?EER ()
Hit 5 BER ()

REEZT——FR=ZZT—ZTF+=A
—t+—HIFE ERBDEELNBIED
ER/ YN

1t 13

BRAKEREREEBRBIBELZ
WA BB TR IR AR P A3 (L JE &
RERFME ) IR

2011 2010

HK$'000 HK$'000

—g——f —T-TF

Fit FHT

Hong Kong B 109,649 88,157
The PRC (excluding Hong Kong) FE(TNEERE) 281,374 221,182
391,023 309,339

The information about the Group’s non-current assets is presented

based on the geographic location of the assets as follows:

BERARBEFRBEE 2 ERIREEM
IR SR :

2011 2010

HK$'000 HK$'000

—z——f =

Fi#x THT

The PRC (excluding Hong Kong) FE(TEEESE) 1,731,326 1,916,497
Hong Kong BE 732,822 355,888
Others Hth 34,223 37,504
2,498,371 2,309,889

Note:  Non-current assets excluded financial instruments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——41=H=—+—HILFK

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Information about major customers

There is no revenue from any single external customers that contributed
over 10% on the total sales of the Group during the years ended 31

December 2011 and 2010.

No analysis of the Group's revenue from its major services and security

trading is presented as no discrete financial information is prepared

7. 7 EER @
EBRTEEF2EHR
REBE_ZE——FR_Z—ZFF+_H

=t+—HIFE WEREERE—IND
P ZWAEAEEEHEREBAEI0% °

VESIAEEREEEZRENES
BEZWADHN - RE /I ER DR

based on this analysis and the cost to develop it would be excessive.

8A.INTEREST INCOME

HELYBER MARRZIKAEEHB

8A. X E WA

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E2——F —E-—TF
FTHET FHET
Continuing operations BEKEER
Interest income on: RE TIEEZFEWA -
Bank deposits HRITF K 164 679
8B. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 8B. H b I A K Wz
2011 2010
HKS$'000 HK$'000
S —z-z%
FET FHET
Continuing operations HEREXK
An analysis of the Group's other income and  ZR&E Bz AU A Rz AT T -
gains is as follows:
Gain arising from repurchase and B0 TSR I MR AR E A 2 e

extinguishment of convertible notes (HM$7534)

(note 34) - 55,452
Exchange gain b 5 U 269 217
Sundry income FETFUL A 1,608 4,260

1,877 59,929
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 ##% =& ——41=H=—+—HILFKF

S

10.

FINANCE COSTS 9. REMRA
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
e —z-—z%
F#&xT FHIT
Continuing operations HEREXER
Interest on borrowings wholly repayable ARAFRNEHEEZEBEZFE
within five years 15,242 6,892
Loan facilities fee EXREER 266 849
Effective interest on convertible notes AR EE . BERFE 11,791 49,513
Total finance costs FEEL RN 27,299 57,254
Less: amounts capitalised BB EANME 2 B (3,404) (737)
23,895 56,517
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 10. BRBL AT 18
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—e—-% —=—%%
FERT FHIT
Loss before taxation has been arrived at after BFATEIEE k% (5T A) THIFIE
charging (crediting):
Continuing operations BEREER
Depreciation of property, plant and Y MBEREEZTE
equipment 99,597 84,001
Amortisation of other intangible assets HMEEEE 2 #iE 5,115 9,357
Total depreciation and amortisation e KRR 104,712 93,358
Auditor's remuneration ZE R & 4,268 3,937
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses B HER AL H 2 FEK A 43,886 36,574
Impairment loss recognised on club CHfER 2 ERRRERBRE
debentures - 21
Minimum lease payments paid in respect of 2T EYE v &HEBE S (5K
rented premises 65,856 65,837
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) {EE KA (BIEEEM ) 61,493 64,770
and after crediting: WEFA:
Gross rental income from retail premises HBRA1831,0007 T EHE A& & I
in hotel properties less direct operating (=ZZ—Z 4% 800,000/ 7T) 1&
expense of approximately HK$831,000 URBEDENZZTEERHZ
(2010: HK$800,000) HeEWARRE 20,952 18,294
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——41=H=—+—HILFK

11. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION AND HIGHEST

PAID EMPLOYEES

NEsMERESHFMES

Details of emoluments paid by the Group to each of the directors are as

follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2011

AEEXHTRESZMEFBEWT

BE-Z-——H+-A=t+-HLEE

Retirement
benefit
Salaries and Share-based scheme Total
Fees  other benefits payment contributions emoluments
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HER AR REEA
we HitEH XHRE HE L “aMe
TET TEx TR T THEx
Executive directors: WITES:
Mr. Cheung Hon Kit REGEE - - - - -
Dr. Yap, Allan* Yap, Allanf§ £ * - - - - -
Ms. Chan Ling, Eva BB at 240 1,040 - 8 1,288
Mr. Chan Pak Cheung, Natalis BRafLE - - - - -
Independent non-executive BUFRITES:
directors:
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva BEIRE 60 - - - 60
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert EEE T AE 60 - - - 60
Mr. Sin Chi Fai oy ita 60 - - - 60
420 1,040 - 8 1,468

* Dr. Yap, Allan retired on 25 May 2011
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——4+=H=——HIFFE

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND HIGHEST

PAID EMPLOYEES (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2010

NEsMERESHFMESR

(&)

HE-T-TE+-A=+-AILFE

Retirement
benefit
Salaries and Share-based scheme Total
Fees other benefits payment contributions emoluments
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ek JARR 17 RIKEF
ik H b SHAFE SRR Bme
THT FHT THT THT FTHT
Executive directors: WIEE:
Mr. Cheung Hon Kit REGEE - = = = =
Dr. Yap, Allan Yap, Allanf& £ = = = = =
Ms. Chan Ling, Eva BBt 240 1,500 - = 1,740
Mr. Chan Pak Cheung, Natalis BRafLE = = = = =
Independent non-executive BAUFMITES:
directors:
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva DRUEE - 50 - - 50
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert EEE A 50 = = = 50
Mr. Sin Chi Fai HEBEE 57 - - - 57
347 1,550 - - 1,897
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——41=H=—+—HILFK

11. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION AND HIGHEST 11.
PAID EMPLOYEES (CONTINUED)

No directors waived any emoluments for both years.

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,
one (2010: one) was a director of the Company whose emolument is

included in the disclosures above.

Except the one (2010: one) director as disclosed above, the emoluments

of the remaining four highest paid (2010: four) individuals were as

EEMERESHFMES

(%)

A P M 6 [ - 15 4 ({7 28 =5 1R 22 1 fr) M

AEBAMCBSHFMA LS —f1 (=F
—BE ) AAATEE  EHMER
EXBE-

BEXFREL M (ZF—FF: —f)
B AREXNTFHRTIAEM(ZF—

follows: ZE O RSFMA LT ZMEFIEE
RIX:
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—2——% —E-2%
FHExT FHT
Salaries and other benefits Fre hEAET 4,975 5,550
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RORAEFIFT 4 5% 92 95
5,067 5,645
2011 2010
—E2——F —E-ZF
Their emoluments were within LWTAREZMeER :
the following bands:
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7C & 1,500,000/ 7T 3 3
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ 7T £2,000,0007% 7T 1 1
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 ##% =& ——41=H=—+—HILFKF

12. TAXATION (EXPENSE) CREDIT

12. B8 (X H) E %

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
e —z-—z%
F#&xT FHIT
Continuing operations BEKEER
Current tax: BVEATR 1A -

PRC Enterprise Income Tax PR ZERTIEH (3,378) (1,597)
Underprovision in prior years BEFERETR (1,327) (73)
Deferred tax (note 37): EFERIE (FFEE37)

Current year AEE 3,260 5,731
Taxation (expense) credit MIE (X)) #EE (1,445) 4,061

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years. No Hong Kong Profits Tax is provided
as the Group incurred assessable loss for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the Group's

B BTGB AMEF 2 (G 5T RT A
R E165%: T8 - AR AL EREFE
B8RS R EE - B BT IRE B FE
T o

RETECEMETE((EXAER
E]) REERGBEURBHGD AEE S

PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards. BB AR 2B ER_TENF—-—H—H
FEA25% °
Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the loss before taxation RNEE 2 BB ELEE 2EARGERTRE
from continuing operations per the consolidated statement of B S EB 2 BRI A E B EITHRN
comprehensive income as follows: e
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
T —E-25
FERT FHIT
Loss before taxation BRA A& B (217,886) (290,872)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 16.5% &AM FT1S 5 L 16.5% 5 &5 2 Fi 1B 35,951 47,994
Tax effect of expenses that are not T TE FE B =R A5 M) IRy 1S AT HIRk 2
deductible in determining taxable profit Az BB E (64,988) (47,032)
Tax effect of income that is not taxable FAEE TE JE AR B0 A RF BB AR B 2
in determining taxable profit WA Z B8 32,695 31,144
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERZBIGBR 2R E (5.168) (33,858)
Tax effect of share of result of an associate G — K& R A HE 2w & (1,170) =
Utilisation of tax losses previously not A A AR BB EE
recognised - 558
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REAMBENEERLSE 2K B A A
operating in other jurisdictions TR E 2 & 1,613 4,586
Underprovision in prior years WAFEREBTE (1,327) (73)
Others Hit 949 742
Taxation for the year REZ 2B (1,445) 4,061
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——41=H=—+—HILFK

13. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 3 February 2010, the Group entered into a sale agreement to
dispose of its 90% equity interest in HKWOT (BVI) Limited (“HKWOT"),
which carried out all of the Group’s travel and related services
operations for a consideration of approximately HK$684,000,000,
subject to the pre and post-completion adjustments. The purpose of the
disposal is to realise the gain generated from the goodwill of the travel
and related services of the Group and to generate cash flows for the
expansion of the Group's other businesses. The disposal was completed
on 27 May 2010, on which date the Group passed the control of
HKWOT to C-Travel International Limited, the purchaser of 90% equity
interest in HKWOT (the “Purchaser”). The Group has retained the
remaining 10% interest in HKWOT as an available-for-sale investment

and carried at deemed cost less impairment, if any.

In addition, the Group had pledged its 10% interest in HKWOT to the
Purchaser for a period of three years from the date of charge (i.e. 27
May 2010) to secure for, among others, post-completion adjustments
and any claims or other losses in respect of any breach of warranties as
set out in the sale agreement. The Group also has restriction on transfer
of its 10% interest in HKWOT, in which the Group shall not sell, transfer
or dispose of its interest in HKWOT without the prior written consent

from the Purchaser.
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13. RIS 78

RZZE—ZTF_A=H AEEFTZ—H

&R - 1S ERHKWOT (BVI) Limited
(THKWOT ) Z90% Az - RIEX A
684,000,000/% 7T, ( AI {E 52 BX Al 2 58 Bk 14
FAE) - HKWOTEB ALK E A KB A IR
HERAABRGEES REEEZEMNE
B 3R 7 5K B ik 57 % AE R AR 7S 2 B P
EEZWE AREERESTE  AHAE
EEERAMES A -REEEERN
“Z-ZEFRA-TEBEXR A&EH
E R E B A HKWOT 2 12§l # % 52 C-Travel
International Limited (HKWOTZ90% &
AigEmZEBER [BER]) AEBEERE

HKWOTER T 2 10%#E 5 - EART Bt H S
& - WARER AR RE (205 ) I8k -

AN REEE #§ A RHKWOT,Z 10%#
wEHTFES BAFLAH(N=E—F
FRAZttR)BHABH=F HAER
(B BE) TREARREHERDE
R FTEU IR B 2 (R R R H MK o 7K
EERHKWOTZ 10% 25 2 E & I A R
H AREETNBERKEEHEAEEAE
THE  ERS RS E R HKWOT,Z 2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 ##% =& ——41=H=—+—HILFKF

13. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

On 13 March 2010, the Group entered into a termination agreement
to terminate the rolling stock purchase agreement (“RSPA”) with
the contractor of the Group’s luxury trains under construction.
The termination of the RSPA became effective on 3 May 2010, on
which date the Group's operation in the luxury trains services was
discontinued, all obligations of the parties under the RSPA has been
terminated and the luxury trains under construction was passed to the
contractor. Proceeds of approximately HK$277,931,000 (equivalents
to US$35,663,000) would be received upon the termination and was
settled during 2010. In addition a payable on construction cost of
approximately HK$233,909,000 was waived with the agreement with
the contractor. The purpose of the termination is to generate cash flows

to settle the debts related to the luxury trains services.

13. R IR (@)

R-ZZT—ZTF=FA+=H A5EHRH
ERSREINE 2 FEBA L — DRI
FURIESIBEE B (5 2B E %
BRI BERERAER - —F
FRERA=ZB&M AZER AEEZR
EIBRBEBERILEE  F|BEEH
BEANER 2 —EENBLLE TE
BREJNNBAEBRIEARE RIEHE
5 U B FIT 45 3R I8 £9277,931,0007%8 7t (48
% 735,663,000% 70) * B R —Z=F
BE N BREEERARN 2 B RIEL
233,909,0005% 7T B B 73k 22 7 165 7 i & A
RoRARIEZENEREER SRS

VABE 18 B 52 22 51| S5 IR 75 75 < B 7

The profit (loss) from the discontinued operations for the relevant IHEEEBN —_E—ZEF—-—A—HEH
period from 1 January 2010 till the date of disposal is analysed as B B H 2 AR 2% (B8 DT
follows: e
Total
Travel and Luxury discontinued
related services trains services operations
1.1.2010 to 1.1.2010 to 1.1.2010 to
27.5.2010 3.5.2010 31.12.2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HRER EE g
AE B AR 7% S =R 7% ES3h
—z-2% —2-%%F —2-%2%
—B—RZ —BA—RAZ —B—RBZ
—z-2% e L —2-%2F
AA=++tH ARA=H +=A=+—H
FHET FHET FHET
Profit of travel and related services jf iz % #8 B8 IR 78 = 3% 7| 40,740 = 40,740
Gain on disposal of travel and o ik % K AR R AR 7S 2 W as
related services 716,936 - 716,936
Loss of luxury trains services ST BRTE 2 B8 = (39,244) (39,244)
Loss on termination of luxury BIEREIE R 2 EE
trains services - (18,708) (18,708)
757,676 (57,952) 699,724
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13. R IEREEK (&)

T3 Ko AR R AR TS DA B SR EE 51| B8 AR 7S RIS IR
—ZFE-HA-HEHERMZEEN

13. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

The results of the travel and related services, and luxury trains services

operations from 1 January 2010 till the date of disposal were as

follows: N
Total
Travel and Luxury discontinued
related services trains services operations
1.1.2010 to 1.1.2010 to 1.1.2010 to
27.5.2010 3.5.2010 31.12.2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HRER ¥ rirge
18 B AR A% S =R 7% ES3
—z-®5 —z-%5 —z-®5
—B—RBZ% —BA—RAZ —B—BZ
—z-®%5 —z-%5 —z-%5
EA=-++tH HEA=H +=—BA=+—H
FHT FHIT FHTT
Turnover e 750,487 — 750,487
Cost of sales $H & A (644,641) = (644,641)
Investment income JERA 2 = 2
Other income Halr A 718 = 718
Selling expenses HERX (10,535) - (10,535)
Administrative expenses TERAX (50,486) (11,906) (62,392)
Finance costs BhE AN (149) (4,452) (4,601)
Impairment loss recognised R—REREG B w2
in interest in a jointly controlled 2 ERIBEE B
entity - (4,712) 4,712)
Impairment loss recognised B —RERZEFIEEEFIEZ
in respect of amount due BRI EEE
from a jointly controlled entity - (16,469) (16,469)
Share of results of associates ity NCIE (396) = (396)
Share of results of a jointly B —REAREHEBEE
controlled entity - (1,705) (1,705)
Profit (loss) before tax R ATE R (BE) 45,000 (39,244) 5,756
Taxation expense A (4,260) = (4,260)
Profit (loss) for the period RNEARE R A (E18) 40,740 (39,244) 1,496
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13. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONTINUED) 13. R IEREZEK ()
Loss (gain) for the prior period from discontinued operations including b e X 2 BT EERE (ka8
the following: EEETIE=
Total
Travel and Luxury discontinued
related services trains services operations
1.1.2010 to 1.1.2010 to 1.1.2010 to
27.5.2010 3.5.2010 31.12.2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i394 =E rige
AEBA AR A5 DI = R % EX
—E-FF —E-2F —E-ZF
—B—RZ —HA—RAZ —B—BZE
e —E-ZF e
FH=t++H EA=H +=A=t—H
FH&T FHT FH&T
Allowance for bad and doubtful —RZEIRE &
debts 411 - 411
Auditor's remuneration 1% E0E BN - 25 25
Depreciation e 1,731 53 1,784
Loss on disposal of property, HEYE  HeS NERE 2 BB
plant and equipment 4 - 4
Minimum lease payments paid ~ ENHEEMERREZ
in respect of rented premises S ERS AN
and equipment 9,559 2 9,561
Staff costs 18 B AR 28,283 1,463 29,746

Cash flows for the prior period from discontinued operations:

RIEREEB 2B

EHERERE:

Total

Travel and Luxury discontinued

related services trains services operations

1.1.2010 to 1.1.2010 to 1.1.2010 to

27.5.2010 3.5.2010 31.12.2010

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

HRIER RE g

AR B AR A% SR ES E

e —E-2F —E-BF

—A-BE -A-RE -A—-BE

e —E-2F —E-BF

EA=t++tH E +=—H=t+-—-8

FH&T FHT FHT
Net cash outflow from LB 7B RHFE

operating activities (4,839) (26,442) (31,281)
Net cash inflow from KEEB2RESRANFHE

investing activities 494,091 315,328 809,419
Net cash outflow from BEEB) 2B e FEE

financing activities (119) (112,355) (112,474)

Net cash inflows WEMAFR 489,133 176,531 665,664
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——41=H=—+—HILFK

13. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONTINUED) 13. RUEREXK @
The following is an analysis of segment revenues and results from travel T e N B AR TS DA I REE T BB RIS 75 2
and related services and luxury trains services operations. DERAREEDITIAT o
Total
Travel and Luxury discontinued
related services trains services operations
1.1.2010 to 1.1.2010 to 1.1.2010 to
27.5.2010 3.5.2010 31.12.2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
3353 EE wigE
AE B AR A5 5 = R % EL Ty
—z-2% —z-2% —B-%F
-A-AE -A—HE -A—RHE
—z-2% —z-2% —z-F
EA=t++tH HEA=H +=-BA=+—H
FHET FHET FAT
Turnover EE 750,487 - 750,487
Segment results PaR S 45,543 (11,906) 33,637
The following are the amounts included in the measure of segment FT R IR RABRARRTS A R R EE D B AR 5 3
profit or loss of travel and related services, and luxury trains services B Ba TS EER A ZRKIENT
operations.
Total
Travel and Luxury discontinued
related services trains services operations
1.1.2010 to 1.1.2010 to 1.1.2010 to
27.5.2010 3.5.2010 31.12.2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
3953 EE wigE
AE B AR A5 5 = R %5 EX 3y
—E2-=F —E-ZF —E-ZF
—A—HZE e el = —HA—BZE
—E2-=F —E-ZF —E-ZF
EA=t++tH EA=H +=A=+—8H
FHET FHET FAT
Depreciation of property, ME BRRFEINE
plant and equipment 1,731 53 1,784
Loss on disposal of property, HEYZE S MERE 2 EE
plant and equipment 4 - 4
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 ## =%

13. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

The net liabilities of HKWOT at the date of disposal were as follows:

——F+ZH=AF—HILFE

13. R IR (@)

HKWOTHR I E BBz B EFREa T

At
27.5.2010
HK$'000
S
—g-gF
EA=++H
FHT
Net liabilities disposed of FrHEZFaE (153,193)
Fair value of remaining 10% equity interest FT IR B HKWOTER T~ 10% IR A HE 25 2
in HKWOT retained (Note a) NEEE (HiiFa) (56,258)
Translation reserve realised FritIs o~ (& 5 s (1,160)
Transaction costs on disposal HEZRSHA 12,971
Gain on disposal &z W 716,936
Total consideration BRE 519,296
Satisfied by: F AR
Cash B& 684,000
Other payables associated with B 5T R 1% P REAE B 2 4t FE AT BR K
the post-completion adjustment (Note b) (KizEb) (164,704)
519,296
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HERMEEZHRSRAFRE:
Total cash consideration received BWBRERE 684,000
Bank balances and cash disposed of FTHEZRITESRNIRS (12,723)
Transaction costs paid on disposal HERMI N ZRBKA (12,971)
658,306
Notes: B 5
a.  The fair value of the remaining 10% equity interest in HKWOT was a. HKWOTH N10% Az 2 A FEE

determined by reference to the transaction consideration of 90%
interest in HKWOT less transaction costs paid on disposal.

JHZ2EBHKWOT 90% 25 2 X 5 KRB
HERYNZRSKANMETE

b.  Amount represented the net current liabilities of HKWOT at b. BREELIEEHKWOTR K E B ZR8

completion date of disposal and in accordance with the terms of the
sale agreement, the Group repaid such amounts to the purchaser
during the year ended 31 December 2010, as a reduction in the

consideration.

BAE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =%

13. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONTINUED) 13. R IEREEFKE ()

On 27 May 2010, the Group has also entered into a shareholders’
agreement (“Shareholders’” Agreement”) with the Purchaser upon the
completion of the disposal of its 90% interest in HKWOT (hereinafter
together with its subsidiaries collectively referred to as the “Disposal
Group”) to regulate their rights and obligations as between themselves
in respect of certain matters pertaining to the ownership, operations,

management and governance of HKWOT.

The Shareholders’ Agreement has, inter-alia, given the Group a put
option in respect of its 10% interest in HKWOT if (i) HKWOT has not
made a filing to commence an initial public offering (in accordance
with the applicable rules of the relevant stock exchange) on or before
the third anniversary of the date of the Shareholders’ Agreement; or
(i) there is any change in the scope or nature of a substantial part of
the business of the Disposal Group so that the revenue of the business
represents less than 50% of the aggregate revenue of the enlarged
business as at the date on which such acquisition completes and on
a pro forma basis for the immediately preceding financial year of the
Disposal Group; or (iii) there is a disposal of a substantial part of the
business of the Disposal Group or any transaction the effect of which is
that either (a) HKWOT will cease to own more than 50% of the shares
of Hong Kong Wing On Travel Services Limited (“WOTSL") carrying the
right to vote in all circumstances and to share pro rata in all distributions
of WOTSL; or (b) the Purchaser ceases to be the legal and beneficial
owner of more than 50% of the shares of HKWOT carrying the right
to vote in all circumstances and to share pro rata in all distribution of
HKWOT (either of these being a “Disposal Event”), except that the
Group has given its written consent(s) on such matters as mentioned
in (ii) and (iii) above, the Company shall have an option of requiring
the Purchaser to purchase all its 10% interest in HKWOT at an amount
in Hong Kong dollars equal to 20 times of the consolidated net profit
after tax of HKWOT as shown in the audited consolidated financial
statements for the latest full financial year as the date on which the

option is exercised.

The management has assessed the fair value of the aforesaid put option
at the date of the Shareholders’ Agreement and as of 31 December
2010 and 2011 and determined that the value of such option is not

significant.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——4+=H=——HIFFE

14. DIVIDENDS 14. RE
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000
e i —E-=F
FET FHIT
Dividends recognised as distribution FABRBDIRZKE
during the year:
Ordinary shares: T EA%
2011 special — Nil per share (2010: HK$0.10) —ZE——FHRIRESRTHE T
—ZF:0.108T - 54,601
The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment of a final RABEEITERRNEE_T——F

15.

dividend for the year ended 31 December 2011.

(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the following

data:

From continuing and discontinued operations

ToA=tT—RIEFEZREKRE -

15. 8K (Bi8) BF

AABFEEANEBEERERNEE (B
1B)BNIETIBEE

REFACERRILEERK

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
e —z-2%
FET FHT
(Loss) earnings attributable to the owners of I {Est & G AL E A K #5# (§518)
the Company for the purposes of basicand & FI| 2 A A El1#EH AL (F518)
diluted (loss) earnings per share AR (206,643) 468,446

Number of shares

KRB
2011 2010
—E2——F —E-TF
Weighted average number of ordinary shares FA{EzH 2 &A% E AN I #5558 (j&518)
for the purposes of basic and diluted (loss) 28 7% 2 3/ % N4 F 15 2
earnings per share 657,675,872 576,601,952
The calculation of diluted (loss) earnings per share for the years ended RetEBEZT—F K o
31 December 2011 and 2010 has not assumed the conversion of the A=+—BILEEzB8RES (BE)&
Company's then outstanding convertible notes as the potential ordinary A BB LB R R ERAREE 2T

shares are anti-dilutive during both years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——41=H=—+—HILFK

15. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED) 15. 8K (BE) BF &)
From continuing operations REFELSEER
The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share from continuing RAREE ANBEREFBLEESE 2T
operations attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the IREAR R S B TR T Y8R &

following data:

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
e —z-=5
F#&xT FHIT
(Loss) profit for the year attributable NAREE ANEBRAFEE (E1E)
to the owners of the Company ik ) (206,643) 468,446
Less: Profit for the year from R IE R TS 2 AN E R A
discontinued operations - 737,487
Loss for the purposes of basic and diluted REETERBIFEREEL 2
loss per share from continuing operations FRERREEEE 2 EE (206,643) (269,041)
The denominators used are the same as those detailed above for both EXEFARETESREAREE (&
basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share. B) BTz ZEHER -
From discontinued operation RERIEREET
For the year ended 31 December 2010, basic and diluted earnings per HE_E-—ZF+_-_A=+—HItFEXK
share from discontinued operations was HK$1.27 per share, based on BRIEREEB 2 BRERARETRNE
the profit for the year from discontinued operations of approximately BRR1.278 70 IR BRI R E X 2 A
HK$737,487,000 and the denominators detailed above for both basic £ [Z % 1 49737,487,00058 7T K S FraE
and diluted earnings per share. AR EBIRER R R 2 BBt

s
o

107

Rosedale

/N
2011 F 3k

RAE R A A

o
=

R 42



S

g
2
]
fol
o
o

1103 1oday |enuuy

P2)1WI SSUIP|OH [210H 2|eP250yY

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n\l-_]_\

B AR R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 ## =%

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

——F+ZH=AF—HILFE

16. Y% HBRFE

Hotel Office
Leasehold property Furniture equipment Construction
land and Hotel under and  Leasehold Motor and in
buildings ~ properties  construction fixtures  improvements vehicles  machinery Vessels progress Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
Note (a)
HE ERER HE BOERE
1#REF BENE nE  GAREE NERE hE REE hE HRIR fit
ThT ThT T Thr T T ThT ThT T T
HisEG)
cosT A
1 January 2010 RZF-F5-F-8 41060 1,518,757 234,800 43148 159,605 6,323 68,596 11,291 801,178 2,884,758
Currency realignment MERR - 53,061 - 392 4217 161 1,392 - - 59,223
Additions RE = 925 30,111 3318 278,157 - 3,342 132 11,055 327,040
Disposals HE (34,493) = = (1333 (4,215) (1,029 (2,539) - (698,366) (741,975)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEKBLR - - - (9,179) (15,395) (782) (16,898) (6,076) - (48,330)
Tranferred to investment ~ BAZRENX (Ki17)
properties (Note 17) - (87,899) - - - - - - - (87,899)
Transferred to assets ERERENERE
held-for-sale (6,567) - - - - - (696) - - (7,263)
At 31 December 2010 RZE-%%
T-R=1-H 1,484,844 264,911 36,346 422,369 4,673 53,197 5,347 113,867 2,385,554
Currency realignment KERR = 74,543 = 672 4923 249 2,184 = = 82,571
Additions RE = 8,797 395,178 4,527 34911 2,287 1,258 57 - 447,015
Disposals LE = = (923) (124,022) (426) (3.911) (4,442) - (133,724)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR - - - - (10,957) (121) 92 = = (11,170)
Write-off i = - - - - - - - (62794 (62,79)
Adjustment of cost with RARFHRERA
contractor - - - - - - - - (17,221) (17,221)
Transferred from construction  EEBEETHE
in progress - - - - - - 33,852 (33,852) -
Transferred to assets BRERENEEE
held-for-sale - - - - - - - (32,727) - (32,727)
At 31 December 2011 RZE——%
t-A=t-H - 1,568,184 660,089 40,622 327,224 6,662 52,636 2,087 - 2,657,504
DEPRECIATION AND HEREE
IMPAIRMENT
1 January 2010 R=%-%4-A-A 16,086 213,863 = 29,143 61,764 3,064 52,052 6,959 409,484 792,415
Currency realignment BEAR (29) 11,820 = 120 2,305 105 1,119 = = 15,173
Provided for the year REERE 1219 40,395 - 3350 36,174 1,025 3,83 339 - 85,785
Impairment loss recognised ~ REREZAESE
in profit or loss 2472 - - 30,002 - - - - 32,474
Eliminated on disposals H R (14,741) - - (856) (801) (825) (1,727) - (346,690)  (365,640)
Eliminated on disposals of ~ HEHBAAR M
subsidiaries - - - (7,373) (12,469) (345) (12,563) (5,842) - (38,592)
Transferred to investment  BAZRANF (Mz17)
properties (Note 17) - (43,899) - - - - - - - (43,899)
Transferred to assets BRERENEEE
held-for-sale (2,268) - - - - - (92) - - (2,360)
At 31 December 2010 RZE-%%
+-A=t-H 224,651 - 24,384 116,975 3,024 42,072 1,456 62,794 475,356
Currency realignment BEg% - 15,300 - 247 2,803 187 1,986 = - 20,523
Provided for the year rEERE = 51,245 = 3,120 39,834 882 2,837 1,679 = 99,597
Impairment loss recognised ~ REZBTHEEE
in profit or loss - - - - 31,150 - - - - 31,150
Eliminated on disposals HERHRE - - - (456) (29,449) (339) (3,768) (1,048) = (35,060)
Eliminated on disposalsof ~ HEKEAAE
subsidiaries - - - - (8,733) (21) (32) - - (8,786)
Eliminated on write-off RS - - - - - = = = (62,794) (62,79)
At 31 December 2011 RZE——%
+-A=t-H = 291,196 = 27,295 152,580 3733 43,095 2,087 - 519,986
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2011 R=B--%
tZB=1-R - 1,276,988 660,089 13,327 174,644 2,929 9,541 - - 2,137,518
At 31 December 2010 RZE-ZF
t-R=1-H - 1,260,193 264,911 11,962 305,394 1,649 11,125 3,891 51,073 1,910,198
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on

a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum, after taking into

42 A

e B A R AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——41=H=—+—HILFK

16. Y% - HBRFRHE )

VA B2 - 25 R AR TR B TIET R
FTRIBMEER  REGEEA TSI F R

account of their estimated residual value. =0

Leasehold land and buildings ~ Over the shorter of remaining MELTHRET TR A FIBRE B 502.5%
unexpired terms of the leases and (UBEEAE)
2.5%

Hotel properties Over the shorter of remaining BEDE TR A FIBRE B 502.5%
(comprising land and unexpired terms of the leases and (BELTHRET) (ABEERE)
buildings) 2.5%

Furniture and fixtures 10% —20% BRREE 10%—20%

Leasehold improvements 10% — 20% or the term of the lease, HEMEEE 10%—20% (KA EF

if shorter e AREERE)

Motor vehicles 8.33% —20% nE 8.33%—20%

Office equipment and 20% BAERERHER 20%
machinery

Vessels 5% e 5%

An analysis of the properties of the Group held at the end of the REERSERBAEREMTEZYNED

reporting period is as follows: o

Hotel Hotel property
properties under construction
BENE EREENE
201 2010 2011 2010
HKS000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
e =z-2% g e
TR THAT FET FEL

Medium term leases in Hong Kong REBZFHEL - - 660,089 264,911

Medium term leases in the PRC R Bz A TR A
(Notes a and b) (et akb) 1,276,988 1,260,193 - -

1,276,988 1,260,193 660,089 264,911
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Notes:

(@ Included in hotel properties at the end of the reporting period
is a hotel property with a carrying value of approximately
HK$125,548,000 (2010: HK$132,668,000) situated in Luoyang, the
PRC. The land use rights of the hotel property is currently held by
Luoyang Power Supply Bureau, a non-controlling shareholder of the
subsidiary holding the hotel property. Pursuant to a land use rights
agreement entered into between Luoyang Power Supply Bureau and
the subsidiary on 15 April 1999 (before the Group acquired the said
subsidiary in 2004), Luoyang Power Supply Bureau agreed to permit
the said subsidiary to use the land upon which the hotel property is
now situated for a term commencing from April 1999 to April 2049
for hotel use.

(b) Included in the hotel properties held under medium term leases in the
PRC of approximately HK$1,276,988,000 (2010: HK$1,260,193,000)
is a hotel property with a carrying value of approximately
HK$243,778,000 (2010: HK$240,669,000) of which a subsidiary of
the Company has been granted the right to operate and manage
the hotel in Guangzhou, the PRC for a period from January 1987 to
January 2017, and subject to certain conditions to be fulfilled by the
subsidiary, the operating period may be extended for a further period
of 20 years.

In view of the loss making from the hotel operations, the directors have
reviewed the recoverability of the carrying amounts of the Group’s
existing hotel properties and leasehold improvements at the end of the

reporting period.

The directors have reviewed the recoverability of the carrying amounts
of the Group’s hotel properties at the end of the reporting period. The
recoverable amount is estimated based on the recent market prices
of comparable properties with similar size, character and location and
the directors determined that the carrying amounts of certain hotel
properties exceeded their recoverable amounts. No impairment loss
(2010: HK$2,472,000) has been recognised in respect of the Group’s

hotel properties during the year.
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BEHBFEZOEMEZMNBARZIE
ERERIEBETMEEBIFH < RIFERE
MEERRZMBARR —LANE
MA+HA (RAEBE_ZTNFI
BEZ B A RAT) RT3 2 T Hb A REH
OB MEERREIE LRHEA

AFE AL E YRR RS 2 b -
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b RFPBEAFHBOFEZH
1,276,988,0008 0 (=T — T F :
1,260,193,0007% 7T ) B JE ¥ % B —
] BR 1 (B #9243,778,000/ 7t (=T —
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——41=H=—+—HILFK

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Due to the unsatisfactory results of some of the hotel operations,
the Group has disposed of certain leasehold improvements relating
to those operations during the year ended 31 December 2011. The
carrying amounts of these leasehold improvements disposed of were
approximately HK$94,573,000, resulting in a loss on disposal of
approximately HK$22,667,000.

The directors have reviewed the recoverability of the carrying amounts
of the Group's leasehold improvements in respect of hotel properties
under operating lease at the end of the reporting period. The
recoverable amounts of the relevant assets have been determined on
the basis of their value in use. The discount rates in measuring the
amounts of value in use were 12%. The directors determined that
the carrying amounts of the leasehold improvements exceeded their
recoverable amounts. Accordingly, an impairment loss of approximately
HK$31,150,000 (2010: HK$30,002,000) has been recognised in

respect of these leasehold improvements.
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ERIDBEEEB 2 EERE AEEE
REBEZTE——F+ZA=+—HIEF
EHERZEXKEMRcETHEYE
- ZEHEMEREIRABNR
94,573,000/8 7T FTES 2 HEBERLN A
22,667,000 7T °
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EECEMAEENCEHETNAEEY
EHEMERERSRBERE 2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 ##% =& ——41=H=—+—HILFKF

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

17. REME

HK$'000
FHET
FAIR VALUE NV EE

At 1 January 2010 RZZE—ZTF—H—H 257,683
Currency realignment B EFE 14,014
Additions NE 12,796
Transferred from property, plant and equipment ERAYE HERHE 44,000
Decrease in fair value recognised in the profit or loss Wiz HER 2 A F EERH D (34,000)

At 31 December 2010 and 1 January 2011 R-_ZE—ZTF+-_A=+—HK
—EF——%—H—H 294,493
Currency realignment EE(E R 7,839
Additions NE 778
Eliminated upon disposal of a subsidiary & —RETE A B R 8 (45,253)
Increase in fair value recognised in the profit or loss MR IEzEHER 2 A B E L N 13,543
At 31 December 2011 R_F——Ft+_H=1—8H 271,400

The Group's investment properties are situated on medium-term land

use right in the PRC.

The fair value at 31 December 2011 and 2010 has been arrived at on
the basis of a valuation carried out on that date by Norton Appraisals
Limited (“Norton Appraisals”) and Asset Appraisal Limited (“Asset
Appraisal”) respectively, independent qualified professional valuers
not connected with the Group. Asset Appraisal and Norton Appraisals
are members of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, and have
appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation of
similar properties in the relevant locations. The valuation was arrived
at using the capitalisation of the net income approach and direct
comparison approach. Direct comparison approach considers the
relevant market comparables as available in the locality as at the date
of valuation by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for

similar properties in similar locations and conditions.

112

REBZREWME T RF B2 P HI L3
e FRE -

RZBE——FRZE—ZEF+_A=+—
H 2 R FEES B4 b B AN R B % g i3
2B A B HERER Y BT
BRAR ([EHEBTE]) RPBEE
EEEMARRAR ([EENE]) RZ
BT HEEE BETERLEHEER
AEARBNEMEeEE HAREE
1% B JN A MR AR R R SO £ EE
215 BRMLETERFRAERNMEIE
REELEREN - ERLBIEEREH
A& E B BTG 2 i8R T %5 7] &t R (E
202 BRI B RO R BRI 2 AR M T
HAR 2 KB -

A



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =%

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group entered into
a rental agreement with a tenant for leasing out one of its hotel
properties. Accordingly, the property valued by Norton Appraisals
using direct comparison approach for hotel properties and land with
total fair value of approximately HK$44,000,000 (an impairment loss
of approximately HK$2,472,000 was recognised when comparing the
carrying value of approximately HK$46,472,000) was transferred from

property, plant and equipment at the end of owner-occupation.

The Group's property interest held under operating lease to earn rental

e B RS R AR MY EE

— 4t ZH =1 —HILFE

17. REWE ()

REBE_T—ZTFF+_A=+—HILF
B ASEEEBAFIVHS %  UHA
Heh —18EEY - Bk HBERET
HEFAEELBERBEEDE R L
HEITYEMGE YTREFHEREBRA
ME BERBEERATEELED
44,000,0007% 7t ( &1 8% [ {8 £746,472,000
BT - B HERIBEE1E4)2,472,00078

o) ©

AEBNELERERB URBESHEER

or for capital appreciation purpose is measured using the fair value Zliﬂ@ﬁﬁ?/ﬁz%%%f}_éﬂﬁﬁﬁ NEEER
model and is classified and accounted for as investment property. A2 WHBERARERIREYE-
18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. R E R E 2R
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000
—=2——F —E-FF
FHT FAT
Cost of investments in associates REEE QR ZRE KA
Unlisted investments EEMIRE 4 4
Share of post-acquisition losses FEMR U iE 12 518 - =
4 4
Amounts due from associates JrE Lk B = N B FRIAR 41,085 41,090
Less: Share of post-acquisition losses that are & : /G BB E KA Z
in excess of the cost of investment I B 18 B 1E (7,089) =
33,996 41,090
Less: Amount shown under current assets BREBEER TR - 5
Amount shown under non-current assets ERBEEBE TN AERE 33,996 41,085

The amounts due from associates are unsecured, interest free and
repayable upon written notice given from the Company. In the opinion
of the directors, the whole balance due from associates at 31 December
2011 and 2010 will not be repaid within the next twelve months and

accordingly is classified as non-current.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 ##% =& ——41=H=—+—HILFKF

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts on amounts due from

18.

REE DRz (o)
PSS A RIRE 2 RIEREES

associates:
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000
e —z-TF
FET FHIT
Balance at beginning of the year REV 2 A - 26,180
Eliminated upon disposals of associates o 5 B N R R 3 8 - (26,180)
Balance at end of the year RERZ G - =

Particulars of the Group’s associates as at 31 December 2011 and 2010

are as follows:

AEEZHBME AR T ——FR_FT—
+

TF+=-A=

—BZBEmT

Issued and Proportion of
Form of Place of paid up issued capital held
Name of associate business structure incorporation share capital by the Group Principal activities
‘000 2011 2010
BRTR AEERER
BENRERE EBERER MR AL Lt B BRERA ERTERILE TEER
T - —F-%F
Business Action Holdings Limited  Limited liability British VVirgin Us$1 45% 45%  Investment holding
(“Business Action”) company Islands (Note a)
Business Action Holdings Limited ~ AR EE A A EBEARES (E 45% 45%  BRERR
([Business Action | ) GED))
Linkful Return Limited Limited liability British Virgin Uss- - 50% Inactive
(“Linkful Return”) company Islands (Note b)
Linkful Return Limited HREMAA EBEARES -X7 - 50% EEEE
(TLinkful Return ] ) (PitzEDb)
Notes: Bt o
a. In February 2010, the Group, through an indirect wholly-owned a. RIZ—ZF-F FAEEBEB—FRKH
subsidiary, acquired 45% interests in Business Action from an BER2EAWBARM—BBELE=7
independent third party at a consideration of approximately BEBusiness ActionZ45%## - {EEX)
HK$4,000. #34,000/ 7T °
b. In January 2011, the Group, disposed of its 50% interest in b. RZZE—F— A AEBR—BEL

Linkful Return to an independent third party at a consideration of
approximately HK$390. Loss on disposal of associate of approximately
HK$9,000 was recognised in profit or loss in current year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——41=H=—+—HILFK

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

19.

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s

18. REF&E RN T 2 = (1)

AEBEBERNRZHMBERBEHRSIM

associates is set out below: T
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
S i —F-TF
FE&xT FHIT
Total assets BERE 110,781 111,837
Total liabilities BERHE (111,510) (107,869)
Net (liabilities) assets (BfE)EERE (729) 3,968
Share of net assets EIEEEFE 4 4
Turnover %1 389 12,556
Loss for the year REFEBE (9,466) (10,421)
Share of results of associates for the year REEZRHER
— Continuing operations — B EER (7,089) =
— Discontinued operations — R A TS - (396)
INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES 19. R REH BB 2 #E=
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
S —T-%5
FHExT FHIT
Cost of unlisted investments in jointly IR E 8 2 I ETIRE KA
controlled entities 36,927 19,877
Share of post-acquisition losses FEME W B 1R B 1R (15,165) (15,165)
Less: Impairment losses recognised B BERRZREBRE (4,712) (4,712)
17,050 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R

For the year ended 31 December 2011 ## =%

19. INT

B aR M

——F+ZH=AF—HILFE

ERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Group had interests in the

following jointly controlled entities:

19. RAREZEHER 2EHE (8

F—ER-F-FE A=t
ARERTRREHERAEE

Place of Proportion of
incorporation Class of registered capital
Name of entity Form of entity and operation shares held held by the Group Principal activity
2011 2010
RRALE AEEBEL
BERER BRES EEBE it R 43 48 Bl EMEARLE TEER
—g—-% -z-%TF
Sinomatrix Limited ("“Sinomatrix”)  Incorporated British Virgin Ordinary 50% 100%  Investment holding
Islands (Note a)
Sinomatrix Limited L] REARRES LAR 50% 100%  REZK
([Sinomatrix | ) RS
Tangula Railtours Limited Sino-foreign PRC Registered capital 49% 49%  Inactive
cooperative (Note b)
enterprise
EhRREIEERAA HOMEER S HE AR 49% 49% LEEX
(P3ED)

Notes: B &L :

a.  On 25 October 2010, the Group entered into an agreement with an a. RIZE—ZFE+A-THRB AKEHE
independent third party and the agreement entitled the counterparty —RBIE=FEIN— D E &
to purchase one out of two shares of Sinomatrix, a wholly-owned H T 524 8 F 77 R B B Sinomatrix
subsidiary of the Group, for a consideration of US$2,200,000 (BAKEZzZ2EWB A E) MK
(approximately equivalent to HK$17,050,000). The transaction was EF —iR - K {E7%2,200,000% T
completed in June 2011 and the Group has retained a 50% interest (&7 4917,050,0008 7T ) - Z B R
in Sinomatrix. Accordingly, Sinomatrix and its subsidiaries (“Sinomatrix SGRZZE——FNATK MAKE
Group”) ceased to be subsidiaries of the Company and Sinomatrix REB A SinomatrixZ 50%H# 2 © B It -
became a jointly controlled entity of the Company from that day. Sinomatrix & F i & 2 7] ([Sinomatrix

SEDTBEARRRZHBAR M
Sinomatrixi &% B B AN A 7 2 FERE
HlE S

b.  Upon the completion of the termination of RSPA (note 13), Tangula b. REZ-ZE—ZTF+-_A=+—HI

Railtours Limited became inactive during the year ended 31 December
2010. In January 2011, the Board of Directors of Tangula Railtours
Limited agreed the dissolution of the entity, which is still under
processing at the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——41=H=—+—HILFK

19. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

20.

(CONTINUED)

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's interest

in the jointly controlled entities attributable to the Group's interest

thereon, which are accounted for using the equity method is set out

below:

19. RAREZEHER 2ESE (®

BRAASERLRES B 2 et 2 B 75
ERBEHINET AEBRETEEZ
R Ty E MR E

2011 2010

HK$'000 HK$'000

R —z-TF

FET FHIT

Current assets mENE E - =
Non-current assets EMEBEE 46,038 =
Current liabilities mENBE (5) =
Non-current liabilities FEmBEE (29,777) =
Income recognised in profit or loss REEER WA - =
Expenses recognised in profit or loss RIES R Z X - 1,705

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

20. I ERE

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—e——% e
FHERT T
Equity securities IRATE 5

Unlisted shares, at cost FE TR - iLEANE 120,136 120,136

Less: Amounts shown under current assets  J& : R BIEEIE N~ < 5 (MsEb)
(Note b) 56,259 -
Amounts shown under non-current assets ERBEEBE T AERE 63,877 120,136
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——4+=H=——HIFFE

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (conTinuep) 20, AJ{t HE®RE (&)

Particulars of the Group’s major available-for-sale investments as at 31

December 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

RIE——FR T ZBF+_H=+—
H AEBEzXTERHEEREZFEN
T

Place of Paid up capital/ Proportion of
establishment/ registered nominal value of issued Interest attributable
Name of entity incorporation capital capital held by the Group to the Group Principal activities
'000 2011 2010 2011 2010
HRRE/ AEEREZERTER
BEEsHE gttty aMEE HEzLE AEEELER TEER
T —E--F —2-%F —E--F “E-%F
BMRSZHERBEBRAA  PRC US$8,000 25% 25% 25% 25%  Property investment
("EMIER") (Note a)
EMSBEsHERZERRAR FH 8,000% T 25% 25% 25% 25% MERE
(TEMER]) (MEa)
More Cash Ltd. British Virgin Us$1 6% 6% 6% 6%  Property investment
Islands
More Cash Ltd. RBHARES (E 6% 6% 6% 6%  MEERE
HKWOT (Note b) British Virgin US$0.1 10% 10% 10% 10%  Travel and related
Islands services
HKWOT (fizth) EBRAREE 0.1%T 10% 10% 10% 10%  REREBRS

The above unlisted investments represent investments in unlisted
equity securities issued by private entities established in the PRC or
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. They are measured at cost
less impairment at end of the reporting period because the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that their fair values cannot be measured

reliably.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——41=H=—+—HILFK

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2011, the directors of the Company take into
consideration of the market values of the properties held by their
investees and considered that they can recover fully the carrying value
of the investment. At 31 December 2010, the directors considered
that they were unlikely to recover fully the carrying value of the
investment due to the decline in market value of the properties held
by their investees. The directors have reviewed the recoverability of the
carrying value of the available-for-sale investments based on the recent
market price on an open market value. Accordingly an impairment loss
of HK$3,638,000 was recognised in profit or loss to write down the
carrying amounts of these investments to their recoverable amounts for

the year ended 31 December 2010.

Notes:

a.  Though a subsidiary of the Group holds a 25% interest in /&M $E =,
the directors considered that the Group cannot exercise significant
influence on the financial and operating policies of EM &5 and
accordingly, it is classified as an available-for-sale investment.

b.  During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Purchaser has
approached the Company to acquire the remaining 10% interest
in HKWOT held by the Company. The directors of the Company
determined to proceed the negotiation with the Purchaser on the
terms and conditions of the sale and a draft sales and purchase
agreement was in place. Accordingly, the interest in HKWOT is
reclassified to current asset at end of the reporting period. In February
2012, the Group entered into a definitive agreement with the
Purchaser to dispose of its 10% interest in HKWOT at a consideration
of approximately HK$73,600,000. The transaction was completed in
the same month.
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20. A HERE (&)

R_E——F+_A=+—8 AQF=E
SERIWREARFEZMENER
REAZEREABZE 2 REE N =

—ZTE+-_A=+—8 BHRAEERERD
ARAZHETETY MEERAEZH
KWEBREEREEI HETK-EFE
RESMHMERAFMESMATHEE
BEZEREEZ AIRERE Bt 78
E-T-TE+_A=t+-—HILEEZE
= P ERR — 28 3 203,638,000/ 7T Z R B
B1E - UHORZSRE 2 REEZ H A
el & %8 -

W

a.  ERAEE KB RQFREREMNR
525% 2 Ha EEFERRAEETRE
HEMBRR M B REERRITERE

TEN WEMNRRDESBR A
AfHERE -

b. HBEZZFT——F+-A=+—HLHF
B BHEBARQT LREADQTR
FHAHKWOTZ 8 TN 10%# s - AN A A
EFERTEEIZNE 2K RN
BEHEITRER  WEBREHEE REY
ﬁ°llit'75/\‘c'$ﬁﬁﬁi*§ﬁﬁ%'7§’\‘HKWOT
ZHEREENIERBEE - RN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 ## =%

B aR M

——F+ZH=AF—HILFE

21. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS HthBEEE
Hotel
Railway operating
intangibles agreements Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HBRETEE T I AR W &kt
FHT FHT FHT
CcoSsT R
At 1 January 2010 RZZE—ZTF—-H—H 352,302 217,531 569,833
Adjustment of cost of hotel operating £ A 58 22 [ 45 & 7 a8 X AN
agreements during the year - (26,866) (26,866)
At 31 December 2010 and R_ZE—ZF
1 January 2011 +ZA=+—HRK
—T——%—H—H 352,302 190,665 542,967
Disposals & = (7,746) (7,746)
Write-off i 58 (352,302) - (352,302)
At 31 December 2011 R-Z——%F
+=A=+—8 = 182,919 182,919
AMORTISATION ey
At 1 January 2010 RZZT—ZTF—HA—H 173,430 92,015 265,445
Charge for the year REEZH - 9,357 9,357
Impairment loss recognised RNEE D R EEE
in the year 178,872 27,735 206,607
At 31 December 2010 and R_ZE—ZF
1 January 2011 +ZA=+—HK
—T——F—H—H 352,302 129,107 481,409
Charge for the year REEZH = 5,115 5,115
Eliminated on disposal H S R ) 8K - (415) (415)
Eliminated on write-off S PRE 9 85 (352,302) = (352,302)
Impairment loss recognised REEERRBRERBRE
in the year - 10,094 10,094
At 31 December 2011 R_T——4F
+=A=+—8 - 143,901 143,901
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 December 2011 RZE——%F
+=ZRA=+—H - 39,018 39,018
At 31 December 2010 R-ZE—TF
+—A=+—8H - 61,558 61,558
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——41=H=—+—HILFK

21. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The above intangible assets have finite useful lives. Such intangible

assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the following periods:

Railway intangibles 16 years

Hotel operating agreements 6 years to 15 years

Railway intangibles comprised exclusive rights, trademark and affiliation
agreement. The exclusive rights entitled the Group to conduct an
exclusive tour train service related business on the Qinghai-Tibet
Railway in the PRC, which include conducting tour related services,
engaging in food and beverage service and lodging business, for a
contractual period of 16 years from the date of commencement of
the railway operation. The trademark allowed the Group to use the
brand “Tangula” and “Tangula Express” for railway operation while
the affiliation agreement was with an international hotel management
chain which provided hospitality services on the train and enabled
the Group to enhance its brand attractiveness of the train operations
and to capture the potential customers base of the international hotel
management chain. As the commercial railway operation had not
been commenced, there was no amortisation of the related railway

intangibles since their acquisition in 2007.

The hotel operating agreements entitle the Group to manage and
operate certain hotels exclusively in Macau and the PRC for a period
of 6 to 15 years (2010: 6 to 15 years). During the year ended 31
December 2010, the Group negotiated successfully with certain
hotel owners to lower the pricing of the respective hotel operating
agreements, resulting in approximately HK$26,866,000 (2011: Nil)
being refunded to the Group.
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operating results of the hotel and leisure services, the Group considered
these as indications that an impairment loss for other intangible assets
and related items of property, plant and equipment may have occurred.
For the purpose of impairment testing, railway intangibles assets
and luxury trains under construction have been allocated to the cash
generating unit (“CGU") of Tangula Group Limited (“TGL") and hotel
operating agreements intangible assets have been allocated to the CGU
of Asia Times Limited ("“Asia Times"”) and Sky Victory Resources Limited

(“Sky Victory”).

The recoverable amounts of these CGUs have been determined on
the basis of value in use calculation. The key assumptions for the
value in use calculation are those regarding the discount rates, growth
rates and expected changes to revenue and direct cost. Management
estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
CGUs. The growth rates are based on industry growth forecasts.
Changes in revenue and direct costs are based on past practices and

expectations of future changes in the market.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, as the directors
determined that the Group’s operation in the luxury trains services
was discontinued, the railway intangible assets of TGL had limited use
and resale value and accordingly, the carrying value of these assets
amounting to approximately HK$178,872,000 was impaired for the
year ended 31 December 2010. Further, the directors reviewed the
anticipated profitability and the anticipated future operating cash flow
of Asia Times and Sky Victory and identified an impairment loss of
approximately HK$8,000,000 and HK$19,735,000, respectively. The
aforesaid impairment charges were dealt with in the profit or loss for

the year.
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21. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 21. HBEEE (»
During the year ended 31 December 2010, due to the termination of HE-Z—ZF+_HA=+—HILFE"
the RSPA as described in note 13 and the shortfall from budget in the HRBEKRIESEEE & (R 135

At ) LA KPR R [ PR 75 A8 & AR R AN TR
B AEERANEBEEDRBREME
TWEEARIEEYE KR RRBIER
A A8 TR E R 18 o Bl BURUE - #IR
ﬁ?ﬁ%&ﬁ@%i5'J$E§J\@E§Tangula
Group Limited ([TGL]) 2 IR&EEE B
(FREeEEBM])  MBELSHEE
& E B9 B 2 Asia Times Limited ( [ Asia
Times | ) K& Sky Victory Resources Limited
(ISky Victory 1) 2B & EAH B

ERGELBM 2RO S FEACRRE
BEEFE FEERAEEZEERRER
BRITHR R ERER RFESARAREER
RNEBERHR - BEEFEARATLL R AT
PR AR5 YR G E LB
ZEBKEEEN L URZEFRSESE
B2 HFERR - EREDRETEER
TERI AR o WA R B KA S B Th iR B
BATHER LTS B & 28 2 FBRIRK
o

HE-_Z—ZTF+_A=t+—HLF
B AREFRARAKSEZ ZEINER
BEBELIL TGLZEEREFEERS

REEBEAR HRBE_T—ZF
T-A=+—BLLFE ZSEEAEN
178,872,000/ 7T 2 AR EI 1A B A © LE SN -
EEE 5 Asia Times X Sky Victory,Z 788
B RARBREEREME  WE
71l R (B &5 18 5 Bl £8,000,000/% 7T &
19,735,000/ 7T o LR E X H B R AN F
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——41=H=—+—HILFK

21. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

22.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, there is no impairment made
for Sky Victory as it has been disposed of during the current year
(see note 43) and no further impairment loss was recognised. For the
remaining intangible assets relating to Asia Times, the impairment
review was based on cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent
financial budgets of 3 years approved by management and forecast
over the exclusive licence period of operations, using a discount rate

of 12.0% (2010: 16.2%) and an impairment loss of approximately

HK$10,094,000 was recognised during the year.

HtEB\EEE @)

FASky VictoyBE REIZE T ——F +=
A=+—HIFERHE (RHME43) - i
W74 HESky VictoryVE BB - TR — 25
BERRERE - EREE B Asia TimesZ
B EERENREEREMSEM 2 &
=FUMBEEZReREEARBREE
MBRRHRAN 2R REEA F/H12.0%
(ZZE—TF:162% ) ZHBREEN I
TR 6 A BE R (E BT 4910,094,00078 7T

OTHER ASSETS 22. HthE=E
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
=F——% T %5
FExT FHT
Rental deposits and prepaid rental for hotel JREE& & HBeHe REMNES
operating agreements (Note a) (Mf&Ea) 788 7,975
Rental deposit (Note b) MERE (MEEb) 27,073 27,073
Other Hitb 5,000 8,068
32,861 43,116
Notes: Bt 5 -

(@) The amounts represent rental deposit and prepaid rental paid for hotel
operating agreements. The rental deposits are fully refundable upon
the end of the lease term. The hotel operating agreements entitle the
Group to manage and operate certain hotels exclusively in the PRC for

a period of 6 to 10 years.

(b)  The amount represents 6-month rental deposit paid for the lease of

the hotel property of Rosedale on the Park.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

an\

For the year ended 31 December 2011 ## =%

23.

24,

25.

B aR M

——F+ZH=AF—HILFE

INVENTORIES 23.7&
The inventories were carried at cost and represent principally food, GFEUKARTIER  FZAABEBKBIEF
beverages and general stores which are to be utilised in the ordinary FAZED ek —HKAm-
course of operations.
AMOUNT DUE FROM AN INVESTEE 24. B —RBEREATRE
The balance was unsecured, interest free and was classified as current ZERTEER - R E RN AZ WA
assets at end of the current reporting period in the view that the BoEARSEE RREAKREBE R —
Group entered into an agreement for the sale of its 100% interest B E = 5 HESino Vessel Limited (A<
in Sino Vessel Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group to B2 EMBAT)100% =] — 17
an independent third party, at a consideration of approximately 5% - R 18 49 12,300,000/ 7T ° i 8 H
HK$12,300,000. Through the disposal of Sino Vessel Limited, the £ Sino Vessel Limited » fEI — R IFIRE A
amount due from an investee will also be disposed. Sino Vessel Limited HETEHEEHE - R ——F+=H
did not have any other asset and liability as at 31 December 2011. The =-+—H - Sino Vessel Limited3 £& {F fa] H
transaction was completed in February 2012. HMEERBE ZXFZERZT—_F=
ATERK
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25. B 5 R H 1 FE W AR =X
At At At
31.12.2011 31.12.2010 1.1.2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(restated) (restated)
(Note) (Note)
A= ——F R_F—FF R-F—FF
+=—A=+—AH +=A=+—H —A—H
F#ET FHET FAT
(&eE75) (&%)
(HF3E) (HH3E)
Trade receivables 2 5 YRR 10,805 25,281 27,923
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B R AR AR - (2,577) (2,635)
10,805 22,704 25,288
Other receivables (Note) H e ARk (Bt ) 53,415 45,468 319,850
Total trade and other receivables B 5 & E M ERARR B 64,220 68,172 345,138

The Group allows credit period up to 30 days to certain customers. The
following is an aged analysis of the trade receivables presented based

on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——41=H=—+—HILFK

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

5. B R HMEWERR (®)

2011 2010

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E——#% —E-TF

T Tt

0 — 30 days 0%30H 6,983 7,704
- 60 days 31%E60H 2,244 1,915
- 90 days 61Z90H 816 1,685
Over 90 days FB3EI0H 762 11,400
10,805 22,704

Before accepting any new customer, the Group has assessed the
potential customer’s credit quality and defined credit limits by customer.
Limits attributed to customers are reviewed once a year, and the Group
reviews the repayment history of receivables by each customer with
reference to the payment terms stated in contracts to determine the
recoverability of a trade receivable. In the opinion of the directors of
the Company, 65% (2010: 34%) of the trade receivables that are

neither past due nor impaired have good credit quality at the end of the

reporting period with reference to past settlement history.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$3,822,000 (2010:
HK$15,000,000) which are past due at the end of the reporting period
for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the amounts are still

considered recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over

these balances.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——4+=H=——HIFFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but
not impaired

25. BEZ R EMBWRMR (2

EEMERREEZE S BYRRR
AR

2011 2010

HK$'000 HK$'000

—2——% —T-TF

T T

- 60 days 31E60H 2,244 1,915

- 90 days 61290H 816 1,685
Over 90 days FB3E90H 762 11,400
Total 45T 3,822 15,000

The Group performed assessment on individual trade receivables and
recognised allowance on specific balance.

AEESFEERE S EUER A
TR TR B

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts RERE 2B F

2011 2010

HK$'000 HK$'000

s —z-=T5

F#&xT FHT

Balance at beginning of the year REL 2 5588 2,577 2,635
Allowance for doubtful debts RORE - 411
Write off during the year F R (1,082) =
Eliminated upon disposal of subsidiaries o 5 BT B A ) B 8 (1,495) (469)
Balance at end of the year RERZ &8 - 2,577

No allowance was made for doubtful debts for the year. For the year
ended 31 December 2010, included in the allowance for doubtful
debts are individually impaired trade receivables with an aggregate
balance of HK$2,577,000, of which the Group had chased for
settlements from customers but the amounts remained unsettled.
The Group did not hold any collateral over these balances. Balance of
approximately HK$1,495,000 (2010: HK$469,000) was derecognised
through disposal of the Group's subsidiaries during the year.

Note: Included in the balances as at 31 December 2011 were prepaid
rentals and other deposits to certain independent third parties
in total of HK$35,906,000 in relation to certain hotel operating
rights in Macau and the PRC (2010: HK$30,461,000). In addition,
included in other receivable were balances of approximately
HK$1,279,000 (2010: HK$2,583,000) with companies which
certain directors of the Company are also directors of and/or have
beneficial interest in these companies.
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AEEVEELRERE - BHE-_Z—F
F+-_A=1+—HLEFE REEES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =%
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A T H = — HIEFEE

INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING 26. FIEEE 2 RE
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—2——% —z-z%
F#&xT FHIT
Equity securities in unlisted investment funds M IE LT IREE & 7 RANFE S
(Note) (B aE) 15,468 17,988
Listed securities EmES
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REE ETZIRAESH 214 1,023
15,682 19,011

Note:  The amount represented the investment in an unlisted private

investment fund which mainly invested in listed securities. The fair
value is established by reference to the price quoted by the fund
administrator. The Group can sell the equity securities to the fund
by written request from the Group to the fund administrator.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES

Bank balances carried interest at prevailing market interest rates of
0.01% (2010: 0.01%) per annum. The pledged bank deposits at 31
December 2011 carried interest at prevailing market interest rate of
0.01% per annum and were pledged for banking facilities used by
the Group. Included in the pledged bank deposits is an amount of
approximately HK$14,933,000 being pledged for a long-term bank

borrowing, accordingly, the amount is classified as non-current.

ASSETS/LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR
SALE

In June 2011, the directors of the Company resolved to dispose of a
vessel (“Vessel”). Since then, the directors have started negotiations
with several interested parties. The assets attributable to the Vessel,
which are expected to be sold within twelve months, have been
classified as a disposal group held for sale and are separately presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position. The Vessel is
included in the Group’s hotel and leisure services for segment reporting

purposes (see note 7).
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SALE (CONTINUED)

Major classes of assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are as

& (&)
DEABELE Y AERBETBERIM

follows: T~
M) E
and Sinomatrix
Vessel (note 43)
at at
31.12.2011 1.12.2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
)75 E R
Sinomatrix
ZMmE ( Fff5E43)
i i
S S
+=p=+-8 +=p-8
FHT T
Property, plant and equipment e Y] 32,727 4,903
Available-for-sale investments AIEHERE = 48,714
Inventories FE - 45
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E A E U R 3k - 700
Assets classified as held for sale DEAFBELREZEE 32,727 54,362
Trade and other payables B 5) K H th FE 7 BR 5K - (1,660)
Tax liabilities HEAE - (74)

Liabilities directly associated with assets HAMBRIELEZ

classified as held for sale BEAEZABEZAE = (1,734)

In December 2010, the Group entered into an agreement for the sale
of its 50.5% interest in E9)1| 75 Bl ZFEEEEBR DA (“HIIT
[E]"), a then 50.5% owned subsidiary of the Group to an independent
third party, at a consideration of approximately HK$3,519,000. The

transaction was completed in January 2011.

198
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29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Included in trade and other payables are trade payables of
approximately HK$10,287,000 (2010: HK$11,151,000) and the aged
analysis of the trade payables presented based on the invoice date at

the end of the reporting period is as follows:

29. B R E B R

FIAE S REAMENRR  RIABE S
#710,287,0008 T2 B HEMERR (=
—ZF:11,151,0008 7T ) * ME Z ERER
A 2 PSRRI A YR 2 fR ik
DR :

2011 2010

HK$'000 HK$'000

—2——% —T-TF

T T

0 — 30 days 0%30H 5,083 5,300
- 60 days 31%E60H 2,863 2,474

- 90 days 61Z90H 1,427 701
Over 90 days R0 H 914 2,676
10,287 11,151

The credit period on purchases of goods ranged from 30 to 60
days. The Group has financial risk management policies in place
to ensure that all payables are within the credit time frame.
Included in other payables are for hotel supplies of approximately
HK$20,175,000 (2010: Nil), advance receipt from customers of
approximately HK$3,273,000 (2010: HK$2,088,000), deposit received
of approximately HK$11,344,000 (2010: HK$11,386,000), payable
for administrative expenses of approximately HK$58,275,000 (2010:
HK $48,344,000) and interest payables on other borrowings of
approximately HK$2,777,000 (2010: Nil).

As at 31 December 2011, included in other payables were balances
of approximately HK$63,288,000 (2010: HK$51,876,000) with
companies in which certain directors of the Company are also
directors or a significant shareholder of these companies; or a
significant shareholder of the Company has beneficial interests in these

companies.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 ##% =& ——4 1 =H=—+—HILFKF

30. PROVISION FOR LOSS CONTINGENCIES

31.

30 RAREHZ B RERE

HK$'000

FHIT

At 1 January 2010 R=ZZE—ZTF—H—H 4,639

Utilisation during the year REZEHA (385)

Reversed during the year NEE# B (2,000)

Disposal of subsidiaries &S BT A A (2,254)
At 31 December 2010, 1 January 2011 and RZZE—ZTF+_RA=+—H8 = ——%F

31 December 2011 —H—H

The Group's travel and related services operation was involved in legal
proceedings with an ex-employee for claims relating to calculation of
tour escorts’ holiday compensation allowance in 2008. Judgement
was made in favour of the ex-employee in 2008 and the appeal of the
Company was dismissed in early 2009. Provision for loss contingencies
represented management’s best estimate of the Group’s liability
relating to the amounts which would ultimately be payable to ex-
employees and existing employees, which was based on information
from the Group's legal counsels, actual settlement for some of the
claims, and the estimated number of successful claimants. Such balance
was disposed of through disposal of the Group's travel and related

services operations during the year ended 31 December 2010.

LOAN FROM A RELATED COMPANY

This company is related because it has significant influence over the
Company. The loan is at variable-rate which bears interest at Hong
Kong Dollar Prime Rate plus 2% per annum. The weighted average
effective borrowing rate is 7% (2010: 8.4%) per annum. The loan is

unsecured and repayable within one year.
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32. AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED COMPANY 2. BN —XBERARKE
The amount due to a related company which has significant influence BN —REEAR (HEARFTABEXR
over the Company, is unsecured, interest free and repayable on TBN)FIATERR £ 8 RARRBA
demand. B3 -
33. BORROWINGS 33. 16 &
Effective interest rate Carrying amount
L gpiEs REE
31.12.2011 31.12.2010 31.12.2011 31.12.2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
S e i —g-% —z-3%
+=A=+-8 +=A=+-8 +t=ZA=+-H +=A=+—H
TER THEL
Bank borrowings BITEE
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate BERTRAZERS ([BERT
("HIBOR") plus 1.75% secured REHFE])MN1.75E
HKD loan FEEMETER - 2% - 42,500
People’s Bank of China (“PBOC") REARRIT([FEAR
Benchmark Deposit Rate times BIT]) FREEF R F
120% secured RMB loan 120% 8 HAAREER 8% - 3,703 -
HIBOR plus 2.4% secured HKD loan BRRITRAEREM4E
BEMETLER 2.7% - 230,000 -
Renminbi Benchmark Deposit and ARBTEFELERN =
Loan Rate times 110% unsecured MO EEHAREER
RMB Loan - 5.9% - 3,537
HIBOR plus 1.75% secured HKD loan ~ &/&8R 1T RZEHF S 01.752
BEMELER 2% - 405,000 -
638,703 46,037
Other borrowings HittE &
Fixed interest rate unsecured HKD loan [l 7E 7| & BB T EH 10% 10% 8,148 5,500

Hong Kong Dollar Prime Rate plus 2% B T&EEHE 122
(2010: Hong Kong Dollar Prime Rate ~ (ZE—Z5: BrmER

plus 2%) unsecured HKD loan Rl pN2E ) B AE T
BX 7% 7% 59,992 10,000
68,140 15,500
706,843 61,537
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 ##% =& ——4 1 =H=—+—HILFEF

33. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

33. 8 & (&)

31.12.2011 31.12.2010 1.1.2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(restated) (restated)
—B——fF —E-TF —E_TF
+=A=+—H +=A=+—H —HA—H
FET FHIT FHIT
(g&E51) (r=7)
Carrying amount repayable*: BEEBZREE:
Within one year —FR 78,880 19,037 111,881
More than one year but B —FETEAMF
not exceeding two years 16,963 - -
More than two years but HBAMFETBARF
not exceeding five years 206,000 = =
301,843 19,037 111,881
Carrying amount of bank loan that  3f 3F A 2 3R # 4 R 4B 51
are not repayable within one year —FREZAHRERE
from the end of the reporting REBERIGLZERITER
period that contains a repayment (3 AFRBERE) 2
on demand clause (shown under BREE
current liabilities) 405,000 42,500 41,784
706,843 61,537 153,665
Less: Amounts due within one year B BERBEEZ —F
shown under current liabilities M EI BRI 483,880 61,537 153,665
Amounts shown under non-current P AETBBEZHIE
liabilities 222,963 - -
*  The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in * ENREBEUERBHERASZHBEER
the loan agreements. HEAAEM -
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has the following EWMPLERK  NEB 2 ARBAEERE
undrawn borrowing facilities: ONSE
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—g——% —2—%5
FET FHIT
Floating rate — expiring beyond one year FENH R - —F 12 5 H 57,881 320,160
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =%

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

During the year, the Group obtained three new bank loans amounting
to HK$638,703,000 (2010: Nil) in aggregate. The loans bear interest
at HIBOR plus 1.75%, Renminbi Benchmark Deposit Rate times 120%
and HIBOR plus 2.4% per annum. They are repayable over a period of
3 to 4 years unless certain conditions are met. HK$405,000,000 have
been classified as current liabilities as the loan contains repayable on
demand clause. Bank deposits of approximately HK$ 14,933,000 (2010:
Nil) and hotel properties of approximately HK$1,322,046,000 were
pledged as securities for these bank borrowings as at 31 December
2011.

As at 31 December 2011,
approximately HK$8,148,000 (2010: HK$5,500,000) with a company

which has a common significant shareholder with the Company.

included in borrowings were balances of

Certain bank borrowings are secured by fixed charges over the entire

issued share capital of two wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

B WK

—— 4t ZH=1—HILFE

nv'ﬁ

33. 8 & (&)

FRN AEERBSZBHERITER A
4 638,703,000 T (=& —FF:
®|) ZEERDRRBARITRERE
n.75[E - AR EFHRELER K F120%
R B ERITR N B N2.4E 2 F F| K5t
8 BRIFERE TG TAER=ZZEN
EWE%o%%E%¢~mawqwmﬁﬁ
HEHBAREREREXMESEATE
BE-RZE—F+=ZA=+—H0'%
14,933,000 7T (= —F4F : &) 2 R7T
15 3% & #91,322,046,0007%8 7T 2 B )5 1) %
BT EAZERTIEBZER-
Eé: ——F+=—A=+—H8 EE8HE

HARNREERREERRZA
EZ,\\uﬁ%m’US,MS,OOOf%T_E (ZZE—ZF:
5,500,000 7T ) °

%} A

ETHRITEEUARRAMREEHE AR
EHE BTN ZE R EEA -

34. AR EE

The movement of the liability component of the convertible notes AHMRER ([R]B]) 2 B EIMORARE
(“Notes”) for the year is set out below: EzeEBEF|MT

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E2——F —T-TF
FET FH&T
Carrying amount at the beginning of the year R F ] Z BREE 330,842 635,766
Interest charge (note 9) FERZ (K&9) 11,791 49,513
Interest paid EIFE (753) (9,066)
Redeemed during the year FREE (341,880) =
Repurchased during the year F N[O - (345,371)
Carrying amount at the end of the year RERZRHEE - 330,842

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the conversion price of the
Notes was adjusted from HK$0.339 per share to HK$6.78 per share as

a result of the share consolidation effective on 2 February 2010.
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During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Company made an
offer to all the holders of the Notes (the “Noteholders”) to repurchase
its Notes, subject to the fulfilment of certain conditions precedent (the
“Repurchase Offer”). Under the terms of the Repurchase Offer, the
Noteholders can elect to receive cash, which is equal to 88% of the
outstanding principal amount of the Notes tendered on acceptance of
the Repurchase Offer (“Offer Consideration Money”), or new shares
of the Company to be issued and credited as fully paid at HK$0.60
per share to satisfy the principal amount of the Notes tendered on
acceptance of the Repurchase Offer (“Offer Consideration Shares”),
or a combination of both, as consideration for their Notes on their

acceptance of the Repurchase Offer.

Upon the closing of the Repurchase Offer on 5 August 2010, the
Company received valid acceptance in respect of the Notes in an
aggregate principal amount of HK$329,200,000, which the carrying
value of the liability component was approximately HK$345,371,485
in respect of which the Company had (i) paid in cash an aggregate of
HK$230,736,352 as the Offer Consideration Money; and (ii) allotted
and issued an aggregate of 111,666,000 Offer Consideration Shares to
the accepting Noteholders during the year ended 31 December 2010.
As the carrying value of the liability component repurchased was more
than the Offer Consideration Money paid, the Company allocated the
entire Offer Consideration Money of HK$230,736,352 to the liability
component. Accordingly, no portion was allocated to the equity
component. Gain on repurchase of the Notes, which were extinguished
immediately upon repurchase, of approximately HK$55,452,000 is
recognised in profile or loss. After the Repurchase Offer and as at 31
December 2010, the principal amount of the remaining Note was
HK$310,800,000 (2009: HK$640,000,000). The remaining Note was
fully redeemed on 7 June 2011 at 110% of the principal amount

totalling HK$341,880,000 according to redemption plan of the Notes.
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CONVERTIBLE NOTES (CONTINUED)

The new shares issued rank pari passu in all respects with the then

existing shares.

The Notes were split between the liability and equity elements. The
equity element was presented in equity heading “convertible notes
reserve”. The effective interest rate of the liability component was
9.35% per annum. No Notes where converted during the year ended

31 December 2010 and 2011.

As the Notes were matured on 7 June 2011, the carrying amount at 31
December 2010 was presented as a current liability and the Company

made a redemption of all outstanding Notes on the same date.

AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The amounts are unsecured, repayable on demand and interest-free.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT

During the year, the Group entered into an interest rate swap with a
bank which is not under hedge accounting. The major terms of the

interest rate swap are as follows:

Commencement date

Fa B

Notional amount

BRLH EIEGRE)

34.

35.

36.

Maturity date

e B R AR MY EE

AEF T H = — HIEFEE

ARRERE #)
BEETHRMNES T HEERERITZR
hEERSER-

ZEEBE ABABERETM D
WATIEFNR AR EEGHFE] —B 2
Emo-AESD 2 EFFHEAE.35% °
RBE_ZT—ZTFR_FT—F+=A
=+—HILEFE BEERELR.
ERZEEER-_E—F A+t BRH-
HWR—ZE—ZTF+_A=+—HZFEAE

2 AERBEE MARRERRBED
FIBREEZEE-

FEAT B B A Bl FEHE IR IR R K
15

ZERENEER ERERERRS
5o

fTE€mT A

MNERN - A EEE—RBTITT B

DA & 5t B TR 2 A R 45 1 o 3% R R 4= R
ZEBRFT :

Swaps

=14

HK$100,000,000 25 March 2011

25 December 2014

From 1.765% to
3 months HIBOR

100,000,0007% 7T —E——%F=A=+hH —mE H1.765EZ =188 &#
+=-—A=+HE IRITRIZER S
The fair value of the interest rate swap was at a loss of approximately F =15 8 2 A (BB & E5 18 492,858,000

HK$2,858,000 and was charged directly to profit or loss for the year.
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37. DEFERRED TAXATION 37. BRI
The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised and INTARAEFERBTFEEHRZEE
movement thereon during the current and prior years: BEEHBEE UEE@E2Z8H:
Accelerated
tax Fair value of
depreciation properties
on hotel on business Tax
properties combination losses Other
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
REHE O
BRI 2 MEZ
bR B 0 i B AFEE BBER Hit
FHET FHET FHET FAET
At 1 January 2010 RZZE—TF
—H—H 168,733 1,194 (1,802) 4,472 172,597
Currency realignment B 5,913 - - - 5,913
(Credit) charge to the RiEz (FFEA) bk
profit or loss (note 12) (MFsE12) (3,061) - 1,802 (4,472) (5,731)
At 31 December 2010 RZT—ZF
+=—A=+—H 171,585 1,194 - = 172,779
Currency realignment RS 8,339 = = = 8,339
Credit to the profit or loss R B25ET A
(note 12) (KtzE12) (3,260) - - - (3,260)
At 31 December 2011 R=ZB——F
+=ZHA=+—H 176,664 1,194 - - 177,858

As at 31 December 2011, the Group has unused tax losses subject

to the agreement of tax authorities of approximately 688,753,000
(2010: HK$657,434,000) available for offset against future profits. No

deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of HK$688,753,000
(2010: HK$657,434,000) tax losses due to the unpredictability of future

profit streams. Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the
PRC, the unutilised tax losses of approximately HK$55,276,000 (2010:
HK$99,991,000) can be carried forward for a period of five years. The

losses arising from overseas subsidiaries are insignificant, which will

expire after a specific period of time. Other unrecognised tax losses may

be carried forward indefinitely.

Tax losses of approximately HK$81,154,000 was disposed of through

disposal of the Group'’s travel and related services operations during the
year ended 31 December 2010.
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38. SHARE CAPITAL 38. IR &<
Number of
shares Amount
HK$'000
RO BB &8
FET
Authorised EE
Shares of HK$0.01 each at RZE—TF—H—H"
1 January 2010, —E—EFt-A=T—H8kK
31 December 2010 and —F——F%+-A=+—H
31 December 2011 BRREE0.01E T Z K 150,000,000,000 1,500,000
Issued and fully paid ERTRAR
Shares of HK$0.01 each RZZE-—ZETF-A—AEBKRAE
at 1 January 2010 0.0 T 2 1A 10,919,844,985 109,199
Issue of shares on exercise of warrants TR R AR HE 78 I BT AR 1D 352,462 4
Share consolidation & 1n & G (10,374,187,575) =
Ordinary shares of HK$0.20 each FREE.208 T LB 546,009,872 109,203
Capital reduction P& - (103,743)
Issue of shares on repurchase of Notes B O 2R AT G (Mi3E34)
(note 34) 111,666,000 1,117
Shares of HK$0.01 each at R-_ZE—ZTF+—-_A=+—8"
31 December 2010, —T——F—H—-HK
1 January 2011 and —E——%+-_HA=+—H1
31 December 2011 SREE0.01B T2 KD 657,675,872 6,577

On 2 February 2010, the Company had completed a capital
reorganisation which involved the following: (i) share consolidation: the
consolidation of every 20 then issued shares of HK$0.01 each into 1
issued consolidated share of HK$0.20 each; and (ii) capital reduction:
the reduction of the nominal value of each share in issue from HK$0.20
to HK$0.01 by cancelling paid-up capital to the extent of HK$0.19
on each issued share of the Company such that the then issued share
capital of the Company was reduced by the sum of approximately
HK$103,743,000 for transfer to the special reserve. Full amount of
HK$103,743,000 was then applied to set off against the accumulated

losses of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 ##% =& ——4 1 =H=—+—HILFEF

39.

40.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Scheme”), which was
approved and adopted by shareholders of the Company on 3 May
2002, enabling the directors to grant options to employees, executives
or officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries (including executive
and non-executive directors of the Company or any of its subsidiaries)
and any suppliers, consultants, agents or advisers who will contribute or
have contributed to the Company or any of its subsidiaries as incentives
and rewards for their contribution to the Company or such subsidiaries.
The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme, when aggregated with any shares subject
to any other schemes, shall not exceed 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company on the date of approval and adoption of the Scheme
(the “General Limit”). The Company has refreshed the General Limit
so that the number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company would be increased to 10% of the shares in
issue as at the date of approval of the General Limit as “refreshed”. The
refreshment of the General Limit was approved by the shareholders of
the Company in the annual general meeting held on 27 May 2005, 19
May 2006 and 23 May 2008. The Scheme is valid and effective for a
period of 10 years after the date of adoption.

At 31 December 2008, all outstanding share options were lapsed and

there were no share options granted during 2010 and 2011.

RESERVES

The special reserve represents (i) the difference between the nominal
value of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal value of
the shares of the Company issued for the acquisition under the group
reorganisation in September 1997; and (ii) reduction of share capital

took place during the years ended 31 December 2006 and 2008.
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42.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =%

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which includes
the borrowings disclosed in notes 31, 32, 33, 34 and 35 (net of
cash and cash equivalents) and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, accumulated losses and

other reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
semi-annually basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associates with each class of capital. The
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of

new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

42a. Categories of financial instruments

41.

42.
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EXERER

AEBZEAEREHBBEEREER
BEHREFE  BRASE BRI
BREZHB MABRRMEEZADER K
SEERRKEEFAR-

AEEZEREREDIEELFE (RIESE
5 (RHi3E31 ~32 33 *34M35ATHE)
MBREeRRESZEEE ) RARAHEE
AL (BEEBITRA - RetEE
REMEERE) o

ARREEGXFRIEARB BRI Z
— MO REEEBEARANRERELRH
MimER - AEEERBRERS &
TE G BERD  BITHEBRED
RAEBRBEH N HEBERNRBIELF
figo

E@MmIA
fa EL T BEHR

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
-5 —z-2f
FExT FHIT
Financial assets cRMEE
FVTPL FRERRATEENE
— Investments held for trading —BFIEEEZRE 15,682 19,011
Loans and receivables (including cash ~ BERMEREZ (BERE &
and cash equivalents) REEMAEIER) 468,786 481,584
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEESREE 120,136 120,136
Financial liabilities cRAE
Amortised cost 5 Ak AN 792,512 497,427
Derivative financial instrument PTEErITA 2,858 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——4+=H=——HIFFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

42b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-for-sale
investments, amounts due from an associate and an investee,
trade and other receivables, investments held for trading, pledged
bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and other payables,
loan from a related company, derivative financial instrument,
convertible notes, borrowings, amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries and amount due to a related
company. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk
and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate

measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

There has been no significant change to the Group’s exposure to
market risks or the manner in which it manages and measures the

risk.

Market risk
(i) Currency risk

The Group does not have significant foreign currency sales
and purchases, therefore exposure to foreign currency risk is

minimal.
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42. €M I A »)

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

42b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(i) Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to bank balances, loan from a related company, and
borrowings (see notes 27, 31 and 33 for details of these
balances). The Group also has fixed interest rate financial
liabilities which exposed the Group to fair value interest rate
risk. It is the Group's policy to keep its bank balances and

borrowings at floating rate of interests so as to minimise the

fair value interest rate risk.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities
are detailed in the liquidity risk management section of
this note. The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Dollar Prime
Rate, HIBOR and PBOC Benchmark Deposit Rate arising from

the Group’s Hong Kong Dollar and Renminbi denominated

borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative
instruments at the end of each of the reporting period. For
variable-rate loan from a related company and borrowings,
the analysis is prepared assuming the amounts of liabilities
outstanding at the end of each of the reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis points (2010: 50
basis points) increase or decrease is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates. No sensitivity is presented

for the bank balances as the bank balances are short-term in

nature and the impact is insignificant.
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

42b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ir)

(iif)

Cash flow interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2010: 50 basis
points) higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s post-tax loss for the year ended 31
December 2011 would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$2,978,000 (2010: post-tax profit decrease/increase by
HK$298,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group's

exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate loans.

The Group's sensitivity to interest rates has increased during
the current year mainly due to the increase in variable rate

debt instruments.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to other price risk through its
investments in equity securities and derivative financial
instrument. The management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different risks. In
addition, the Group has appointed a special team to monitor
the price risk and will consider hedging the risk exposure
should the need arise. The Group's other price risk is mainly
concentrated on equity instruments quoted in the Asia

capital market.
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

42b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(iif) ~ Other price risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risks at the end of the
reporting period for the held-for-trading investments and

derivative financial instrument.

If the prices of the held-for-trading investments and
derivative financial instruments had been 5% (2010:
5%) higher/lower, post-tax loss for the year ended 31
December 2011 would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$535,000 (2010: post-tax profit would increase/decrease
by HK$794,000) as a result of the changes in fair value
of held-for-trading investments and derivative financial

instrument.

The Group's sensitivity to held-for-trading investments and
derivative financial instrument has been decreased from the
prior year due to the net decrease in balance of held-for-

trading investments and in derivative financial instrument.
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policies (Continued)
Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties failure to perform their obligations as at 31
December 2011 in relation to each class of recognised financial
assets is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual debt at each of the reporting period end to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the

Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk for bank deposits and bank balances exposed is
considered minimal as such amounts are placed with banks with

good credit ratings.

Other than concentration of credit risk on 27% (2010: 88%) of
the liquid funds which are deposited with a bank with high credit
rating and amounts due from an associate and an investee which
mainly operate in the PRC, the Group does not have any other

significant concentration of credit risk.
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

42b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company have given careful consideration to the future
liquidity and going concern of the Group in view of the fact
that the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets
by approximately HK$116,110,000 as at 31 December 2011
and recorded recurring losses from continuing operations of
approximately HK$219,331,000 for the year then ended. The
directors of the Company are satisfied that the Group will have
sufficient financial resources to meet its financial obligations
as they fall due for the foreseeable future, after taking into
consideration that there were undrawn borrowing facilities of
approximately HK$57,881,000 at the end of the reporting period
and that there are assets available to pledge for obtaining further

banking facilities.

The Group relies on bank and other borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity, in the management of liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
The management monitors the utilisation of bank and other

borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest dates on which the Group can
be required to pay. Specifically, bank loans with a repayment on
demand clause are included in the earliest time band regardless
of the probability of the banks choosing to exercise their rights.
The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities are

based on the agreed repayment dates.

145

42. €M I B »)
b BEREEEERBE

B B m B

ERBUREVIEHRER  ERAEE
R-BE——F+-_A=+—HzR
PEEBLEREEEL16,110,000
Bt AREEEERREEZA L
FEHRISEEEEE4219,331,000
BT ARNREFEOREZREAEE
ZARITENE & RIFELERE N o K
RAEFEE  AEEEAER B
S EIRAFER E R e R 2R B 8 2
BHEME EPEZRN2HALER
Fr 2 RIBEUE BRI E4157,881,00078
T RAMIEAIG#E —SRITHME
IR BEE o

AEBZRBESTRRBRITRE
ffEE -AERRBESRBRMNS
AEBERRGFRERREE

HEREEERRIEZKF  BA
SEEBREES  WHERERE
KBz 78 - BT E BB IRTT S H A
BEZEREN  LERETERZ

Ens
7t °©

TERFEAKEIFTESRARZ
Rra WFHFE - BANIRTIRE
RAEERERZRAKZHER
HrzemBaERTRESRERE
B = @ MR ESE IR 2R
TEFXRAKERREEAR M
MmIRTTIR BT E AN 2 ARt - B
IFITESRBE 22 HI A TI A
EZERAHRBEKE -

AN
2011 F 3k

RAE R A A

on
=

BB JE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

an\ = /jﬁ&#&%\%ﬁﬁ'

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——4+=H=——HIFFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 42. €T R ()

42b. B EREE R REREX

42b. Financial risk management objectives and
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policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the

extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted

amount is derived from interest rate at the end of the reporting

(%)

B B m B (&
TREBMNERASRERE - HE
NERERFBNE  RIFRERTD
BN EMAPERE 2 REFH -

period.
Total
Weighted ~ On demand undiscounted Carrying
average or less than 1-2 2-5 cash amount
interest rate 1year years years flows 31 December
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
k)
g RERS -FZ MEE ReNE +-A=t+-AH
FiHFE —£R) mE i3 aE ZEHE
% THT FET FET FEL TAT
2011 —B—-f
Non-derivative financial liabilities FTESRAE
Trade and other payables B REMEMERER = 61,843 = = 61,843 61,843
Loan from a related company —RBELAER 7.00 15,589 = = 15,589 14,569
Amount due to a related company BN —REEDFFE 100 100 100
Borrowings - variable rate BE-Z8 2.69 484,116 20,374 210,192 714,682 698,695
Borrowings - fixed rate EE-ELS 10.00 8,963 - - 8,963 8,148
Amounts due to non-controlling Rl NGE 328 ¢
shareholders of subsidiaries HE - 9,157 - - 9,157 9,157
579,768 20,374 210,192 810,334 792,512
Derivative liability fTEEE 6.66 986 1,257 805 3,048 2,858
2010 —E-Zf
Trade and other payables B REMEMERER - 34,446 - - 34,446 34,446
Loans from related companies BEDAIER 7.00 10,700 - - 10,700 10,000
Amounts due to related companies R BERRIFIE - 51,876 - - 51,876 51,876
Borrowings - variable rate EE-Z8 243 60,387 = = 60,387 56,037
Borrowing - fixed rate HE-E& 10.00 6,050 - - 6,050 5,500
Amounts due to non-controlling FERHTR A B IEE AR AR R
shareholders of subsidiaries HE - 8,726 - - 8,726 8,726
Convertible notes AHBRRRE 2.00 344,571 - - 344,571 330,842
516,756 - - 516,756 497,427

The amounts included above from variable interest rate

instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject

to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those

estimates to interest rates determined at the end of the reporting

period.
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42. €M I B »)

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

42b. Financial risk management objectives and

42c.

policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

The bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause is
included in the “On demand or less than 1 year” time band
in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2011 and
31 December 2010, the undiscounted principal amounts and
interest payment of the bank borrowings are based on scheduled

repayment dates as follows:

42b.

M EEEEEERBEE

PN
(%3)

B &< a7 (&)

MR ZSRER IR RITIEER L
SCRRPIEER A AT ETA [HRE SRk
—FAFHREEN R ——
+ZA=+—BR=ZZE—ZTF+=
A=+—0 RfI7EERBHEERA
AT 2 RITRAS R RA B
T

N

Carrying
Less than amount
Interest rate 1 year 31 December
% HK$'000 HK$'000
t=A=+-H
= —FR ZEREE
% FET FHET
2011 —E——F
Bank borrowing RITIEE 2% 408,713 405,000
2010 —EB-EF
Bank borrowing RITEE 2% 42,642 42,500
Fair value 2c A ¥EE

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are

determined as follows:

e the fair value of financial assets with standard terms
and conditions and traded in active liquid markets are

determined with reference to quoted market bid prices ;

e the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities
(excluding derivative instrument) are determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on

discounted cash flow analysis; and
e the fair value of derivative financial instrument is determined

by discounted cash flow analysis using the applicable yield

curve of interest rate.
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
42c. Fair value (Continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments
that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value,
grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair

value is observable.

. Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical

assets or liabilities.

° Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as

prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

3 Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable market data

(unobservable inputs).

42. €T R )
42c. AEEE (&)

A A B R TR
ATl
TREHERT S EREUQFEE
AEZERMTAN  RABEAT
BEERESR—E=MR-

F—QAFREHEREAR
AENE EORRT S LHHE
BIE REFR) -

E_RATEEFERBEE
FAEREE (AMER)KRE
% (BERITLE)BRaARE
(TRREFE—RFFAZRE) -

E=RATEEFERBEE
HABELIFERABRTSHR
B (BEABRBARRE) 2bE
T3

31 December 2011
—Z2-——f%+=ZA=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B EZR E=f &5t
FHET FET FET FERT
Financial assets at FVTPL ZEBEBEZE A FEEE
ZERMEE
Investment held for trading  #H{FEBEZ &K E
Equity securities in unlisted ~ JEETREES Z A
investment fund BH - 15,468 - 15,468
Listed securities EmES 214 - - 214
31 December 2011
—e——F+=A=+-8
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
E—R E=R E=® A%
FBT FBT FBT FET
Financial liabilities at ERERELATEETE
FVTPL ZemesE
Derivative financial liability ~ $T4£& R A E - 2,858 - 2,858
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42. €T R ()
42c. 2FEE (%)
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
42c. Fair value (Continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position (Continued)

31 December 2010
—T-TF+=-A=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F—& F-_H F=% A&t
FHET FAT FAT FHT
Financial assets at FVTPL ZEBEBEZEAFEEE
ZERMEE
Investment held for trading #H{EEBEZ K E
Equity securities in unlisted ~ JEETMREEE Z
investment fund R AR 3B 5 - 17,988 - 17,988
Listed securities RS 1,023 - - 1,023
There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 fair value E@:e —FERZFT-FTF F—R
measurements in 2011 and 2010. EAEZE — ifﬁfﬁ FrE 2 A EE
ﬁi%%? o

43. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 10 February 2010, the Group disposed of its 51% interest in 74|
BEBBRRTHEEREER
approximately HK$1,718,000.

("P9)111E815") at a consideration of

On 25 October 2010, the Group entered into an agreement with an
independent third party and the agreement entitled the counterparty
to purchase one out of two shares of Sinomatrix, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group principally engaged in investment holding,
at a consideration of US$2,200,000 (approximately equivalent to
HK$17,050,000). The transaction was completed in June 2011, and
the Group has retained a 50% interest in Sinomatrix. Accordingly,
the Sinomatrix Group ceased to be subsidiaries of the Company and
Sinomatrix became a jointly controlled entity of the Company from that
day. This transaction has resulted in the recognition of an impairment
loss of approximately HK$3,638,000 in profit or loss in 2010 upon the
reclassification of Sinomatrix Group as an asset classified as held-for-
sale. No further losses arose from the disposal during the current year.
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In December 2010, the Group entered into an agreement for the sale
of its entire interest in E9)I| 7B ZFEEEEBR AT (‘W7
[El"), a 50.5% owned subsidiary of the Group principally engaged in
hotel operation, at a consideration of RMB3,000,000 (approximately
equivalent to HK$3,519,000). The transaction was completed in
January 2011. This transaction has resulted in the recognition of a loss

of approximately HK$395,000 in profit or loss during the current year.

On 25 April 2011, the Group entered into an agreement for the sale
of its 100% interest in Wise Mark International Investment Inc. (“Wise
Mark"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group principally engaged
in hotel operation, to an independent third party, at a consideration
of HK$3,000,000. The transaction was completed in April 2011. This
transaction has resulted in the recognition of a loss of approximately

HK$154,000 in profit or loss.

On 22 August 2011, the Group entered into an agreement for the sale
of its entire interest in Sky Victory Resources Limited (“Sky Victory”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group principally engaged in hotel
operation, at a consideration of RMB6,000,000 (approximately
equivalent to HK$7,200,000). The transaction was completed in
September 2011, resulted in the recognition of a gain of approximately

HK$56,000 in profit or loss.

On 26 September 2011, the Group entered into an agreement for the
sale of its entire interest in Gold Richly Limited (“Gold Richly”), a 100%
owned subsidiary of the Group principally engaged in property holding,
at a consideration of RMB45,000,000 (approximately equivalent to
HK$55,102,000). The transaction was completed in October 2011,
resulted in the recognition of a gain of approximately HK$9,980,000 in

profit or loss.
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approximately HK$ 1,105,000 (2010: Nil) released upon disposal of

subsidiaries.

The contribution of these subsidiaries to the results of the Group during

the current and prior years was insignificant.
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43. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 43. HEMBE QT ()
The net assets of the subsidiaries at the respective dates of disposal ZEMBARINSBEHERMEESE
were as follows: mr:
Sinomatrix Il A Wise Mark  Sky Victory  Gold Richly mIEE
Group at at at at at at
2562011 3112011 3042011 2282011 2692011 Total  102.2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Sinomatrix
| m)ll 5 E REEEBR  Sky Victory SEF m)IlEfs
RZB——%F RZB——F RZZT-——-F RIB-——-F RZFT-—-F R-B-FF
AA=tHEB —-A=+-A M@A=+H NA=+=H AB=txiAH a5 —A+H
THT FTHT THT THT T THT FTHT
Property, plant and equipment ¥ - # 22 % - - 1,378 1,006 - 2,384 746
Investment properties REME - - - - 45,253 45,253 -
Intangible assets EWAE - - 1,478 5,853 = 7,331 =
Available-for-sale investment —H,\ HERE 48,715 = = = = 48,715 =
Inventories FE - 45 - 115 76 236 -
Trade and other receivables B 5 RAEMEY
BR K - 700 68 568 159 1,495 537
Other assets Ht&E - - 343 265 = 608 =
Tax recoverable AR E R IE - - - - - - 3
Bank balances and cash RITEBRA S - 301 - 109 23 433 2,077
Assets classified as held for sale D EAREHEZ
BE - 4,903 - - - 4,903 -
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMERRR = (1,961) (113) (728) (931) (3,733) (1,442)
Tax liabilities BIEEE = (74) = (44) (1,514) (1,632) =
Net assets disposed of &2 FEE 48,715 3,914 3,154 7,144 43,066 105,993 1,921
Non-controlling interests JEE R (14,615) = - = (14,615) (768)
(Loss) gain on disposal (Note) (& 2 (E18) ez
(B=E) = (395) (154) 56 9,980 9,487 565
Total consideration BRE 34,100 3,519 3,000 7,200 53,046 100,865 1,718
Satisfied by: AR
Deposit received in prior year  RIFWELZ & - 2,478 - - = 2,478 =
Cash Be 17,050 1,041 3,000 7,200 55,102 83,393 1,718
Fair value of remaining 50% RE 1’F7%77\ ER
equity interest retained HEZH B
as interest in a jointly THERIBT
controlled entity 50% B AR
ZATEE 17,050 - - - - 17,05 -
Expenses incurred for HEMEEZ
the disposal (553 - - - - (2,056) (2,056) =
34,100 3,519 3,000 7,200 53,046 100,865 1,718
Net cash inflow (outflow) arising  HEFE£ZE S
on disposal A Cf ) #88
Cash RBe 17,050 1,041 3,000 7,200 55,102 83,393 1,718
Bank balances and cash P& 28R 17
disposed of ERRRS - (301) - (109) 23) 433) (2,077)
Expenses incurred for HEMELZ
the disposal Fx - - - - (2,056) (2,056) =
17,050 740 3,000 7,091 53,023 80,904 (359)
Note: Included in (loss) gain on disposal is a translation reserve of fizk: HEZ (BR)K=eEHERBEA
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 ##% =& ——41=H=—+—HILFKF

44. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 44. EEEKH

BRESTHREEN R-T——F+_4
=t—R - ARBZEERENREET
SI|E E AR

Save as otherwise disclosed, at 31 December 2011, the Group's credit

facilities were secured by the Group's assets as follows:

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—g——% —-2F
FET FHT
Investments held for trading BIEBEEZRE - 1,023
Hotel properties (note 16) B EPE (FEE16) 1,322,046 264,911
Investment property REYE - 45,000
Bank balances RITHER 14,933 =
1,336,979 310,934

45. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 45. WEM A

=-Y:¢: PN
R-E——F+_-_A=+—8 AEHR
BEBBTAIHGEEEAN 2 AR FERE
NREHAE ISR E 2R BHBMT

As lessee

At 31 December 2011, the Group had commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which

fall due as follows:
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2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
T —z-25
FERT FHTT
Hotel properties B JE Y 3

Within one year —FR 74,762 86,999
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_FEFRF(RREEEME) 170,896 274,344
Over five years HF% 55,763 121,329
301,421 482,672

Other land and buildings Ht b RigF
Within one year —FR" 526 1,052
In the second to fifth years inclusive FE_FEFRAF (BEEEMNF) - 526
526 1,578

Other operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group

for certain of its office properties.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——41=H=—+—HILFK

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED) 45. KERNEAE (@)

As lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was approximately

HK$21,783,000 (2010: HK$19,094,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases for premises within the hotel properties for

ERHEA

FRUELZ R 2 WAL AE21,783,000
BT (ZZT—Z 4 19,094,000 7T ) °

RERBERE AEERBLITLA
% ARBRRBETARMBEIEEEOT
SIS E R E6F OBIEMERNZ ME

an average term of 2 to 6 years: ZARREEBSAK:
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—2——% —=-T%
FET FH&T
Within one year —F R 22,323 19,766
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_FZETF(RREEEME) 59,378 44,767
Over five years hFi& 9,747 2,014
91,448 66,547
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 46. B REE
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
e —z-2F
FERT FHIT
Contracted for but not provided in the =R ESEEIES)
consolidated financial statements in BRNERE A BRTEE
respect of
Capital expenditure of investment property R EW¥ 2 EARFE 20,065 10,882
Investment in an associate R—REERAZIRE 11,115 11,115
Purchase of property, plant and equipment ~ BEE 4% - #2238 31,752 208,237
62,932 230,234
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =& ——4 1 =H=—+—HILFK&

47. PROVIDENT FUND SCHEMES

The Group has retirement schemes covering a substantial portion
of its employees in Hong Kong. The principal schemes are defined
contribution schemes. The assets of these schemes are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control of independent

trustees.

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group joined a Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for all its new employees in
Hong Kong employed therefrom or existing employees wishing to join
the MPF Scheme. The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control of an independent
trustee. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are required to make contributions to the MPF Scheme at
5% of relevant payroll cost. The only obligation of the Group in respect
of MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions under the MPF

Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are members
of the state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the
government of the PRC. The subsidiaries are required to contribute
certain percentage of their payroll costs to the retirement benefit
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified

contributions.

The amounts charged to profit or loss represent contributions paid or
payable to the schemes by the Group of approximately HK$ 11,500,000
(2010: HK$8,040,000) less forfeiture of approximately HK$Nil (2010:
Nil) arising from employees leaving the Group prior to completion of the

qualifying service period, if any.

At the end of the reporting period, there were no forfeited
contributions (2010: HK$2,000), which arose upon employees leaving
the retirement benefit schemes and which are available to reduce the

contributions payable in future years.
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48. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

(0)

(d)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——4 1 =H=—+—HILFK

Save as disclosed elsewhere of these consolidated financial

statements, during the year, the Group had transactions with

related parties as follows:

(a

48. AEAERS

Bz e M mREME D ﬁ&@%
SN FER - REBEBEATETZ
RSWT

Nature of transactions Name of related company 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
RHMHE BMEATRE —E—-F —T-THE
FHERT FHT
Interest paid and payable Asia Will Limited (Note a)
on convertible notes ("Asia Will") - 989
ARRER BN RERTE BEERAR (MizTa)
(3E1)
Loan interests paid and ITC Management Limited (Note b)
payable by the Group ("ITC Management”) 753 602

AEBDNREMNZEHFE

ITC Management Limited ( Ff#Eb)

(1TC Management | )

Note:
(@  Asia Will has significant influence over the Company.

(b) The holding company of ITC Management has significant
influence over the Company.

During the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Group
received loan from a related company. Details of its relationships

and the terms of the loan are set out in note 31.

The Group maintained current accounts with associates and
related companies. Their balances as at 31 December 2011 and
2010 are set out in notes 18, 31 and 32.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of key management members was set out in

note 11.
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P &E -
(a) BEHARAAEATZES -

(b) ITC ManagementZ #5 J& /A &) ¥ 75

RRAIBEATE)] -
REBE-Z——FR_ZF—FTF+=
A=+—HLFE AELEEH—K
2 a2 B

BN RWERE R - EHEZ A
=

RERIGRZ FHBHRH =

n\ll/

NEE RSN R REEABH R
FRF - HRN-_T—FR_FT—F
FHZA=+—BZERENI T
18 +31%32 °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 ## =%

——F+ZH=AF—HILFE

49. INFORMATION OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

49. 751X T B B3R L B R

31.12.2011 31.12.2010
HK$000 HK$000
(restated)
g% —z—25
+=A=t+-8A +-A=+—H
FExT FAT
(&g=31)
Non-current assets FEMBEE
Property, plant and equipment ERE Y 2,070 2,177
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZIEE - -
Amount due from a subsidiary JFE U — R BT 8 A BB 1,462,661 2,244,381
1,464,731 2,246,558
Current assets MBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries NI B 2,846 2,467
Amounts due from related companies JE 5 78 5 N R SR IR - 1,187
Trade and other receivables B 5 R H b fE WBR X 1,850 1,676
Bank balances and cash RITHEBREIRS 202,781 615
207,477 5,945
Current liabilities mEBAaE
Trade and other payables B 5 K& H fth FEAT BR 5K 8,374 11,292
Loan from a related company —REERRER - 10,000
Amounts due to related companies JET A& R R FIA 100 11,877
Borrowings — amount due within one year & & — —4F R E|HFE 68,140 15,500
Convertible notes Al AR E iR - 330,842
76,614 379,511
Net current assets (liabilities) MBEEFRE (AEFHE) 130,863 (373,566)
Total assets less current liabilities BELERRBAEE 1,595,594 1,872,992
Capital and reserves ERRFEE
Share capital A& 6,577 6,577
Share premium & {7 5 (B 1,248,048 1,248,048
Special reserve 5Bl 780,549 780,549
Convertible note reserve AR iR - 63,757
Accumulated losses B2 EE (439,580) (225,939)
Equity attributable to owners of RRAREE AEIEER
the Company 1,595,594 1,872,992
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #% =% ——41=H=—+—HILFK

50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 50. X EME QT

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2011

and 2010 are as follows:

RFRR—T——F R

—E+-A

=t HAXRBZEEMNBREFE:

Place of Issued and paid up Effective interest in issued
incorporation/ share capital/ share capital/registered Principal activities and
Name of company registration registered capital capital held by the Group place of operation
2011 2010
% %
BRTRHR FEEREERT
NG TMAL BEH BA/EMER BRA/EMES 2 BB ER TEXBREFBY
—E2--% “2-FF
% %
Allied Glory Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$2 68.3 68.3 Investment holding
(“Allied Glory") in the PRC
BRBREBRAR ([AK]) 0 287 68.3 683  HEREZK
Apex Quality Group Limited British Virgin Islands US$5,548,172 83.1 83.1 Investment holding
Apex Quality Group Limited ERERRES 5,548,172 7T 83.1 831  REER
Asia Times Limited British Virgin Islands Us$100 100 100 Investment holding
Asia Times Limited RBEBRES 100%7T 100 100 REZR
Benchmark Pacific Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 100 100 Investment holding
in Hong Kong
Benchmark Pacific Limited ERERRES (E 100 100 ABREER
DS Eastin Limited Hong Kong HK$20 83.1 83.1 Investment holding
in the PRC
BGRAREBRAR 0 20T 83.1 831  PEREBER
Fortress State International Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 Hotel development
Limited in Hong Kong
RERERERAR BE 10,0007 7 100 100 REBBREE
HMH China Investments Limited Bermuda CAD$ 152,913 68.3 68.3 Investment holding
HMH China Investments Limited BRE 1,152,913/ 68.3 683  BEER
International Travel Systems Inc. British Virgin Islands Us$1 100 100 Investment holding
International Travel Systems Inc. ERERRES (E 100 100  ®EER
Lucky Million Investments Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 83.1 83.1 Investment holding
in Hong Kong
Lucky Million Investments Limited ERERRES (E 83.1 83.1 BERRAER Rosedale
’_E[‘ [u]=9
Luoyang Golden Gulf Hotel PRC* RMB 145,000,000 60 49.9 Hotel ownership and ‘(\’\ ﬁ;
Co., Ltd. operation in the PRC % =
BB AERBEERA GES ARE 60 499 RPREARSHERE o &
_ £H
145,000,0007T b
L
i
=
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Place of Issued and paid up Effective interest in issued
incorporation/ share capital/ share capital/registered Principal activities and
Name of company registration registered capital capital held by the Group place of operation
2011 2010
% %
BRTRER AEEREERST
ARER TMAL BEH RE,/EMES BRA/EMES 2 BB ER TEEBREEBY
—EB—-F —T-%F
% %
Makerston Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 83.1 83.1 Investment holding
in Hong Kong
Makerston Limited EBRERRES (E 83.1 831  BEEREERR
Rosedale Group Management Hong Kong HK$2 83.1 83.1 Provision of management
Limited services in Hong Kong
HESEERERAR B 2B 83.1 831  REARMEERS
Rosedale Hotel Beijing Co., Ltd. PRCH* US$17,200,000 83.1 83.1 Hotel ownership and
operation in the PRC
ErHBEEEREEAH rh [ ¥ 17,200,000% 7T 83.1 831  RAEHEBRELEE
Rosedale Hotel Group Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 83.1 83.1 Investment holding
in Hong Kong
HEREEEBRAR RBREBRES E3 83.1 831  ABREERK
Rosedale Hotel Guangzhou Co., PRC# US$11,500,000 67.6 67.6 Hotel ownership and
Ltd. (“Rosedale Guangzhou") operation in the PRC
EMREREERRAR rh [ 11,500,000 7T 67.6 67.6 ~ RAEHEERELEE
(TEMIE])
Rosedale Hotel International British Virgin Islands Us$1 100 100 Investment holding
Limited
Rosedale Hotel International EBRERRES (E 100 100  REERK
Limited
Rosedale Hotel Kowloon Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 - Hotel operation
in Hong Kong
NEREEEBRAR B 18T 100 - REBREEE
Rosedale Park Limited Hong Kong HK$2 83.1 83.1 Hotel operation
in Hong Kong
Rosedale Park Limited B 28T 83.1 831  REBLEEE
The Rosedale Luxury Hotel & PRCH# Us$19,350,000 100 83.1 Property investment
Suites Ltd. in the PRC
HEEX(LB)BERAR H 19,350,000 7 100 831  HEYERE
Shenyang Hotel Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands Us$100 78.9 789 Investment holding
in the PRC
AEEERDBRAR RERBRES 100% 7T 78.9 789  HEREERK
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50. X EME AT (#)

50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Place of Issued and paid up Effective interest in issued
incorporation/ share capital/ share capital/registered Principal activities and
Name of company registration registered capital capital held by the Group place of operation
2011 2010
% %
ERTRAR AEERECRT
ARER TMAL BEH B/ EMES BA/EMES 2 BB ER TEEBREEDY
—2—-F —F-%F
% %
Shenyang Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 83.1 83.1 Investment holding
Shenyang Limited ERERRES (E 83.1 831  BEER
Shropshire Property Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary - 100 83.1 Investment holding
Us$10 in the PRC
Preference -
US$1,000
TR 4on gL
RENEERAA HERAREE EAR- 100 E
10%7T
BER—
1,000E T
Square Inn Hotel Management Macau MOP100,000 79.8 79.8 Budget hotel operation
Limited in Macau
FENFEEERERAR R 100,0008) % 79.8 798 REMEEEEREE
Square Inn Budget Hotels United States of America US$1,074,205 79.8 79.8 Investment holding
Management, Inc.
Square Inn Budget Hotels e 1,074,205% ¢ 79.8 798  RAER
Management, Inc.
Success Billion Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 100 100 Trading of securities
in Hong Kong
Success Billion Limited HEEBRES (E 100 100 REBEEESH
Time Plaza (Shenyang) Limited PRC* RMB 168,000,000 72.6 72.6 Hotel ownership and
operation in the PRC
BRES OBE) FRAR HE ARE 726 726  RPEBEEREEEE
168,000,0007T
WHS Marine Services Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100 100 Ship Building, repairing,
and holdings of leisure
boat in Hong Kong
XERSBREA R AT BB 1,000,000% 70 100 100 REBREREEBHE
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 ## =%

BB EHRME
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50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

51.

i The subsidiaries are Sino-foreign equity joint ventures.

#  This subsidiary is a Sino-foreign co-operative joint venture. Allied Glory
is entitled to recoup its total investment (including capital and interest)
from the after-tax earnings of Rosedale Guangzhou before any
amounts are distributed. Thereafter, the after-tax earnings of Rosedale
Guangzhou are to be distributed at 80% and 20% to Allied Glory and
other joint venture partner respectively.

##  The subsidiaries are wholly foreign owned entities.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the opinion
of the directors, principally affected the results or assets and liabilities of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of

the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

No debt securities have been issued by any of the subsidiaries during the

year.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The following significant events occurred subsequent to 31 December

2011:

Acquisition of an additional 5.05% equity interest
in Apex Quality Group Limited (“Apex Quality”)

On 13 January 2012, Easy Vision Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, entered into a sales and purchase agreement
with an independent third party to purchase 14,000,000 shares in
the issued share capital (“Sale Shares”) of Apex Quality, at a cash

consideration of HK$62,000,000.

Before the acquisition, the Group has approximately 83.1% equity
interest in Apex Quality and the Sale Shares represent approximately
5.05% of the issued share capital of Apex Quality. Upon completion
on 18 January 2012, the Group’s equity interest in Apex Quality has
increased to approximately 88.2% and Apex Quality remains as a non

wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.
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51. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(CONTINUED)

Disposal of 10% equity interest in HKWOT

On 2 February 2012, the Group entered into an agreement with the
Purchaser pursuant to which the Group has conditionally agreed to
sell and the Purchaser has conditionally agreed to purchase the 10%
issued share capital of HKWOT, at a consideration of US$9,440,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$73,600,000). The sale was also
completed in February 2012 and the consideration was paid by
the Purchaser as to US$9,180,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$71,600,000) by way of cash at completion and as to the balance
of US$260,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$2,000,000) by way of

cash on the first anniversary of the completion date.

Disposal of More Star Limited

On 1 February 2012, the Group entered into a conditional agreement
with an independent third party (“the More Start Purchaser”) for the
disposal of the entire equity interest in More Star Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary, which indirectly owns the hotel property under
construction of the Group for a total consideration of approximately
HK$1,317,708,000 (subject to adjustment). Of the total consideration,
95% will be settled by way of payment in cash, while the remaining
5% will be settled by the More Star Purchaser by way of issue of the
consideration units (the “Consideration Units”) to the Group. The
Consideration Units represent interest in the stapled group comprising
real estate investment trust and business trust admitted for trading
on the main board of Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited
under the initial public offering of the Consideration Units which is in

contemplation.
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HEHKWOT 10% R 7~ 4 5
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Financial Summary

LRy A

RESULTS k&
Year ended 31 December
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE+-A=+-ALEE
2% -4 —EENG —ETNF —ETLF
Tt Fi it Fi FHT
Continuing operations BHESEEL
Turnover EE 391,023 309,339 257,989 319,090 327,404
(Loss) profit before taxation  B&%: AT (&51E ) i A (217,886)  (290,872)  (231,170)  (416,259) 22,235
Taxation (expense) credit M (L) EE (1,445) 4,061 (1,778) (7,085) 46,688
(Loss) profit for the year from B L%
continuing operations AEE (BE)HEF (219,331) (286,811)  (232,948)  (423,344) 68,923
Discontinued operations R IE & & EHK
Profit (loss) for the year from 4% [F A& & %55 2
discontinued operations REEmF (E51E) - 699,724 (114,241)  (409,569) (64,435)
(Loss) profit for the year REEZ (BE)=F (219,331) 412,913 (347,189)  (832,913) 4,488
(Loss) profit for the year REEZ (FE)=F
attributable to: B RYIA TR :
Owners of the Company PIN/NCIE 2SN (206,643) 468,446 (357,811)  (688,918) (16,199)
Non-controlling interests FEPE R = (12,688) (55,533) 10,622 (143,995) 20,687
(219,331) 412,913 (347,189)  (832,913) 4,488
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
As at 31 December
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
W+=A=+-A8
—E-—F —T-TF —TTNE —TTNFE ZITTHE
T Fi FiT Fit FHT
Total assets BEME 3,151,655 3,023,269 3,706,012 4,623,726 4,813,625
Total liabilities =Rt 1,057,409 754,118 1,831,044 2,372,211 2,251,098
2,094,246 2,269,151 1,874,968 2,251,515 2,562,527
Equity attributable to RRBHER A
Owners of the Company FEfhHE s 1,854,959 2,005,557 1,503,396 1,836,344 2,044,482
Non-controlling interests FEIEIRIE 2 239,287 263,594 371,572 415,171 518,045
2,094,246 2,269,151 1,874,968 2,251,515 2,562,527
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HOTEL PROPERTIES

Company
A

Address
i 3k

Particulars of Properties

M EF1B

Gross %
Area Interest

HER EEBEDL

Rosedale Hotel

Beijing Co., Ltd.

EFIRBBEFEREERR

Rosedale Hotel

Guangzhou Co., Ltd.

EMIBREEE B R A A

Luoyang Golden Gulf
Hotel Co., Ltd.

BB SR AEESRAR

Rosedale Hotel & Suites,
Beijing
No. 8 Jiang Tai Road West,
Chao Yang District,
Beijing, the PRC

IERIABEEIE
PR R
HE R
i & Fa R 85%

Rosedale Hotel & Suites,
Guangzhou
No. 348
Jiangnanda Road Central,
Haizhu District,
Guangzhou, the PRC

BIMNBEBEE
H BB T
IR
L K 38 H 34857

Luoyang Golden Gulf Hotel
No. 319 Zhongzhou
Zhong Road
Xigong District
Luoyang City

Henan Province, the PRC

RS A ATE

BT
&
AT

AR AR B 31955

B TE Y %
Existing Site
Use Area
HEEAR b 82 T K
Hotel operation 18,699.60
sg.m.
EBIEEY  18,699.60
Frk
Hotel operation 10,838.88
sg.m.
EBIE¥Y  10,838.88
F7%
Hotel operation 9,025.51
sg.m.
KRR 9,025.51
Frk
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37,173.20 83.1%
sqg.m.
37,173.20 83.1%
AR
46,865.83 67.6%
sg.m.
46,865.83 67.6%
IR
21,269.18 60.0%
sg.m.
21,269.18 60.0%
AR
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Particulars of Properties

MEFH1B

HOTEL PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) BRI ()
Existing Site Gross %
Company Address Use Area Area Interest
A 3 3k BRAR s 88 T AR AT R EEEIL
Time Plaza (Shenyang) Limited Times Plaza Hotel, Shenyang Hotel operation 5,335.00 43,000.34 72.6%
No. 99 North Station Road, Sg.m. Sg.m.
Shenhe District,
Shenyang City,
Liaoning Province,
the PRC
KRES O&B) BR AR BB EISEE REBEEY 5,335.00  43,000.34 72.6%
BT
LA &
I UEFE995R
PROPERTIES UNDER CONSTRUCTION EEY=
Expected
Existing Gross Floor % Completion
Company Address Use Site Area Area Completion Date
| 41k REAR 1 AR T R 848 TH A STREA L R T ALY
Fortress State No. 86, Tai Kok Tsui Road, Under 845.40 10,300.46 90% April 2012
International Limited Tai Kok Tsui, construction sg.m. sg.m.
Kowloon
REERBRAR e B 845.40 10,300.46 90% —T—=F
VL FhHA FHA A
A I 18865
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES BREW=
Company Address Existing Use Lease Term
AR o4k B S I
Rosedale Luxury No. 1900 Tianshan Road, Vacant Leasehold with a term expiring
Hotel & Suites Ltd. Changning District, on 15 October 2023
Shanghai, the PRC
HEEX (LB)ERAF T =g HERE HERN T =%
E®E +A+RAER
R ILIE& 19005%
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Rosedale

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited

Units 3008-3012, 30th Floor,
Paul Y. Centre, 51 Hung To Road,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong

HEBREEZERERRD

BB NEBEBREES 1R RELFEFL30/#3008-3012F
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